STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY

COMMISSIONERS MEETING

TUESDAY, AUGUST 194, 2014 10:00 A.M.

DISTRICT COURTROOM
26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA

AGENDA
MARSHALL MCBRIDE BILL MADDOX
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY
LANCE GILMAN
VICE-CHAIRMAN
BILL SJOVANGEN VANESSA STEPHENS
COMMISSIONER ' CLERK-TREASURER

All items include discussion and possible action to approve, modify, deny, or continue unless
marked otherwise.

1. CALL TO ORDER AT 10:00 A.M.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Agenda for August 19, 2014
4. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of minutes for August 5, 2014

CONSENT AGENDA
(All matters listed under the consent agenda are considered routine, and may be acted upon by the
Board of County Commissioners with one action, and without an extensive hearing. Any member of
the Board or any citizen may request that an item be taken from the consent agenda, discussed, and
acted upon separately during this meeting. The Commission Chair reserves the right to limit the time
allotted for each individual to speak. )

5. For possible approval the Treasurer Report for July 2014

6. For possible action approval of Assessor’s recommended corrections to the 2014/2014 tax roll for
partial property tax abatements pursuant to NRS 361.4722 through 361.4724

7. For possible action approval of general and liquor license first reading-
a. DELTA SALOON/SAWDUST CORNER/PARKING- General and liquor license/28 S C St.
b. BONANZA SALOON- General and liquor license/27 N C St.




8.

0.

10.

11.

For possible action approval of Payroll Check date 08/01/14 for $427,414.46. Accounts Payable
date for 8/08/14 for $484,597.05 and $5,130.39.

For possible action approval of Business License First Readings -

CHEWY.COM LLC - General/700 Milan (ecommerce fulfillment ctr)  TRI

PEEK BROTHERS CONSTRUCTION INC. - Contractor/400 Carroll Drive, Fernley
A & ] PAVING - Contractor/1490 Cherokee Trail, Reno

dba RED ROCK SPRING WATER/General - 1145 Icehouse Avenue, Sparks
MARTINEZ TREXLER REAL ESTATE GROUP/Home Business-92 West Taylor VC

° oo op

END OF CONSENT AGENDA

DISCUSSION (No Action - No Public Comment): Committee/Staff Reports

BOARD COMMENT (No Action - No Public Comment)

12. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Recommendation to award contract to successful bidder

13.

14.

for the construction of the Storey County Courthouse Roof Replacement Project. Bids will be
opened on August 14, 2014 and will be included in the Commission packet prior to the meeting.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: For possible action approval of Check 79513 for $4,500 to
- the Bucket of Blood

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: a.) Reaffirm Storey County Administrative Policies and
Procedures Number 010 dated 04-07-2009 “Vehicle and Equipment Assignment and Use.” b.)
Development of Policies and Procedures relating to the adoption of Volunteer participation
programs in certain County events and requirements for use of County owned vehicles.

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND PLANNING

15.

16.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Variance 2014-006: By Joyce Kveum at a property located
at 109 South C Street, Virginia City, Nevada 89440 (APN 001-074-03) for a business commonly
known as Comstock Corner Café. The applicant requests a variance for the purpose of changing
the allowed width and length of a sign which will be attached to the porch of the business.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Special Use Permit 2014-013: By Mickey Hazelwood (The
Nature Conservancy) at properties located on a portion of assessor parcel number (APN) 004-
111-33 (approximately 4.08 acres) of Sections 10, 11 and 15 of Township 19 North, Range 21 East
and on a portion of APN 004-111-34 (approximately 1.28 acres) located at Section 11, Township
19 North, Range 21 East, in Storey County, Nevada. The overall project also includes a portion of
Township 19 North, Range 21 East, Section 11 in former Washoe County, Nevada (Washoe
County APN 084-450-02). This portion of the project is part of land that was recently added to
Storey County from Washoe County and to which a Storey County current known APN and
zoning classification has not yet been assigned. The applicant requests a Special Use Permit to
restore and improve portions of the Truckee River and surrounding riparian area near Mustang,
Hafed, and McCarran Ranch, Storey County, Nevada. The project will include lowering the
existing (abandoned) floodplain, constructing riffles, and grading control structures in and




17.

18.

19.

adjacent to the active river channel, lowering an abandoned diversion structure, and sequestering
spoils along the floodplain margins in and around the Truckee River.

FOR POSSIBLE ACTION, LICENSING BOARD SECOND READINGS:
A. EAGLES CREST, INC. - Contractor / 4865 Joule Street #C6 ~ Reno (contractor)

B. ARDAGH METAL PACKAGING USA, INC. - General / 900 Waltham Way (can mfg) TRI

C. WG YATES & SONS CONST CO - Contractor / 2641 Portofino Drive (contractor) TRI

D. SILEGACY FLOOR FINISHING, LLC - Contractor / 750 Freeport Blvd ~ Sparks (contractor)

E. JAMES PAT COLONNA - Home Business / 21217 Highland Road ~ VC Highlands (CPA)

F. CARSON CITY VENDING, LLC - General / 4083 Montez Drive ~ Carson City (vending
service)

G. DIRECT FORCE MAINTENANCE, LLC - Contractor / PO Box 5611 ~ Fallon (mining
support)

H. HILL & HILL CONSTRUCTION, LLC - Contractor / 8965 Mohawk Street ~ Las Vegas
(contractor)

I. A-Z WELDING & FABRICATION, LLC - General / 1215 Alexandria (welding fab) TRI

J. STEEL KING INDUSTRIES, INC. - Contractor / 2700 Chamber St ~ Stevens Point, WI
(contractor) :

K. HIGH DESERT PLUMBING - Contractor / 131 Coney Island Dr ~ Sparks (contractor

L. CH2MHILL ENGINEERS, INC. - Contractor / 50 West Liberty ~ Reno (contractor)

M. ROSSCO ENT., dba AP STAINLESS MFG - General / 1215 Alexandria (manufacturing) TRI

N. SUPERIOR INSTALLATION SERVICES, INC. - Contractor / 1230 Crowley Cir ~ Carrollton,
TX (cont)

O. CASEY INDUSTRIAL, INC. - Contractor / 1400 W 122nd Ave ~ Westminster, CO (contractor)

P. RITCHIE BROS AUCTIONEERS - General / 20202 East Highway 80 MCC

Q. DATA SALES CO.,, INC. - General / 3450 West Burnsville Pkwy ~ Burnsville, MN (equip
lease)

R. VEGA ASPHALT PAVING, INC. - Contractor / 385 Freeport Blvd ~ Sparks (contractor)

S. AS.AP. PUMP & WELL SERVICE, LLC - Contractor / 10230 Laurent Drive ~ Reno

PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)

CALL TO ORDER CLOSED SESSION MEETING pursuant to NRS 288.220 for the purpose of
conferring with county management and legal counsel regarding labor negotiations between
Storey County (Employer) and the Storey County Sheriff's Office Employees’
Association/Operating Engineers Local Union No. 3 (Sheriff’s Office Employees’ Association),
and possible Memorandum of Understanding to clarify salary benefits as applicable to the 2014-
2017 Bargaining Agreement between the Employer and the Storey County Firefighter’'s
Association IAFF Local 4227 (Firefighters” Association).

20. ADJOURNMENT

NOTICE:

e Anyone interested may request personal notice of the meetings.

e Agenda items must be received in writing by 12:00 noon on the Monday of the week preceding
the regular meeting. For information call (775) 847-0969.

e Items may not necessarily be heard in the order that they appear.

3




e Public Comment will be allowed at the end of each meeting (this comment should be limited
to matters not on the agenda). Public Comment will also be allowed during each item upon
which action will be taken on the agenda (this comment should be limited to the item on the
agenda). Time limits on Public Comment will be at the discretion of the Chairman of the
Board. Please limit your comments to three minutes.

e Storey County recognizes the needs and civil rights of all persons regardless of race, color,
religion, gender, disability, family status, or nation origin.

Notice to persons with disabilities: Members of the public who are disabled and require special
assistance or accommodations at the meeting are requested to notify the Commissioners” Office in
writing at PO Box 176, Virginia City, Nevada 89440.

In accordance with Federal law and U.S. Department of agriculture policy, this institution is
prohibited from discriminating on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex, religion, age, disability
(Not all prohibited bases apply to all programs.) To file a complaint of discrimination write to USDA,
Director, Office of civil rights, 1400 Independence avenue, S.W., Washington, D.C. 20250-9410 or call
(800) 795-3272 (voice) or 202-6382 (ITDD). USDA is an equal opportunity provider, employer, and
lender. The TTY, VCO voice carry over) or HCO hearing carry over) number is 800-326-6868; voice
only 800-326-6868. Check the customer Guide section of your telephone book under Services for
Individuals with a Hearing or Speech Disability.

- CERTIFICATION OF POSTING

I, Vanessa Stephens, Clerk to the Board of Commissioners, do hereby certify that I posted, or caused
to be posted, a copy of this agenda at the following locations on or before August 13, 2014; Virginia
City Post Office, Storey County Courthouse, Virginia City Fire Department, Virginia City Highlands
Fire Department and Lockwood Fire Department.

ool '/A'A‘\
rk-Treasurer




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: August 19,2014 Estimate of time required: 5 min.

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

[y

. Title: Approval of minutes for August 5, 2014

2. Recommended motion: Approve minutes as submitted.

3. Prepared by: Vanessa Stephens
Department: Clerk & Treasurer Telephone: 775 847-0969

4, Staff summary: Minutes are attached.
S. Supporting materials: Attached.

6. Fiscal impact: N/A

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
7. Legal review required: N/A
District Attorney
8. Reviewged by:
\/> Department Head Department Name: Clerk & Treasurer
'f‘—_—\?/# —County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved [
[] Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued

—_

Agenda Item No.



STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY

COMMISSIONERS MEETING

TUESDAY, AUGUST 5T, 2014 10:00 A.M.

DISTRICT COURTROOM
26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA

MINUTES
MARSHALL MCBRIDE BILL MADDOX
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY
LANCE GILMAN
VICE-CHAIRMAN
BILL SJOVANGEN VANESSA STEPHENS
COMMISSIONER CLERK-TREASURER

Roll Call: Chairman Marshall McBride, Commissioner Bill Sjovangen, District Attorney Bill Maddox,
Deputy District Attorney Anne Langer, County Manager Pat Whitten, Clerk & Treasurer Vanessa
Stephens, Sheriff Gerald Antinoro, Building Inspector Shannon Gardner, Public Works Director Mike
Nevin, Comptroller Hugh Gallagher, Recorder Jen Chapman, Community Services Director Cherie
Nevin and Emergency Management Director Joe Curtis.

Absent: Vice-Chairman Gilman

1. CALL TO ORDER AT 10:00 A.M.
The Chair called the meeting to order at 10:0lam

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
The Chair led those present in the Pledge of Allegiance

3. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Agenda for August 5, 2014

Mark Joseph Phillips, Storey County Resident: [tem #22 is an agenda item on Thursday’s Planning
Commission Meeting. Mr. Whitten responded that there is timing to be considered for notification of
these meetings. There is already a recommendation to continue this item to deliberate it after the
Planning Commission’s meeting on Thursday.

Kay Dean, VC Highlands: Wants item #11 moved out of consent agenda and into the regular
agenda. The Chair agreed to do so.

Motion: Approve agenda for August 5, 2014 with the addition of item #11 from the Consent Agenda.
Action: Approve Moved by Commissioner Sjovangen Seconded by Chairman McBride Vote: Motion
carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=2)




4. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of amended minutes for May 19, 2014

Motion: Approve amended minutes for May 19, 2014, Action: Approve Moved by Commissioner
Sjovangen Seconded by Chairman McBride Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary:
Yes=2)

5. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of minutes for June 17, 2014

Mark Joseph Phillips, Storey County Resident: On page 13 and 16 he would like the work “fee”
changed to “fine.”

Nicole Barde, Virginia City Highlands Resident: The portion of the packet she submitted that was
not read is not included. She brought another copy. Vanessa Stephens explained that submitted
items are not included in the minutes but are always kept with them as a matter of public record. Ms.
Barde then asked if the minutes be amended to say that she submitted it and that it is attached. The
commissioners agreed that even though it is in the public record already, they can make a note of it as
well.

Motion: Approve minutes for June 17, 2014, with the amendment of the word “fee” to “fine” on
pages 13 and 16, and a notation of the packet submittal by Nicole Barde Action: Approve Moved by
Commissioner Sjovangen Seconded by Chairman McBride Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote
(summary: Yes=2)

6. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of minutes for July 1, 2014

Motion: Approve minutes for June 17, 2014, Action: Approve Moved by Commissioner Sjovangen
Seconded by Chairman McBride Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=2)

CONSENT AGENDA

7. For possible action approval of Justice Court Quarterly Report Per NRS 4.100

8. For possible action approval of Assessor’s recommended corrections to 2014/2015 tax roll for
exemptions

9. For possible action approval of Assessor’'s recommended corrections to 2014/2015 tax roll for
obsolescence correction

10. For possible action approval of Assessor’s recommended corrections to 2014/2015 tax roll for
partial property tax abatements pursuant to NRS 361.4722 through 361.4724

11. For possible action confirm the action of the County Manager and the Comptroller to purchase
the former Bank of America building for $75,000. Approved under the regular agenda.

12. For possible approval the Treasurer Report for June 2014

13. For possible action approval of Business License First Readings -

2




EAGLES CREST, INC. - Contractor / 4865 Joule Street #C6 ~ Reno (contractor)

ARDAGH METAL PACKAGING USA, INC. - General / 900 Waltham Way (can mfg)  TRI

W G YATES & SONS CONST CO - Contractor / 2641 Portofino Drive (contractor) TRI

SILEGACY FLOOR FINISHING, LLC - Contractor / 750 Freeport Blvd ~ Sparks (contractor)

JAMES PAT COLONNA - Home Business / 21217 Highland Road ~ VC Highlands (CPA)

CARSON CITY VENDING, LLC - General / 4083 Montez Drive ~ Carson City (vending

service)

DIRECT FORCE MAINTENANCE, LLC - Contractor / PO Box 5611 ~ Fallon (mining support)

. HILL & HILL CONSTRUCTION, LLC - Contractor / 8965 Mohawk Street ~ Las Vegas
(contractor)

A-Z WELDING & FABRICATION, LLC - General / 1215 Alexandria (welding fab) TRI
STEEL KING INDUSTRIES, INC. - Contractor / 2700 Chamber St ~ Stevens Point, WI
(contractor)

HIGH DESERT PLUMBING - Contractor / 131 Coney Island Dr ~ Sparks (contractor)
CH2MHILL ENGINEERS, INC. - Contractor / 50 West Liberty ~ Reno (contractor)

. ROSSCO ENT., dba AP STAINLESS MFG ~ General / 1215 Alexandria (manufacturing) TRI
SUPERIOR INSTALLATION SERVICES, INC. - Contractor / 1230 Crowley Cir ~ Carrollton,
TX (cont)

CASEY INDUSTRIAL, INC. - Contractor / 1400 W 122nd Ave ~ Westminster, CO (contractor)
RITCHIE BROS AUCTIONEERS - General / 20202 East Highway 80 MCC

DATA SALES CO., INC. - General / 3450 West Burnsville Pkwy ~ Burnsville, MN (equip
lease)

VEGA ASPHALT PAVING, INC. - Contractor / 385 Freeport Blvd ~ Sparks (contractor)
AS.A.P. PUMP & WELL SERVICE, LLC - Contractor / 10230 Laurent Drive ~ Reno

MEHOO R

T 0

— —

P 0RO ZZCR

END OF CONSENT AGENDA

Motion: Approve consent agenda with the exception of item 11, Action: Approve Moved by
Commissioner Sjovangen Seconded by Chairman McBride Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote
(summary: Yes=2)

For possible action confirm the action of the County Manager and the Comptroller to purchase the
former Bank of America building for $75,000. Originally listed as item 11.

County Manager Pat Whitten: After Bank of America left last Fall, they decided to dispose of their
building on E Street through public auction. Once we became aware of it, there was very little time to
inspect the building. Mr. Gallagher and I took a calculated risk and submitted an offer on the
building and we were the successful bidder at $75,000. Commissioner Gilman is well versed in
commercial transactions and was specific in giving them a lowball bid and walking away. We were
confident that a subsequent appraisal would yield that or more. The Assessor had a taxable value of
$171,000 on her books. I also have some knowledge about the value of bank buildings having been in
the business for 20 years. The terms were to submit 10% down which we have done, and sixty days
to submit the rest which has not been done yet but will upon approval of this action. The appraisal
did ultimately come in at $106,000. My past professional opinion is that the vault door alone is worth

$75,000.




Potential uses include relocation of the dispatch center to that sight, Community Development, using
the vault for storage of sensitive or valuable items, or holding it vacant for future lease to a bank or
credit union for a branch location, although that is a longshot.

Taking it off the tax roll is not considered material as it only represents .03% of our total ad valorem.

Nicole Barde, Virginia City Highlands Resident: Where is the money coming from? Mr. Whitten
responded that the staff report identifies Capitol Projects. Ms. Barde asked if that is on the list of
capital projects that is part of the budget that was submitted. Mr. Whitten said that it was not on the
infrastructure list and Capitol Projects is a fairly flexible opportunity to use without having to amend
ordinances and republishing reports. Ms. Barde asked confirmation that if it is on the capital list you
can fast track the approval. Mr. Whitten said that if it is funded by Capital Projects it could possibly
be fast-tracked, vs. if it is infrastructure funded. Ms. Barde asked what the cost would be to retrofit it
for our needs once the deal is closed. Mr. Whitten said they would have to determine what they
would use the building for before he could answer that. Ms. Barde wants the action to include that
there will be other fiscal impacts to include costs of retrofitting it. Mr. Whitten said that his staff
report stands as he submitted it. Mr. McBride added that until they know who will be in the building
they have no way of knowing what those expenses will be and if they end up selling it there might
even be none.

Kay Dean, VC Highlands: She is disturbed that there are signatures on some of the documents
dating back to April and she doesn’t recall it being brought up in any commission meetings. She
feels the $75,000 could be used elsewhere and it was not budgeted for.

Mark Joseph Phillips, Storey County Resident: Asked for a physical address and parcel number.
Mr. Whitten said he could give him the parcel number but there are some conflicts on the address.
The county shows the address as 10 South E Street which is probably correct as it fronts E Street, but
the real estate listing had a 160 East Union Street address. The parcel is 001-087-06.

Mr. McBride spoke to Ms. Dean’s comment about earlier signatures and dates. When negotiating real
estate deals, when you want to get the best deal and don’t want someone to come take it out from
under you, you keep it all on the QT. I don’t think anyone can argue that getting that building for
$75,000 is going to be a bad investment.

Scott Jolcover, VC landowner: He's been in real estate for close to 40 years. If the county ends up at
the end of the fiscal year $75,000 in the red, and needs to liquidate this building, he will be glad to
give them $75,001.

Commissioner Sjovangen reiterated that sometimes things need to be kept close to the chest to get
the best deal.

Motion: Approve the action of the County Manager and the Comptroller to purchase the former
Bank of America building for $75,000, Action: Approve Moved by Commissioner Sjovangen
Seconded by Chairman McBride Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=2)




14. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Confirm the action of the County Manager Pat Whitten
and Building Inspector Shannon Gardner to reject all bids for the Courthouse Roof Repair and
initiate a new bid cycle soliciting bids for a complete tear-off and re-roof.

County Manager Pat Whitten: We had gone out to bid about two weeks ago were opening bids on
repair of the courthouse roof. Kodiak Roofing bid $97,375, Tom Goldston Roofing bid $37,145, and
Watershed Systems bid $56,789 which was late so non-qualified. Watershed Systems also, at
Shannon Gardner’s request, ran a bid to tear the whole thing off and install it correctly. That estimate
caught our eyes as it came in just under $100,000. Several other roofers had inspected it and refused
to repair it because it was not the right solution. We had to act quickly to get it back out to bid and
hopefully get it done before the snow season is upon us. Cherie Nevin has landed us a $25,000 grant
through CCA (Commission on Cultural Affairs). The red roof is not historical, so they are looking at
the Washoe Club’s “copper penny” color, and the flagpole will probably come down and not be
replaced.

Shannon Gardner, Storey County Building Inspector: This issue with repairing the roof is that we
will be faced with repair again in 5-10 years. This is a very important historical building. There is
currently deterioration happening to the front fagade and the main reason behind that is moisture
penetration. The majority of the contractors that came to look at it were uncomfortable doing a repair
on work that has been done inadequately by someone in the past. Anything worth doing is worth
doing right, so it is my recommendation to move forward with soliciting bids to do a complete tear-
off, full ice and water shield membrane with standing seam hidden fastener roofing system with a
guarantee and life-expectancy of about 50 years. This will allow us to move forward in addressing
the facade.

Mr. Whitten added that the funding sources for those other repairs to the building have all said that
the roof needs to be addressed first.

Commissioner Sjovangen asked if there had been discussion of seismic retrofitting. Mr. Gardner
answered that no, that had not been addressed, but it is a consideration worth discussing. It is
another large expense though and due to the recession he had been looking at the lowest cost
approach. Though he is recommending spending more money and doing it right, it is still to save
money in the long run. There is no evidence of structural failure and he is pretty confident in its
structural integrity.

Mr. McBride: The first problem is that the roof was put on wrong. He commends Mr. Gardner on this
recommendation.

Mr. Whitten commended Mr. Gardner and Cherrie Nevin for their work on making this happen.
Motion: Reject all bids for the Courthouse Roof Repair and initiate a new bid cycle soliciting bids for
a complete tear-off and re-roof, Action: Approve Moved by Commissioner Sjovangen Seconded by
Chairman McBride Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=2)

15. DISCUSSION (No Action - No Public Comment): Committee/Staff Reports

Virginia City Senior Center Director April Enloe:
5




o Completed Title C3 grants and the Homebound grants that should be awarded in the next
two weeks.

e Nevada Legal Services - Ella Trajillo comes to help the seniors with wills and such.

e Access to Healthcare - Program to help with signing up for Medicare, Veterans Benetfits,
Food, Shelter. Every Wednesday Crystal Ravadelli comes to help.

e We do have a lot of needy, homebound seniors. I'm able to check on them regularly. There is

a lot of Elder abuse/exploitation. We file a lot of reports on that.

e We've gone on two field trips; Art Town and Farmers Market. We used our Bingo Fund to do

the trips.
e Melinda, our cook is on vacation, so I'll be cooking all next week so come and eat.

Mr. Whitten mentioned a person associated with the senior center protested a payment that could
have gone to the VC Senior Center. He asked if she was comfortable with the funding she was

receiving from the County. She said she works out a budget and is currently $338 in the red but will
figure out what to do with that. He verified then that someone saying they represented the Senior
Center and that they needed $25,000 in funding, that that would not be an accurate statement, and

Ms. Enloe agreed.

Community Chest & Storey County Library, Pam Abercrombie:

The Storey County Library has moved downstairs into the old HAWC location. We will also
be providing case management, counseling, and community health services. She submitted a
picture of the circulation desk and explained that they are still in the process of moving the
library. The library director has extended an open invitation for input on how it is all to be set
up. Hours in VC are Tues-Wed 2-7 and Fri-Sat 10-3. She submitted a picture of the Mark Twain
location and said that numbers there are coming up.

McAvoy Layne & Shiloh, Home Means Nevada final show- Nov. 1st at Pipers will be a
fundraiser for the library. $15 presale and $20 at the door. They are on Facebook.

Thrive Conference will talk about transforming communities and connecting to resources and
community networks and will be hosted by Lyon County Human Services, Health
Communities Coalition and Community Chest. Sept. 19 from 9am-3pm in Silver Springs.

Public Works Director Mike Nevin:

Phase I of the Sewer Rehabilitation Project is progressing as well as can be expected. We are
working with the NDEP on a potential dumping of hazardous materials from many years
back. Back in the mining heyday, many of the underground operations used a flat cable for
hoisting works and with that a tar-like lubricant. We discovered some remnants underneath
the liner of the lagoon when we removed it. It looks like they will allow us to leave it in place
as long as we provide two feet of cover over it. Another issue is that in the storm drainage
channel that will come around the plant and tie back into the canyon there are naturally
occurring higher levels of arsenic in the soil. Those areas will be buried two feet under the
surface and then be undisturbed.
Last week we worked on the B Street houses disconnecting the water and sewer. Hopefully all
four houses will be relocated in the next couple weeks.
The pool will close after the last day of operation on Sunday Aug. 17t
I've spoken to our counterparts on the Marlette Lake side of the mountain and crew of two
have taken it upon themselves to do some work on the north portal of the tunnel which is a
significant source for the artesian spring water that feeds the Comstock. Just with a little

6




cleanup, they think they have netted another 25 gallons per minute. With the moisture we’ve
had in the last few days, the pump from Marlette Lake into Hobart has been temporarily shut
down which is a good sign as buildup of stream runoff is helping to save the resource.

o There has been a lot of work going on in TRI Seasonals have been weeding. Some flash flood
damage was taken care of quickly.

o We will be re-decking the traffic runners on the Painted Rock Bridge probably next week.

Mzr. Nevin introduced Mr. Scott Jolcover, Director of Business Development for Comstock Mining;:

e Mr. Jolcover made a presentation of the fine monies being directed to the county through
NDEP of $216,000. Mr. McBride noted that these funds would have gone to another county
had CMI not stepped up to the plate and offered to pay an additional amount of money to
make sure that it went to Storey County. Mr. Whitten commended Mr. Jolcover, Mr. De
Gasperis, and CMI for not just paying the fine and moving on with business. The $100,000
being directed to the pond projects made the difference in them actually happening. The
remainder is going toward the shortfall on what insurance did not cover on replacement of
the street sweeper that burned up earlier this year.

Emergency Management Director Joe Curtis:

o For the past year, Carson, Lyon, Douglas, and Storey emergency managers have been meeting
to discuss the compilation of a four county plan for emergency operation centers. Cherie
Nevin and I have obtained a grant to come up with Storey County’s portion of $5,000 to add
to what the other counties are adding in. This puts us all on the same page with our
emergency operating plans.

e Federal Grant Process through the State of the Emergency Management Planning Grant. For
years I've been after the State because I have felt that Storey County gets a little short changed
due to formulas they use for distributing this Homeland Security money. I have the ear of the
State and a meeting next week to discuss it and may be able to get some more money for the
County.

e Emergency exercises are also being looked at and planned for the future.

Community Services Director Cherie Nevin:

e October 18th Health Fair at Piper’s Opera House from 10am-2pm: Flu shots, Pneumonia shots,
and Shingles vaccines. Insurance will be accepted. Sliding fee scale and no one will be turned
away.

e Community Chest has submitted a proposed scope of work to Carson City Health and
Human Services to provide community health and prevention services with a provision to
transition to primary care at some point in the future. Hope to have community health
nursing sometime this fall.

¢ Senior Center Kitchen Improvement Project: With approval of today’s grant award should
begin soon.

Comptroller Hugh Gallagher:

e Park Tax Fund examination is complete. Roughly - as of 3/31/14 Lockwood will have a
balance total of $16,000, Mark Twain $20,000, Miner’s Park $1800, and the Highlands $19,000.
We've waited but not received a response from Dave Thomas. When we have booked the total
for the year ended 6/30/14, we will submit to the auditors for confirmation and appropriate




interest calculations and it should be on the audit for this year. Commissioner Sjovangen
commended Mr. Gallagher, Dean Haymore, and Stacy Bucchaneri for their work on this.

Sheriff Gerald Antinoro:
e National Night Out is still on for this evening 3pm at Miner’s Park, 4pm at Louis Perry Park
e Community Emergency Response Team had several members go to Carson City this past
weekend and help out with the State Fair. He mentioned that any money coming from the
State grants could be used but the group for equipment and clothing.

County Manager Pat Whitten:

e On behalf of Chief Hames - extended deep thanks to Bob Morris on assistance with a couple of
issues including a disagreement with a fire suppression company installing sprinklers in TRI,
and a company that performed a ground explosion with no permits. The clear and concise
ordinances that he has helped draft that kept us on solid ground.

¢ On the houses being moved: The yellow one is scheduled first and is the CMI house. The next,
white one is being donated to the Cemetery foundation and CMI has donated the cost of the
move. The first are due to move this weekend, and the others should follow shortly thereafter.

e We had a catastrophic Internet failure yesterday that wasn’t caused by the county, but affected
the entire system and we are still recovering. We apologize for those who could not get onto
our website and we are probably running a bit behind on emails as well.

e Tesla did announce last week that Northern Nevada, Tahoe Reno Industrial Center has been
selected as a potential site for their gigafactory. We are talking about 5-10 million square feet,
currently 1000 acres, and an overall investment could approach $5 billion. 6500 jobs is very
attractive and we should feel honored that they have selected us this far into the process. We
have permitted and helped move 3 million cubic yards of earth by a local Northern Nevada
excavation contractor. We are the only of the five sites to have that much money, investment,
and work poured into it. The terms of the non-disclosure were mitigated with that
announcement last Thursday.

16. BOARD COMMENT (No Action - No Public Comment)
Commissioner Sjovangen reported that at the Railway Commission he addressed the need to
peg down a mutually agreeable number prior to the next meeting Sept. 8th. He is convinced that
we have the correct number which is right about $1 million.

Chairman McBride provided an overview of his and staff’s visit to New Orleans to attend the
Nation Association of Counties annual conference. He listed several of the types of classes and
workshops that were offered.

Mr. Whitten extended apologies for the absence of Commissioner Gilman. The reason for his
absence has to do with negotiations with another large company interested in TRIL This company
is looking at approximately 400 acres with 4 million square feet and potentially adding 1000 new
employees.

The Chair called for a 10 minute recess at 11:26am; The Chair called the meeting back to order at
11:39am




17. DISCUSSION (No Action): Restoration of the Official Map of Gold Hill, NV, Recorded Jen
Chapman

Jen Chapman, Storey County Recorder: Gave a Power Point presentation on the map and the
restoration. She invited and encouraged anyone interested in seeing it to come to the Recorder’s office
as it is displayed on the wall there.

18. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval and acceptance of the 2014 Community
Development Block Grant (CDBG) award in the amount of $25,000 for kitchen and transportation
improvements at the Storey County Senior Center in Virginia City and authorization for Cherie
Nevin and/or Dessie Redmond to sign all associated grant documentation.

Grants and Emergency Management Coordinator, Cherie Nevin: Explained the proposed uses for
the grant funds.

Motion: Approve and accept the 2014 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) award in the
amount of $25,000 for kitchen and transportation improvements at the Storey County Senior Center
in Virginia City and authorization for Cherie Nevin and/or Dessie Redmond to sign all associated
grant documentation, Action: Approve Moved by Commissioner Sjovangen Seconded by Chairman
McBride Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=2)

19. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Renewal of Interlocal Agreement for GIS Services between
Douglas County and Storey County in the amount of $55,000.

Pat Whitten explained the nature of the value of the agreement. He thanked Jana Seddon, Storey
County Assessor for her contributions to it.

Jana Seddon, Storey County Assessor: GIS also plays a huge part in our aerial pictometry.

Chairman McBride asked if this is the same amount budgeted in the past, and Mr. Whitten
confirmed that it is.

Motion: Approve the renewal of Interlocal Agreement for GIS Services between Douglas County and
Storey County in the amount of $55,000, Action: Approve Moved by Commissioner Sjovangen
Seconded by Chairman McBride Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=2)

20. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Resolution 14-407 to provide Medium-Term
financing in order to purchase up to nine vehicles not to exceed $300,000.

Comptroller Hugh Gallagher: We may not spend all or any of the money, but this is to get the ball
rolling so it can be presented and approved by the Department of Taxation so we can move forward.
This is for requests for 5 patrol cars for the Sheriff’s Department, replacement of 2 unsafe vehicles for
commissioners, one for Dean Haymore in the Building Department whose consistent travels to TRI
has put an undue burden on his vehicle, and one for Jana Seddon for the rocky roads of the
Highlands and inclement weather when she is out assessing properties. In each of these instances,
the replaced vehicles will be traded in, passed on to others in the county that may be able to utilize
them, or auctioned.




Mr. Whitten clarified that this is a mechanism that allows them to begin to shop. There are
requirements for the vehicles other than the patrol cars in that they must be white, in the current
model year, and American made. We are looking at the options that may include USDA funding.

Sheriff Antinoro: Clarified that this is just an option. The monies were allocated for the purchase and
setup of the patrol cars.

Chairman McBride explained that they made this large enough to encompass all the vehicle
purchase just in case they need to use it.

Motion: Approve Resolution 14-407 to provide Medium-Term financing in order to purchase up to
nine vehicles not to exceed $300,000, Action: Approve Moved by Commissioner Sjovangen Seconded
by Chairman McBride Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=2)

21. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: For possible action approval of Payroll Check date
07/03/2014 for $481,198.13, 07/18/2014 $332,354.81 and $5,610.31. Accounts Payable date for
7/11/14 for $1,608,111.75 and $3,100.06, 7/25/14 $626,392.58 and $12,864.54

Mr. Whitten explained that it has been a question in the past as to whether Chairman McBride may
or may not vote on a “Bucket of Blood” check that is payment under a contract that was executed
prior to his current commission. Usually we place this outside the consent agenda once per quarter so
that it may be voted on and Commissioner McBride may abstain. As Commissioner Gilman is not
present, staff’'s recommendation is to approve the claims exclusive of check 79513 for $4500.

Motion: Approve claims exclusive of check 79513 for $4,500, Action: Approve Moved by
Commissioner Sjovangen Seconded by Chairman McBride Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote
(summary: Yes=2)

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND PLANNING

22. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: The applicant requests amendment to existing Special Use
Permit No. 2000-222-A-3 to modify and expand applicable land area and allowable uses. The
amendments apply to mining, processing, mine definition, exploration, and ancillary uses on the
subject land in American Flat and Gold Hill. The location of the land subject to this SUP request
is located approximately in Township 16 North, Range 20 East, Sections 1 and 12; and Township
16 North, Range 21 East, Sections 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, and 9 (MDB&M). The item is recommended for
continuation pursuant to pending action by Planning Commission.

Senior Plannet/Administrative Officer Austin Osborne: Recommended continuation to September
2nd

Motion: Continue the applicant requests to amend the existing Special Use Permit No. 2000-222-A-3
to modify and expand applicable land area and allowable uses to the September 2,2014 at 10:00am,
the meeting will be held in the District Courtroom, Action: Approve Moved by Commissioner
Sjovangen Seconded by Chairman McBride Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary:
Yes=2)

10




23. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Variance 2014-006: By Joyce Kveum at a property located
at 109 South C Street, Virginia City, Nevada 89440 (APN 001-074-03) for a business commonly
known as Comstock Corner Café. The applicant requests a variance for the purpose of changing
the allowed width and length of a sign which will be attached to the porch of the business.

Denise Redmond: Recommended continuation to August 19% as the applicant could not be here
today.

Motion: Continue Variance 2014-006: By Joyce Kveum at a property located at 109 South C Street,
Virginia City, Nevada 89440 (APN 001-074-03) for a business commonly known as Comstock Corner
Café to August 19, 2014 at 10:00am, the meeting will be held in the District Courtroom, Action:
Approve Moved by Commissioner Sjovangen Seconded by Chairman McBride Vote: Motion carried
by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=2)

24. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION, LICENSING BOARD SECOND READINGS:
A.WIZE SOLUTIONS, INC.-Contractor /2724 South 3600 West-W Valley City, UT (Contractor)
B. MURPHY BUILT CONST- 620 Tahoe Street-Reno (Contractor)
C.NETRONIX INTEGRATION, INC.- 2170 Paragon Drive-San Jose, CA (Contractor)

Mr. Whitten, speaking on behalf of Austin Osborne and Dean Haymore: Staff recommends
approval of all three licences.

Motion: Approve second readings, Action: Approve Moved by Commissioner Sjovangen Seconded
by Chairman McBride Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=2)

25. CORRESPONDENCE (No Action)
a. Denied request from Mark Joseph Phillips to discuss missing documents related to the “Gold

Hill Nevada Area Zoning Map.”
26. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)

Mr. Whitten speaking for Jack McGuffey read: Though a central ‘C’ Street location would be
preferred, would a restroom be beneficial in the new Parking lot as water and sewer is readily
available?

Mark Joseph Phillips, Storey County Resident: A month after the Gold Hill Zoning Map
amendment, it is still not available to the public. It would be prudent for it to be back in the
Recorder’s office before September 2nd, We discussed earlier the excessive water/sewer bill and the
senior discount is only offered on the water, not the sewer side of the bill. Our petition to have a
ballot question concerning having 5 commissioners for Storey County was insufficient. [ would like
to thank Bill Maddox for a five page letter that is a step by step process for success next time.

Senior Planner/Administrative Officer Austin Osborne: The zone change is complete, but the map
reflecting them is not complete. We expect it will be brought to the board for approval in a couple
weeks.

11




27. ADJOURNMENT
The meeting was adjourned at the call of the Chair at 12:21pm

Respectfully Submitted,

Vanessa Stephens, Clerk Treasurer

12




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: August 19,2014 Estimate of time required: 5 min.

Agenda: Consent [X] Regular agenda [] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Approval of Treasurer Report for July 2014

2. Recommended motion: Approval of report as submitted

3. Prepared by: Vanessa Stephens
Department: Clerk & Treasurer Telephone: 847-0969

4. Staff summary: Report is attached.

5. Supporting materials:

6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
7. Legal review required:
District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
' Department Head Department Name: Clerk & Treasurer

//;_th; Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

p— —
Ty

Agenda Item No.



00"

00"

00"

92695 %

00"
-90'6LY TS
-60"509'%SS
-S8°¥8L'¥22'T

60°9%6 16
-85'S%E‘ZIE
-96'T69°18L T
-96°%S0°L

co”
-zLrZsLLE
-0S'TVE’S
-99°v88’2¢

00"

-9Z°30% ‘%9
-13'588°86
-¥S PTIT’'8T
-88°Z8%'ZVT
-00"00S
-z8'159'€Tv T
-$E€'899°SST

00"

-00'099
-00'000°000°T
-00'¥%5°522°T
-BZ'¥SE EET T
-T6"LT0'8E
€L LEDFPT
-00"000 ‘00T
-€%"169°'88

-LZ"660°999
-06"9¢€'%0C

657892°08€

-00°002
-7L 81T 82¢'T
-00° %1
-%8°L%S 10S
-T9"LLz'6EE’6

00°00Z

00°000°2
00°00T'T
0gT6ey

0L %68°8LT'8

05°20Z'6ST L

68°%8Z/9€E ‘Y

00"

00"

STTLIYPES

LB TE6 "9

00700Z'066°T
-06°%26°T

00"

00"
00"
ool
00’
00*
00"
00’
[loly
oo’
00"
00"
0o0°
00"
00"
00”
00"
00"
00"
00"
00*
00"
oo’
oo*
00"
00"
00"
00"
00"
0o
00"
00"
00"
00"
00"
00"
00"
00"
00"
00"
00"
00"
00"
00"
00"
00"
00~
00"
[
[efols
00"
00"
00"
00"

0o’

0o’
oo’
o0o-
00-
0p”

00"
00"
09"
co-

[y
og”
oo’
L
oo
0o
0o’
00"
99
o0
00"
00"

oo’

0o-
0o-
09"
oo”

00" 00"

00" 00"

00" 00"

00" 6 TEO"
00" 00"

00" 85°2Z6°
00" €2°500"
00° 00"

00° 997159’
-00°'0%L € 00"

00" 00"

00" 00"

00" 00"

00" 00"

oo’ 00"

00" 00°

00" 00"

00" 00"

00" 00"

00" 00"

00" 00°

00" 00"

00" 00"

00" S8°906 "
00" 00"

00" 00"

00" 00"

00" £z v6Z"
00" 00"

00" 00"

0o* 00"

00" 00"

00" 00"

00" TT°L90°
00" 00"

00" SLTEER’
0o” 00"

00" TL 6TY°
00" 00"

00" 00"
0070%L°E PLOETT'
00" 00"

00° 00"

00" 00"

00" 00"

00" 00"

00° 0c"

00" -9z'z9g’
00" 00"

0o0* 00"

00" 00"

00° 00"

00" 00"

00° 00"

HONVTYE ONIANZ LNO SAFASNYEL NI SETISNYAL

T a2bed

SUEHON0A NINOL  STTICIAYL

[Uo

00"
00"

¥ LBLES
00"

61T €5 F9L LY

1z LS ¥LS'E9
00"

34 Sz°8z9'9
£0'5Z€"€6
00"

00"

Qo*

00'86%
06"LLT"TT
00"

00"
15°60€'2ST
¥9°9Z%'T
€7 68T‘STT
8E PO ESL
00°€Z5°8
T E6L 48

L L6°8LB'F
00"

00"
co*

fas 6T°S0L'TT
00"
0s'zZ8 'L
00"
0C"
$T'6%0°2

1T LL"9ES'9
00"

vz 96°STT €L
00"

LE 0T %ES ‘82
00"
0Z*0€T 0T

TIS SET9STZEE
00"

00"
00"
00"
00"
00"

¥L8 -15°TZ0°'9s52’'¢

00"
00"
00"
00"
00"
00"

00"

00"
00"
00"
00"

-LT"99T"
-6T"SPS’

00"
00~

-65"8BET '

-80°L

-00°008
00"

-SZ°0%L

-50°T00"
-00"E9%’

00°

-TE°TI8% "

-99°6%6

-99°¥vL’
-£5°698"°

-0D70€T
00"

~-52'0S%’

00"
00"
00"

-oLzLE!
-S8° €15’

00"

-€6°€56°

00"
00"
00"
00"
00"
-00"00T

-15°265"

00~

-8L°%00"
-L8°2E%’

00"
00°
00"
00"
00"
00"

7Y LEE

oo’
oo*
00"
00°0CE
00"
00"

SINIWISANASIA SIAITITL

$T0T/L0 ¥OA
JITHS DNIONYTYH ATHLNOW
DNIINNCODY SwdTANSTHAL
YITANSTIRL ALNNOD AFAOLS

00"

00"
00"
00"
00"

612 00"

8ZT -0L"6€9°0TS
-S8°¥8L'¥Z2°T
8109919

14 -Z0"ZTL'9S¢E
-88"%89'T8L T
-96°%55°'S
00"
-L¥ 0TS LE

€ -5€7815°9¢Z

T -99°TZ% ‘1€
00°

79 -9¥ ¥ET TST
-65°29€°66

8z -TE“6SS PFT

6%T -EL LS9 'SPL
-00°€£68°8
-P6°FPT 806 °C

0z -16° €00 ‘87T
00"
-00'09¢9
-00°000°000'T

zs -ZTLOLT'66T'T

6T -E€F 0FRETIT ‘T
-T%°058°S%

6 -08"€80 ‘FET
-00"000°00T
-LS 0%L 06
-ST"€0L°€89
-06"9€€'¥0T
L8°8BTL Z8T
-00"00T

s9 -80°06%'8ZE°T
-00"FT

4 -92'€L9'60S

80L -¥8' VST 8LY ‘6
00700z
0070002
00°00T'T
0E"6E¥
0L %68'8LT'8
0S°20Z'6ST ¢

02S'T  ZTTET'9%6°'S
00"
00"
ST LSV ¥FS
L8°1T9'9
0070020662
-06°%Z6°T

QITYMI0d " TYH

SaNNd TTY TYIOL

ONIQTOH SEXYL QIUNDES 006
ONIQTIOH SAXYI QEINDESNN 008
aIv TYOLOW 04T

ADNEDIEWZ ZFIA 09T
IJTELSIA F¥Id 0SZ
NOISSIWWOD WSI¥NOL DA 0£C
IJEro¥d TIVE DA 022

aNna a1 TIYL S IJINEHS 01T
SILNVHO TvdHdEZd 907

MOYEAYE I¥L 00T

aNng Muvd 06T

13N Il 68T

aNnd 1¥N0D EFDILSAL £8T
INZAIDOY INIDIANI S8T
I3N0D IOI¥LSIA 08T

qQIv¥0od NOILVIEOEE ¥ ¥IVA SLT
HIVIS OLT

aNnd ADOTONHDEL S9T

1820 TOOHDS 09T

TOCHDS 0ST

14002 SN¥d 0%T

0D¥Yd STIEM ANO” ¥dsn SeT
¥AMES EAIAIA YINIDYIA O€T
ALID YINIDYIA JO NMOL 0TT
TIIH 109 40 NMOL OTT
NOILYZITIEYLS 00T

WALSAS JIALYM 060

aNNd FEOLONALSYEINI 080
SIJEro¥d TYLILYD 040
NOILISTNOOY INIWAINDE 090
FJIAYIS 050

ary TYALOW S0

IDI¥ISIA Z¥IA 0%0
ADNEDYEWE FdId S€0

a¥I3 0€0

NOILNLILSHEE ¥Z0

Sayod 020

X¥l- EDNVISISSY INZODIANI STO
TEIIQIW INZDIANI 0TO
TYHENED 100

YOSSESSY HSYD ALLEd 506
J4TYIHS HSYD ALLEd %06
HSYD ALLId €06

SNICD d10 T06

LINNODDY dIDT ILWLS 96T
IINIYW AZNOW 0D¥Yd STIaM T6T
INNODDY DD OD¥Wd STTEM 66T
SITYS ALIEd0dd ¥ 40 € B6T
SAEYID NANVE SSENISOH L6T
MNYE NI HSYD S6T

DNIQTIOH I¥N0D IDIVLSIA ¥6T
HSYD ¥dSQ ODYWd STIIM €61
FONVINSNI HLTYEH 26T

NOILAI¥OSEA 1OY

0519260 PT/TT/80 :uny
00TZdL :oN 3zcdey



6T°€55'9 1Te30L
6T €559 1 Te30L Mued
00°ST¥% YT/LT/9
0% 0LT PT/LT/9
0T 0% 60/%1/C1T
067 L9 $T/L2/9
00°S6C ¥1/L2/9
00°0% Y1/L2/9
6T°G¢€ vT/L2/9
00°90T ¥1/L2/9
00 0% PT/ET/9
Sv° S YT/€T/9
$5°6G9 YI/ET/9
00°991 ¥T/€1/9
00°9L ¥T1/91/S
00 08T $¥T/T0/S
00709 YT/TC/€
00°89T°T ¥1/L0/¢€
99°T9S vI/L0/€
00°0¢€ €T/T0/1T
0T 2T €T/8T/0T
6% 8¢ €T/%0/0T
00°0S¢€ €1/02/6
05 LT £€1/02/6
0z 8S¢ £€1/90/6
00°6L €1/60/8
TI9°€0T €1/92/L
00 0ST €1/82/9
00°08T €1/%1/9
00°€¢ €T/S2/T
ZT LET €1/€0/T
S8°¢ ZT/0€/1T
66°6 Z1/01/8
00°2€ IT/%0/TT
00°02 IT/12/%
€6 08T 0T/21/¢€
9% " 8% 60/02/1T
¥6°GT 60/91/1
€€ L 80/T0/L
86°G 80/T0/L
00°s2 80/61/S
00°L¥%C 80/81/¢
S8 LT L0/81T/CT
Junowuy 23ed XOosUpD
¥T/T€/L - 00/00/0

666666 UbnoIulL T #303UD

s3oayD burpuriasino

DONILNNODOV SuwdHIINSYHIL
ALNNOD AHIOLS

T obeg

NATHSY ‘dHHOVTIIVD
ALLCOS/NATINYW ‘dOTSNYHO
HILIL NYDINHAWY LSAIA

SAS JALYM SMOAYHW HIMDNAL
ONINIVIL AONHDY 2ITdnd
OOV ‘ AHAENNW

NY3Id ‘dIOWAVH

HYJO09Hd ‘YHANAE

ODIYI ‘ AHAENKW

d LIYdIEd TIYODN

MYYW ‘NOSANOWAHE

III TENNYW NHOL ‘NOMXd
ONI DIDOTHAOD

ILDHLO¥d H¥IdA AFTIVA HMYT
AN A0 DOSSY S(d0SSHASSY
ONI DIDOTEIOD

JA0 JHIWVHD AHTIVA NOSIYD
HYI09ddd ‘¥adaNId

NATHEH A¥YW ‘dEDIFD

dADHA AZN

HO¥HId  ‘T1TEMO4d

HAYS ¥ SSYTD ‘MD0T M % D
MDOIYIVd INEDNHE ‘AHTINWS
ONI dNYEavodd LOdS IOH
NONNVD ’'NOQJ0D

YOI

HYYOddd ‘¥HIANIG

¥ OIAVIDO ‘YILSHID

(DD) INYdO¥d HIVILS Id
SI¥0d ‘¥INAVH

dT INYJOdd SYDIIATNY

ONI HDIAYHES TYDHHT YAYAIN
JoNdd  LEYHIYYDIA

dId ‘a¥Ed AANQ¥D ‘¥HJTINA
HFEYISHA ‘DHIMANT

MAYID ‘ONITHHN
YNILSI®N ' Lind

HOIEA ‘¥HIIYMaONd

AdTYA I NIAHM

SNYOT HWOH HAIMANINNOD
DTT SYIANINYd S99

sweN 9skoTdug/Iopusp

woxg
woxg

05:LZ:60

LSYH0%
80VTO¥
€8¢€00T
SE6C0V
TLYVOY
688¢€0¥
LLB800T
656€07%
688¢0¥%
0S¥¥70¥%
6S7¥07%
TIS?v0¥
LLOEOY
TZP¥0¥
T90€0T
LLIEOY
SECTYO¥
656¢£07
[k a4k
¥6CZ¥0%
88CV0¥%
S€00T

6LZV0%
€5L€07
0eCy 0¥
0L900T
696€07
8C6¢c0¥
86866

L90% 0%
676E£0%
69ZT0T
T89¢€0%
S¥6C0¥
6CVE0Y
8LYTOV
S90¢€0¥%
€50¢c0¥%
S66207%
S6TTOYV
6€620F

00 ¢Se6t
00 S6T
00 S6T
00 GeT
00 S61
00 S6T
00 S61
00 S6T
00 S6T
00 S6T
00 S6T
00 S6T
00 S6T
00 G671
00 S6T
00 S6T
00 S6T
00 S6T
00 S6T
00 S6T
00 S6T
00 S6T
00 S6T
00 S6T
00 g6t
00 S6T
00 S6T
00 S6T1
00 Se61
00 S61
00 S6T
00 G6T
00 G6T1T
00 S6T
00 S6T
00 S6T
00 S6T
00 S6T
00 S6T
00 S6T
00 S6T

# uosiad bags sueg

: dWIL unyg

YT/TT/80
29LTad

TLO6L dA
89064 dA
TISS9  da
10264 D
SLTI6L D
SST6L  AD
TeT6elL AD
86064 D
8868L D
$868L D
TS68L D
6T68L D
0TL8L D
¥Z98L D
STZ8L D
ceT8L D
€ZTI8L D
8LOLL MDD
€L69L D
0L89L D
9€L9L D
S$99L D
10994 D
T6T9L D
62T9L D
TZ8SL D
€995L M
STISPL D
zZ8Z¥L D
¥90%L D
86624 D
€960L D
LCT69 AD
%1299 MO
8€€£59 D
S€9Z9 D
S6809 D
TE809 D
€€%¥09 D
02865 D
6€T6S A
# sosuyd di
S3eg unyg

:ON 3xoday



L9 SLS 6SE Te30L

L9 SLS6SE *Telol ueg
TS 6¥1€C ¥I/TC/L 6LLS9G6GTY/HI1EY 1S AHN 050006 00 661 9TZ¥e dd
9€°€6T %S vT/12/L 6LLG9G65TY/IILEY 1S AEN 050006 00 66T s1Zve dd
€C°TTS »1/81/L TYANYS ‘NIVOONW TP6T 00 66T 68T¥%c dd
ST TII0‘T +1/8T/L L 99899 ‘SSHH CTT 00 66T 88T¥%E€ dd
YT 8ET ‘¥4 PL/E0/L 6LLS9S6STY/ATLEE IS AIN 050006 00 66T 08T%e ¥4
00 0¥%T PL/SZ/L dA SANVYTHOIH VINIDHEIA €CTLEOT 00 66T 89L6L D
05°209°'9 ¥T/S2/L 0D ¥Y HHEMDNAL 3 VINIDYUIA 768¢€07% 00 661 29L6L D
00°SLT pL/S2/L ONI SHININIA-TIHL LYTEOT 00 66T 09L6L D
00°662°'C r1/S2/L SAOCEMOD HENOLSHWOL HHL TO06€E0% 00 661 85L6L XD
00°00T ¥I/ST/L aadd ‘NOSNVYMS ¥8Y707 00 66T 9sL6L D
00 01891 ?1/S2/L ININLIVAHA HITIA OD IS STLEOT 00 66T csLel  MD
08°L8 PT/SZ/L Ydd TTYNOILVYN HIVLIS JHATIS £C6E0T 00 66T 6¥L6L MO
00°6¢ wi/S¢/L NHTIY NYI¥E ‘JAYOHS LBTFO¥ 00 66T ovLeL XD
8L°08T'9 ¥1/S2/L ONI SHOIAYES TYE0TID DHS O0TZCTOT 00 661 S¥L6L D
97 €S9 wr/sz/L (¥D) ONI 0D NUVDJIOW ATd LE6CTOT 00 66T o¢€L6L MDD
0S°0CT y1/S2/L W YIANYS ‘qaI0davyd c06¢c0¥ 00 661 SeLeL D
00°006'T vI/S2/L JHMOd HESYHOUNd 90¢€¢c0T 00 66T ceLel XD
Z¥%°9CT v1/s2/L ONI SHMOY AHNLIA FEVTOT 00 66T g8cLeL MDD
29°9T¢E v1/S2/L ONI TOJLNOD OISAHA 6€920T 00 66T ocLel D
00" 99T P1/S2/L d OTEHNY ‘INI¥LHAL S568¢07% 00 66T scLelL MDD
00°1I8T’Z p1/S2/L OTT DNILTIASNOD NOILION €9T70% 00 66T 6TLEL 2D
00°0S§¢ PTI/SE/L DT SHOIANYHS TYIHdHA ALIN 0ELE0? 00 66T 8TL6L D
05°S9T'T FL/SE/L YddN 068C0T 00 66T LTL6L 2D
ST 8LS'TT PL/Se/L YHANEAHT DITdNd AIN 6TETOT 00 66T €TL6L D
00°s€8’T P1/SE/L HOATTIOD TYIDIdAL TYNOILUYN 628¢€0¥% 00 66T 60L6L D
00°S8T°C ¥L/SZ/L D11 SINHAE FNTE dINOIT CO0T?07% 00 661 TOL6L 2D
ZE€E6L8°TT PL/SZ/L ONIYHANIONH LSHM ddvd STCEOY 00 66T €896L D
08°80T PT/SZ/L ONI ¥Sfl SHOIVYAd 98%%0¥% 00 661 Z¢896L D
ELLYE yI/sz/L SNOIILNTOS SNd DE5H ODLSOD 0Z000T 00 66T 08964 D
00" LZT FT/S2/L OTT TIIW dI0D MDOLSKHOD L8BEOY 00 66T 8L96L XD
00°0¢€T ¥T/S2/L (DA) HIDINOYHD MDOLSWOD 25966 00 66T LL96L D
00" €66 ¥1/SE/L SIMET IIODS ‘TIIFddnd TLOEOY 00 661 8996L D
SLTPPT PI/TIT/L W YIANYS ‘qdodavd 206€0% 00 66T ZT96L XD
887905821 P1/IT/L OILVSNHAWOO ADNHDVY DITTdNd 68S20T 00 66T 6096L XD
00°00T PL/IT/L HIYLS 40 AUYVLHIDIS AHN SLOEOT 00 66T §6S6L YD
00°00S5’¢ FL/TIT/L IITI HONH ‘JAHOVTITYD Z280¢E0¥% 00 661 TSS6L 2D
00°S8 vI/TT/L NATHSY ‘dHEHOYIIVD LSTY0¥ 00 66T 08S6L D
00" %C¢ ?1/1T/L YANIT ‘OTIVDTEA 00T%0% 00 66T 0¥ses D
00°SCT PL/TI1/L HLLENNY ‘STHINVYA ETTY0¥ 00 66T 6€S6L 2D
00"cLE FL/TIT1/L ¥ OIAYIDO ‘VISdadD 826¢07% 00 66T 9¢sel D
00°00S'¥ P1/TIT/L NOOI¥S ao0T1d 40 LHIDNE 9STTOV 00 66T €TS6L D
00°0cC¢e yI/I1/L ONI DI¥IDATH NOILVHWOLNY EICP0v 00 66T §096L 2D
unowy S3eq oaD suweN =sdoTdug/iopusp # uosisg bog jueg # so=sud di
¥T/1€/L - 00/00/0 woxdq
666666 Ubnoiyl T #3O9UD woxg
SyoayD burpurisino
DNILNNODDOY S MHINSYHIL TE€19€:60 @ 2WIL uny P$I/TT/80 * 230 Uuny

T sbeq ALNNOD AHIOLS Z29LTad :oN 3xodsyd



eT095683 § 95781 & 506 & ©9ive o UOI9LS § 80L  § Z6F0T801 § 99906 § SOTO0E § BLY00Z § OCLLLEC § EGES66 § O90LST 5 €S6L88VL § 19649 S SLISLEST S IVIOLANVYD
008s5'€6T  § - 8 = $ - s - H TZ'E€0'TE $ 6949 $ 0£788 5 0TB8S  § 660v6'C § TZTIS8 $ SLYITWY § - $ 79'TTTvOT s 1510 XW
- 1510 Od
” M . ¢ - $ - s - S - 5 151Q Xd
- $ - T s - % = $ 1510 Xd
ISIN
9Z'6E0'6 S 99781 5 Et0 S BELNS S (£676) 5 80°L $ PLUGIET  § 06°0T S BCLt  § ISt S 9L S PO'WIT  § L'ESE 5 BOLIB'T  § IS § Z606L'Y §  J3ISNNIVIOL
E€E0 $ juawAedsang
v0°L88'L $ SLLST $ ey S 650PT'T  $ 6E6 S TETE $ 28TT  $ 989SE $ 85401 $ 8Z'90E S 850L8T § S9'0TLE $  STOT/¥TOT
68'TST'T $ T6V2 $ L9°vL $ (t6'26) $ 80 $ SU'SLT $ 1ST $ 96v $ o€ $ 06'sS $ ovot $ 6s'Ly $ 69 § 15T $ rTo8s $  dOINd VIOL
SL°8YE $ vS0T $ 65'TE $ (screet)  § €292 $ 590 s we s orT S 8L'€T $ 669 s Y0t $ S6'YOT [ L4 $ wrsyT $  vroz/eToT
p1'£08 S LEVT $ 80°EY $ 8Lve $ 802 $ 267701 $ 980 $ 8T $ 06T § e $ e § seLe $ PSINT $ £8'VEE $ |e10agng
SL'TTE $ wLS $ ozl $ T0'SE $ ;ST $ SE0 $ vTT s 220 $ S6T $ 8¢ § E0TT $ 9T'LS $ 90'SET $ €102/2102
LbE0E $ 9'S $ 9¢'9T § 65°0E $ £5°6€ $ EED [+ $ €0 $ veETT $ v9€ § 1S°0T § 9TvS $ 79'82T s ZT0Z/1T02
T6'LLT $ LTE s 756 $ 8I'6T $ 80¢ $ L8TT $ 870 $ 090 $ ovo S €89 $ 10T 5 18§ $ TT0E $ STTL s T10Z/OTOT
HOSSASSY
£6'79608F § - $§ 8§ - $ Treses § - § LETSL'PL S LO'TE9  $ LPTBOT § OVIGET § vYWIE'EC § 069889 § BS6LBET  § L9UVE'TOT § pOSI6'LY § TTBET'SLI 5 S1v101l 1¥0d3y
- S paJndag punyay
yse’osy  $ = $ 18 $ = $ Trpse’s § - $ LETSLVL § LOIE9 $ LPIS0T § OVTEE'T $ PYPOS'EZ § 06'888'9 § 8SGL6T $ LOLPE'Z0T § bO'STEL9 $ TTBET'SLI $ QIYNIISIVIOL
os'zzg'osy  $ - $ - $ - ] 6Z'ZE60L $ PI'66S $ TTIET § OVEIET § YO'ELT'ZZ § TOGES'Y $ OLVIR'ST & EV'89L6 $ IVELO'ES § 08959°L9T $§ ST/rTIVIOL
0£°096 S ¥6L S 9v'9z S v9LT 8 68667 $ 0788 $ 97's5C S VO'ETET S [/A 1483 5 55355V |edads
soTeL'vy % 65TL6'69 $ OTT6S S 9L'6Y6'T $ ZRTOET § STELBTT § T80SK9 $ PH609'8T § 6€VIE'96 $ Iv'6L0'€9 § 8OTESHIT §  sTOZ/YTOT
wozr'oe § - $ - § = $ TIYvss's § 0 - $ B89'6I8'E § €6'TE $ STSOT $ 00ZL § OVISI'T § 686FE § 8RYIO'T § YTO09T'S $ E9SKEBY § IVI8SL $  YOlddIvlOoL
(oo 5 - s - [ S BLSTET § - S £pe69'T  $ L97TT S vEVL $ ey § L9Tv8 S ELIVT § LT § 6I'8TL'E S €9'SK8'Y § 0TLE6'E §  ¥L0Z/ET07 WIOL
PESLT s SK1 S €8 s e LI e 2 § 0797 S 659 5 9Y'IHe $ L1°0LS S ssassy jewads
8/°ST6T 5 6025’ § WL s 1569 S 6T9% & veL8L $ E9TET S €9°0L9 § EL'9Y'E 5 €SPy § €£'99€'E s ¥T0Z-ET0C
Sr'9s0°0T  § €9'8E6'C § SZT0ZI'T  $ 976 $ 1608 $ 65% % EL8vE §$ oTZ0T § 99°46T § soTwsT § - $ TTHIE H |e3oaqng
»8°28p'6 5 ' 18852 % TT850'T  $ EL8 S TZ6C S el & EE6CE $ SY'96 $ 9T'18C § 9ULSKT S o' vrv'E §  £102-7T07 fei0yL
$53SSY |B1DadS
g’ 1885t TT'8S0'T  § E€L8 $ 1Z'62 $ er'el  § EE6LE $ SV'96 $ 91182 $ 9TULSY'T  § Ot vbb's S5 £102-2102
T9'€L S 79'CE $ £59 $ 00 $ 810 s 1o § <07 § 650 $ ELT $ 9t8 s - $ TETL §  TTOZ-TTOT [e30L
Ss9ssY |e1dads
'79°tE $ 159 S L00 § 810 s o $ soT $ 650 S ELT § 9€8 $ TETT 5 ZT0Z-1102
vty 5 6t°L $ S0 $ 610 S ov'o § s€7 § 0L'0 S 002 § 70T $ iz 74 §  0T10Z/6007
9T'TSh s pILrT S 80'8Y $ Tv0 § €T $ 59T § 00'ST s Ty S e 5 TT99 H STPST $  6007/8007
HIUNSYIHL
101 %zu/v LAIJUAO %9 4/v SALTYNAd  Peqhed ML ¥3IWI/3YH HLNOA 2V aNI a3aw ant avis NOV dv2 4 HIS dO HJS aio 1snani TYINID
S91T 905S9E-T00  YOTHE-TO0 100 ooz 05z 100 S8T 4] oLt 090 09T 0ST 00S-T00 100

102 AINM 40 HINOW 3HL 404 TVA Qv



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: August 19, 2014 Estimate of time required: 0-5 mins

Agenda: Consent [X] Regular agenda[] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: For Possible Action — Approval — Assessor’s Recommended Corrections to Tax Roll for
Partial Property Tax Abatements pursuant to NRS 361.4722 through 361.4724

2. Recommended motion: Approval

3. Prepared by: Tobi Whitten
Department: Assessor’s Office Telephone: 847-0961

4. Staff summary: Nevada Revised Statutes 361.4722 through 361.4724 provide a partial
property tax abatement (implemented as a “cap”) for certain existing owner-occupied and
qualifying residential rental properties. Status verification cards and affidavits are typically
due back to our office on or before June 15" of the preceding fiscal year, but circumstances
beyond a taxpayer’s control may cause a delay and, as a result, the proper “cap” does not
get applied to the tax bill. If the Assessor’s Office determines that the proper “cap” has not
been applied, the tax bill may be amended by the Clerk-Treasurer at the direction of the
Board and a new tax bill or a refund be mailed to the affected taxpayer.

5. Supporting materials: Please see attached letter, which lists affected properties.

6. Fiscal impact: Unknown

Funds Available: Fund; Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
___ District Attorney

—
’

8. Reviewed by: C

_X__ Department Hea cpartment Name: Assessor’s Office

mldv County Manager ‘ Other agency review:

" 9. Board action:
[] Approved [] Approved with Modifications
[] Denied [] Continued

Agenda Item No.



STOREY COUNTY COURTHOUSE

m m 26 South B Street
P.0. Box 494

STOREY COUNTY ASSESSOR M narGIEVNVEGO4 30

(775) 847-0961 Phone
(775) 847-0904 Fax
Assessor@storeyCounty.org

August 6, 2014
Memo to: STOREY COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

Re: Corrections for Partial Property Tax Abatements

The following have been approved by the Storey County Assessor’s Office to receive the 3%
Property Tax Abatement (“Cap”) for the 2014-15 fiscal year:

APN OWNER(S) PROPERTY LOCATION

2011 Main Street
1 002-101-09 | Dupre, Jeanne S Gold Hill

2440 Grizzley Rd
Virginia City Highlands
2499 Cartwright Rd
Virginia City Highlands

2 003-022-12 | Dixon, Shane & Jenna

3 003-033-21 | Hoeft, James W

1931 Lousetown Rd
Virginia City Highlands

4 | 003-123-07 | Murphy, Margaret / Vargas, Ethel

Please advise the Treasurer to:

1) Adjust the tax bills listed above by applying the corrected cap percentage, and
2) Issue a new tax bill or refund, as necessary.

Jata Seddon
Storey County Assessor

Storey County Is an Equal Opportunity Provider



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 08/19/14 Estimate of time required:

Agenda: Consent [x] Regular agenda [ ] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Business License First Readings

2. Recommended motion  Approve as part of consent agenda.

3. Prepared by: Melissa Field
Department: SCSO Telephone: 775-847-0959

4. Staff summary:

5. Supporting materials: See attached Agenda letter

6. Fiscal impact: None

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
7. Legal review required:
District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
_X__ Department Head Department Name: Gerald Antinoro
= County Manager Other agency review:
9. Board action:
[] Approved [1] Approved with Modifications
[] Denied [1] Continued

Agenda Item No.



STOREY COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE

Gerald Antinoro
Sheriff

August 12, 2014

To: Vanessa Stephens, Clerk’s Office
Pat Whitten, County Manager

Fr: Melissa Field

Please add the following item(s) to the August 19, 2014 Commissioners Consent
Agenda:

LICENSING BOARD
FIRST READING:

A. DELTA SALOON/SAWDUST CORNER/PARKING - GENERAL & LIQUOR
LICENSE / 28 S “C” ST

B. BONANZA SALOON / GENERAL & LIQUOR LICENSE / 27 N “C” ST

(Formally owned by Angelo Petrini, pending closing date of 9-2-14. The new
owner, pending closing, will be Vincent Malfitano. Lease holder is Dewing
Gaming Management owned by Bruce Dewing. The current business names,
Delta Saloon and Bonanza Saloon, will remain the same.)

PO Box 498
205 South C Street
Virginia City, NV 89440
Office: (775) 847-0959 Fax: (775) 847-0924



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: August 19, 2014 Estimate of time required: 0 min

Agenda: Consent [X] Regular agenda [] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: For possible action approval of Payroll Check date 08/01/14 for $427,414.46.
Accounts Payable date for 8/08/14 for $484,597.05 and $5,130.39.

2. Recommended motion: Approval of claims as submitted as part of the Consent Agenda

3. Prepared by: Hugh Gallagher
Department: Comptroller Telephone: 775 847-1006

4. Staff summary: Please find attached the claims
5. Supporting materials: Attached

6. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available: NA Fund: NA __ NA__ Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
_NA_ District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
ﬂ{ﬁ Department Head Department Name: Comptroller

/av County Manager Other agency review:

9.._B0ard action:
[] Approved
]

| Approved with Modifications
[ Denied [

Continued

e el

Agenda Item No.



YHANSYIAL

YATTOELANOD

TANOISSTHWWOD

YINOISSINWOD

NYWAIVHD

YI/LZ/L0

AIYNINITENG

S

sbeg

{SIBUOTSSTUWOD JO paeog Ajuno) As103s ayl Aq paasoxddy

9% VIV LCY

T6°8LZ°8

0§°TZL‘9 r971d deg

ELTVLLLTT
69°669°C
0T 207 '%0T

£9°LES LS

Junouy
8 L 9 5§
:93eQ PUS-POTIA $T/10/80 :33ed O3UYD

I93s1b69y yooud
WILSAS TIOYAYd AINNOD XHIOLS

i

:pesangsIq

rI1035Mpag ©3 I9ISURII IL6N

ITd uo paszx spad sslortdugy

€

:31sodag 309xTa ssadotdug
:syosy) salordugy
1S)O8YD I030NpPag

184143 I03 IdISURIL I3SM

saked # psa
/# dug

z 1 :sdnoaxn TrOxA®Rg
Teinbsy :adAl TTOxAed

Te3oL

Te30L
TejoL
Te30L
Te30L
Te30L

Te30L

# aa
/¥o9uD

ET:0%:60 ¥L/0E/LO :uny
Y0TS0ud :3dey



T

00°800°T
00°0ST
ST-0LS
ZL'SEC'T
TL ELY
¥9°CST
SE"PeT
TYLOL
JDHEHD
sbeg

S¥'S8T
AAR A

00"¥%6T
SB8°869
BE'CS
Zv2ze
08°¢T9
15°06

00"2TT
08°S

LET 06

9% €91
0079sL
00°0sL
09°66¢
007089
€0°8

c9°59¢
06°¢0T
00°0€T
9e"LT

05" TL8
05" 9¢T

00°0ST
ST"0LS
YL EEY
66°0C%
66 0C¥

TL ELY

8C'ET

LNOOWY

€L669
€L669
€L669
£L66S
£L66Y
€L669
€L66S
EL6ES
€LE669
€L669
€L669
€L669
€L669
€LE6S
TL669
£ELE6Y
£L669
€LE69
€L669
€L669
€L66S
£L669
£LEES
£L669
£L669
€L669
€LEES
€L669
€L669
€L669
€L669
€L669
20ToL

0€00L
0e00L

£600L
6200L
STO0L
STO00L
ST00L
€200L
LZ00L
9000L
9000L
9000L
0L669

0L669
0L669

HSNYIL

$1/80/8
¥1/80/8
¥1/80/8
¥T1/80/8
¥T1/80/8
$1/80/8
$T/80/8
$1/80/8
¥1/80/8
¥1/80/8
$1/80/8
$1/80/8
?1/80/8
¥T1/80/8
$1/80/8
¥1/80/8
$1/80/8
$1/80/8
¥1/80/8
%1/80/8
¥1/80/8
¥1/80/8
¥1/80/8
¥1/80/8
$1/80/8
$1/80/8
»1/80/8
¥1/80/8
¥1/80/8
v1/80/8
¥1/80/8
$1/80/8
$T/80/8

$1/80/8
%1/80/8

¥1/80/8
¥T1/80/8
¥1/80/8
¥1/80/8
$T/80/8
¥1/80/8
¥1/80/8
¥1/80/8
¥1/80/8
$1/80/8
¥1/80/8

$T/80/8
$T/80/8

aLYa

»1/80/8

TaNd 414 HONVA

Tang

JUId AAASIHM

SHIYELILYE VEIS

THNA

HUId ¥IDOAYMS
dDYIS0d
ADYLSOd
HOVLS0d

INIYIL HIYMLAOS HSNOHIATSL
S3NA dTHSIEHWEAN D4VI
LOELOEd NDIS TLd

TaNd LINO DNIDDOT
INIVW OLOY IINN ONIDDOT
LNIVW OLNY LINN ONIDDOT
T3Nd LINN DNIDDHOT
WYXd II dOLOHISNI

DNINIVIL/THLOH

TLT LS STIVI¥ALYW ONIQTIINg
ONINIVYEL/TYINTE d¥D

TLT L5 TYLINZE TO0L

TENJ FIIJ HONVY

TdNd JAI4 HONTY

HDYIS0d

JILSAWNA NOILONAHE STANA
ATNL 40 HLY
ONINIVAL/TEAVIL WETONITA
ONINIVAL JIIONITA

SAWNYEd TVLEN

SHNVYIA X0d

dvd 5¥9 TLI-¥

TLT 1S ¥3ddI¥LS ¥O00Td
INIYW ¥HTIVAEL HMDX

TENA HIIA NYAR

$10Z ‘0€-LT ATAL

SHEA YHEWIN JOSSISSY
SM00€ YZNYNOE/I3A/ISINIHD

NVYHYNW
AN IR
ANOONYIL

DONIATING-ILNY
SNdd SQTALS

HD
dOHS
dOHS

AIANAYT ¥L IS
A¥ANNVYT CL LS
AEANNYT TL LS

NOILATHOSHA ADIOANI

JALSIDEY ADHHO
ALNNOD AHYOLS

voLzH# YOTYEWY 40 MNVH

NS AONYN ‘JEiVd
AIN 0 DOSSY §.d058dSSY

ONI ONIHSITHQd YIA¥DAV

SSENTTIM NV HLIYIH DUV
ONI HWIL d1dd¥

OHIIT/ONIINI¥d WYAIYISWY

ONI 0ODS81IY
FOANHEA

%1/90/80
STeETEd

cBLeL

T8L6L
08L6L

6LLEL

SLLEL
LLLEL

SLLEL

SLL6L

JIINON

MDEHD
i ®3eq uny
1ON 3xodsy



(4

LT”

€6°

sz’

[4:N

6C"

00°

8% "

00"

L’

00"

00"

69"

TYIOL

68°SL

TE€P0°T
¥ 9zL’‘z
SY ¥sv’cC

¥ZZ'9

S €6°22
00°'%2

§60°0¢€ §Z°560°0¢
v [4: 0 24

TLO'T 2z 88

00°8TT

€L 89T

LY 0¥
Sy 00" S¥%
1445 8% ¥%CS

¥9T'T 0o-zZtC
00°2se

706 L Y06

06T 00°0%
00°0ST

szz't 00°522'T

zEE 'L S9°'e8
6278
vZ 28
05702
sg°e8

LNOOWY

MADAHD

sbed

0%00L

YTO0L
PTO0L
7T00L

6000L
6000L

STTOL
8000L

0TO0O0L
0T00L
0T00L
0TO00L
0TO00L
0TO00L
0To00L
0T00L
0TO00L
0T00L
0T00L
0T00L
0T00L
0TO00L
0To0L
0TO00L
0T00L
0T00L
0T00L
0T00L
0T00L
0T00L
0T00L

ZT00L
CEOOL

EECOL
£E00L

LogOoL

TE00L
TE00L

CL6ES

£LE6Y
£L669
£L669
€LE69
£EL66Y

H#SNVAL

¥1/80/8

$T/80/8
$1/80/8
$1/80/8

v1/80/8
¥1/80/8

¥1/90/8
¥1/80/8

$1/80/8
$1/80/8
$1/80/8
?1/80/8
$1/80/8
¥1/80/8
»1/80/8
¥1/80/8
%T/80/8
$T/80/8
¥1/80/8
$1/80/8
¥1/80/8
¥1/80/8
%1/80/8
¥1/80/8
$T/80/8
»1/80/8
¥1/80/8
$1/80/8
¥1/80/8
$1/80/8
¥T/80/8

¥1/80/8
¥1/80/8

¥1/80/8
¥1/80/8

¥T/80/8

¥1/80/8
¥1/80/8

¥1/80/8

¥1/80/8
¥1/80/8
¥1/80/8
¥1/80/8
$1/80/8

ILYA

54909510 LNIWHSINIVO

TESETIA ® TINA -HDA
TISEId ® "IN M4
TESEIA ® TN ~Md

dWNd TdNd 78619 HUIL
SNIVHO NAJYVHS O%d

6699LZTAZTOAMLEYIIHNIA
LANSYD -OIA NMO™D

SYALTIIA MDOLS

TIO ¥ TI8TS¥4

-LI

IONYD MU0 zL¥d

LI¥ YITId TT8TS¥EA
T¥Es TI0 L06ZEdd

g10d 9062edd

JALTIA IIV ‘HOSSISSY
SL¥ISNI -dOHS

TIO ¥¥dD S062¢dd
dINTd JdXH-AD0LS
SYELTIIA JO0LS

SYELTI4 LAT X¥d4 IL ¥4
HOLIMS ‘IJ47 ¥4 TIL ¥4
aonvd -IJ47 Ad8d TIL 84
II0 ¥0SsdSsY

SYELTII 9062ty
\¥ELTIJ TIO ADOLS
LNY'IO0D DOLS

LOATIEE 9062edd

dINTd SNYaL 8I229 ¥4
ALY 8T2Z9dd

YAANITAD dLSH ¥8619dd

JIMIS /OTH

JISINGSTA INIWHSINIYO

Y102 ‘0€-LT A1QC

SI00d -N¥EI SOLT

$T0C ‘0€-LT X100
HOIA¥HES WA TYANNY

SYIYdEY SL 1S
TaNd Y14 REASIHM
TaNd FITA HONYA
TYEN HYId AAMSTHM
TdNd FYIJ XKEASIHM

NOILAI¥OSEJ dADIOANI

$1/80/8 ¥WILSIDANE MADHHD

ALNQOD AZFOLS

NOHAETHAL ALNNOD TIIHOUNHD

ONI OO IO AFTIVA NOSYYD

SENIDNE 'TIVHS NOSY¥YD
ONI ¥HTSAYHD HDIOUT NOSIWD

ONI QY04 TY¥LIdYD

SL¥Yd OLNY ALID TYLIJYD
NIWIACIJWT TYIANID NOANYD

TYNOISSEIONd *® SSANISNd

SIMET LIODS ‘TId¥dnd

ONI 0D X1ddns Hald Jdandad

HYJOHHEQ ‘JHaNdd

ONI SYOSSITAIWOD YINVL

JOANAA

¥1/90/80
STeTdd

veLel

E6L6L

Z6LEL
T6L6L

o6L6L

68LEL
88LEL

L8LEL

og8LeL

a8L6EL

v8LeLl

£8L6L

JIGWON
ADHHD

83eq uny

oN 3xodsy



€

00°"8ET
00°"IST’Z
ST'SIT
YOTEEL'T
89°'TS
$5°188°'T
00°00T
00°000°T

oL"6TC

00°S6¢

€688
00°0eT

007082

05682

00"9T¥%'S
¥ 009
00°00T
G8°€TIS'6T
LS"8T8
LSTETH’9
Lz eve
90°9¢2¢
68°SL
TY.LOL
MDHEHD

abedg

9% ¥60'T
00°8¢tT
00°IST‘T
SZ°SIc
YOEEL'T
89° TS
7S 188°T
00°00T
00°000°'T
S 9¢
56°0¢
S6'eL
06° 1S
S6°5¢

00" 88¢€
00°8

£6°88
007 02T

00've
00°9s¢2

05" %6
SC6c
00799
SLTQ0T
00°91%'S
%009
00°00T
S8 €IS 6T
LS 818
LS ETY'9
LT 6%C
S0°982
T0°0%

LNOOWY

0zooL
6T00L
68669
TT00L
LTOOL
18669
¢B8669
T%00L
60TO0L
88669
88669
88669
8T00L
£9669

6E£00L
6€E00L

£0T0L
78669

9€E0Q0L
9€E00L

8800L
TTI0L
9T00L
L8669
LLE6S
T600L
9200L
LBOOL
8010L
ve€00L
z000L
LLQOL
0TTIOL

H#SNVIL

¥1/80/8
$1/80/8
¥1/80/8
v1/80/8
¥T1/80/8
¥T1/80/8
$1/80/8
$1/80/8
¥1/80/8
¥T/80/8
»1/80/8
¥1/80/8
¥1/80/8
v1/s2/L

¥1/80/8
¥1/80/8

¥1/80/8
$1/80/8

¥1/80/8
¥1/80/8

$T/80/8
¥1/80/8
$1/80/8
%1/80/8
¥1/80/8
$1/80/8
$1/80/8
¥T1/80/8
¥1/80/8
%1/80/8
¥1/80/8
¥1/80/8
¥1/80/8

dIVda

$¥T1/80/8

18Q ® DFA -MT

NOTEd -N¥Fd SOLT
ADIANIS TUANNY OALVATIOH
TIVL

SINVA YALVM -ADOLS

MIND ¥OINES aMiDT -HHII0D
SMIVHD HDIVASIA 2
%T/L2/L NOILVANESHA
SE£Z0ZT AD

¥EIYM VL IS

MALYM TL IS

JAILYM L LIS
SYITO0D JIILYM HO

%10Z ‘0€-LT A1IOL

SYIVdEd Hd TALION

$102 ‘0€-LT AIAD
SHIDIHAA 6

1S0d ¥HEdYd ¥%/1
AEATOM dYOA TYNOSYIS
ININLINYOTA
SHILIAILIOY HINOX
HSYNESIA INIWHSINIYD
$102/20/80 TYINTI AI¥d
XYL SETYS ALNQOD IdL
TETTTH00

SHAIND YOLISIA
SIDNQ0¥Yd ¥HAVG

av¥dIl T0000-Z90€9ZZLL
T0000-9LLEP0TPE#IOOY

NOIILJI¥EOSEd dDIOANI

UALSIDIE MOdHD
AINAQD AFYOLS

OTT ADYEANH SYIATI

JOONI ¥IV 3 ONILVHH LIdTd
A1ddnNs® DdEdS IDIAYES FAIA
dT SYDTTEdEHL

ONI SESTYJYEINI NOSNOEIA
00 S0¥E YIWIYA

10S FDOVTINYOM SISINIDODYH
T AYJIL ‘AEISVH

01T TIIEAN.O ¥ SYILINIA

ONI ¥5f1 SHOI¥A

¥ OIAVIDO ‘YISHHD
SNOIINTOS SN" DESH OJLS0D

SNOTIIVOINAWWOD A¥MNOD

01T TTIW dT0D AD0ISWOD

(JA) FATIINOYWHD ADOLSKWOD
ONI LSEHD ALINAWWOD

AEN 40 EDTAY¥IS NOILDITTOD
03T ‘TTIMITD

JITANSVIAL NOSEYD J0 ALID
YIIYVYIW WIOHSIHD D SHETIVHD
ONI OD ODNIHSITINd A¥OINAD

ATddNS XUYLINYS TYILINID

dIHSYANLIIYd 0D7TTED
JOANIA

$1/90/80
STETIEd

LIB6L
9186L
ST86L
¥I86L
€I8B6L
2186l
Ti86L
01864

6086L

8086L

Lo86L
g0B6L

sogeL

v086L

€£086L
co86L
T086L
0086L
66L6L
86L6L
LeL6L

96L6L

SeL6L

YAEWON

JMDEHD
¢ 93eq uny
tON 3xoday



14

68 T¥%1T

00 0S¥
00" 9%
Ly 29

SZ°E£2S

0S°21v

08°09

I8 LY9

8T 068
€989

99°z€T’'1

00°S0¢

SE°8S
£6°8SS

LET9T8'Y

TYLOL
MOHHD

abeg

68°0¢
-65°9¢
6S7LST

00 0S¥
00" 9%
IAANA]

TIE"TE
5599
16" TL
B6° 58S
09°18
95768
LY

e 1S
¥9°6¢
26 BT
-L6'EC
I6°EC

05"9v¢
0099

0809
98" ¥LY
v 6%
VAR EAN
8T 068
€999
00'0%
£€°9T¢

£e°95¢
007028

S€°8S
£6 855
LO°T8E'T
08" L%8
Y0 €671

LNNOWY

26669
26669
6L00L

7S00L
STo0L
8900L

L900L
L900L
L900L
L9004
L900L
L900L
L900L
L900L
L900L
L9004
L900L
L900L

2y00L
Z¥00L

6600L

16669
16669
16669

€900L
08669

98669
98669
98669
£800L

2900L
Z2500L
Z900L
2900L
Z2300L
69669

05004
SE00L
0200L
0zooL
0cooL

#SNVAL

$1/80/8
$1/80/8
¥1/80/8

¥1/80/8
»1/80/8
%T/80/8

¥1/80/8
$T/80/8
$1/80/8
¥1/80/8
¥1/80/8
¥T/80/8
$T/80/8
$1/80/8
»I/80/8
¥1/80/8
¥1/80/8
¥1/80/8

Y1/80/8
yT/80/8

¥1/80/8

vI/80/8
v1/80/8
¥1/80/8

v1/80/8
¥1/80/8

»T/80/8
»T/80/8
$1/80/8
$1/80/8

¥1/80/8
¥1/80/8
¥1/80/8
¥1/80/8
$1/80/8
$1/80/8

¥1/80/8
¥T1/80/8
»T/80/8
¥1/80/8
¥T/80/8

2LYQ

y1/80/8

# 0/d

TYds
pdaice. o]
YOSNES dWWYD -%LTd ¥4

Jav¥ddn MoOT1a dI
SAQEYO YZOUNIW
SYEETINOD -DOWINO dJ

ST00L ‘SLEND0S

SHITAANS MOAONIM TOOd
d¥0 ® SLHDIT-A¥¥Yd oA
STVIYELYW d0IJ40 004
STYIYILYW dDIJJ0 T00d
STYI¥YELYW IDIJJ0 I004
S170€ FTANVH J00d-dS DA
dDI4J0 TO0d d0d STYIYILYKW
SHITAANS-MO0dL JIINNTI
SNDIS WOOYHLYHE-NIYd M1
Sd10d LHDIT T00d NINLAY
SNMOQ HIL ‘LIH

¥T0Z ‘0€-LT X1IAC

SHITddNS SWI
SHITddNS SKWA
S3ITNddNs SWa

Z/1 Eav¥id ZIFTIDNOD
L¥d SEAIHDUVY dTIdYASMEN

SHILITILA

JA¥dd dNOd

HDIOANI ¥4Y

ALNNOD a¥nd AV¥Ed dNOd

ATITIIVNAO-¥IND WHWOD IW
LINVId INHWLAL ¥dLYM
TTO0L 00T

LOW WE O § TLE

HD

HOIAYES 1SHd ATALD

MA¥DS ‘SHATHHS NM00€E-¥S MT
JESINGSIA INITWHSINIYD
TSa ® DAY -MT

013d ® TIO ¥D -dOHS

T8 3 DFE -MT

NOILdTI¥DSHA FOTOANI

YALSIDIE MDOIHO
ALNNOD AHYOLS

WYITIIM ‘sSHEiINC

OTT ddr
OTT E0dN0S TLII
SNOISSHIANI FAILYAONNI

A¥dAS TYIELSNANI DOITTNVIAAH

HOIAYES LIQEED IOJdEd JWOH

OHDS QdYM HLINOA OIFOLSIH

NIFTIE ‘NOLONIVNIH

NIHHOS XAINIH
4T ATddNsS LSNOD AT1ddNS dH

NYEd ‘TIOWAVH

OTT SINAWLSHANI 41D

SHd ¥ HLIWYAL NISYH IVIYD
FADNIVED

QLT NI ¥ JTAVD

qOaNIA

¥1/30/80
STETad

ZE86L

TEB6L
0€86L
62B6L

8Z86L

LZB6L

9Z86L

ST86L

144172
£C86L

[44:-172

TZ86L

0zZ86L
6T86L

8TI86L

FIEWNON
ADHEHD

93ed uny

ON 3xoday



S

$2°958°¢

00°65¢
Zy 6€%’9

$0'S¥0°T

LE €T

ST 68T°T

8€°LCT

0T T0S
05°3LE’T
00°00S8°T
00°00T
79691
00'%2

00950’z

v Lze

00°SS%'T

00°00T

NYLOL
MDEHD

sbed

¥1°906
05°0LE
00°88
go-ozce
00°0ST
0070212
00°65¢
T 6EV ‘9
8% ¥1
[AARA NN
0T '19%

Y AR
(AR}
99760¢
Z6'LL
98'0T
19°S
60°¢
-6L"'C1T
2596
LE" €T
00°66
28'65¢C
¥e'0g8
85 LT
28°0¢
86°8L

0T 108
05'9LE’T
00°005‘T
00°00T
79691
00" %2

00°9S
007000z

ZyLCe

00°09
00°s6€'T

00°00T

LNOOKWY

9LOOL
SOTOL
SOTOL
SOTOL
SOTOL
SOTOL

79669
9800L
¥L00L
vL00L
vL00L
vL00L
vL00L
YLOOL
¥L00L
vLOOL
vLO00L
¥L00L
7L00L
vL00L
L6669
£L00L
£L00L
£L00L
[4AeFR
z2o0L
cTooL
£8669
FTITOL
6L669
S¥00L
96669
0LOOL

¥6669
V6669

6900L

¥700L
vv00L

€%00L

#SNVIL

v1/80/8
v1/80/8
v1/80/8
¥1/80/8
¥1/80/8
¥1/80/8

¥1/S2/L
$1/80/8
$1/80/8
¥1/80/8
¥1/80/8
$1/80/8
$T/80/8
$1/80/8
¥T/80/8
¥1/80/8
¥1/80/8
$1/80/8
¥1/80/8
»1/80/8
»1/80/8
¥1/80/8
¥T/80/8
¥1/80/8
$T/80/8
$T/80/8
¥1/80/8
$1/80/8
¥1/80/8
»1/80/8
¥T/80/8
$1/80/8
$1/80/8

¥1/80/8
¥1/80/8

¥1/80/8

¥1/80/8
»1/80/8

¥1/80/8
qI¥a

¥1/80/8

# 0/d

S5ESSY NIWAY Od

¥aad - 11S $1-0T-6
HSYHOUNd dHIYM $TOT ENOL
ITH9 NVd 906Z¢e¥d
SEAYIL DSIA ¥86T9 dd
SHIVYE ¥HTToud

SaAvd HMVIE $86TENUI
AYALIVE

SHIVHALIVE SL-IM
A¥ALIVE -TL L4TIEd ¥4
HENT MOTI -MDOLS

FE07T MOTI-dOHS
JOSSHIANOD JIV JOHS
1IdE¥D dOHS

MO0LS X¥ALIVE
HZHAYATING $LTH
IONYIVE HIIL TLHE ¥4
THHEHM HOHMOVE

SHIIL 2L¥ ¥4

SNEd

SdNd WYod

S0 ‘AIVANVE ‘ SELON’ ZdVL
SIFSAYEH HOLVASIQ MAN
$T0Z TI¥d

feic i

¥T02/%2/L NOILYAYESIT
SEITddANS SWI

INIOVIE

3OV¥TI4EY dTANYH IXSVYINd
ddd XdaYTIO

SEITddNS DSIW -dOHS

¥10Z ‘0€-LT X1IArL
¥T0Z/6T/L NOILVA¥ESTYI

NOTIJI¥DSEd IDIOANI

VIALSIDIY MDIHD
ALNONOD AHYOLS

AdLSHY0A A0 AIQ AIN

JITIOULANOD AEN
YOd TIDNNOD AYOSIATY AHN

SANNOUD 3 BATd NIWAVY AEN

S1dYd OINY DN

SI¥Yd ADNYEL 3 OLAV YIYN

OLNIWVIDVS J0 TIIL NVOIOW

NI SNOILINTOS HOIAJAO0 OULIW
NI SNOILYDINOWWOD LLI¥NIW
YTIINNIL NIVIOW
LEIVOIYN ‘JHHIMOT

¥ANIT ‘AESANIT

ONI ISISSVY-HAIT

ONI HAIsOopL 3JE1

SNOS ¥ SIIND N 1T

LSAMAIW TIVEWIN

¥ NVILSI¥HD ‘¥ETHOIIN

JOaNHA

$1/90/80
STETEA

6v86L

8¥86L
LY86L

ov8eL

S¥86L

vv8eL

£v86L

Zv86L
v¥86L
0¥86L
6€86L
8EBEL
LE8EL

9eE86L

SEB6L

veESEL

€EB6L

FIENON

MDdHD
i 83eQ@ uny
ioN 3xo0dsy



9

0T"S

05" %L

00°006'%

z9'68
§5°98
00"SL

v 8672
00°0zge’'e
(AN AR A
00" %0¢C

S0°90%

€6°6CT

00°06

09°LTE

00°008'L9
00°00¢%

€9 FIV'T

9L°61T
98°C1¢

00" ¢€LT

8% 768
00°S¢
00°'00T°2C

TYLOL
JDdHD

abea

0T"S

05°9
0089

00°009'T
00°00S'T
0o-008'T
29°68
95798
00°SL

cv 86T
00°02Z'€
e vLe
00 %#0C

00°2TT
S0 ¥6T

ve'el
05 0%
Zg LT
LT T%
00°06

09°0%C
00°LL

00°005°L9
007008

ETTE0TT
oy 80¢

9L 6TT
98°21¢

00'6L
00" %6

8% %68
00°s¢
00°00T°2

INNOWY

59669

8%00L
8%00L

9L669
9L669
9L669
ETTOL
v600L
58669
8€00L
2800L
9¥%00L

L¥00L

86669
86669

€000L
€£000L
00TOL
00TOL
ZLOOL

8L00L
8L0OL

9TTOL
96669

¥L669
vL669

T200L
S800L

SLOOL
SLOOL

901T0L
LOTOL
6800L

HSNVIL

¥1/80/8

¥1/80/8
$T/80/8

¥1/80/8
»1/80/8
¥1/80/8
¥1/80/8
v1/80/8
%1/80/8
%1/80/8
¥1/80/8
$1/80/8
¥1/80/8

¥1/80/8
¥1/80/8

¥1/80/8
¥1/80/8
¥1/80/8
¥1/80/8
y1/80/8

%1/80/8
$1/80/8

¥1/80/8
$T/80/8

¥1/80/8
¥1/80/8

¥1/80/8
¥1/80/8

¥1/80/8
¥1/80/8

¥1/80/8
%1/80/8
¥1/80/8

[cA-{e8

$1/80/8

HONVINSNI H4IT FIEILIE

¥T0Z ‘0€-LT X1AD

SHOTIHAO ILDHLQYd MEN
DILANYYH SNOILYTIHY DITdnd

WYIDH0Ed VIQHEH TVIDOS

YINELYW EDAI¥d X00d INIVA
INEWNDITY ¥.d ¥4
ONIJOLINON SL IS

HSUNGSIA LNIWHSINYYD
JLOVIVA SHAVTIE MEOMIEN dH
HSANESIA LNIWHSINIYD

$102 ‘0€-LT XIArC

ONIYNELLAT JATIVIL STaNd
DNIN¥ELLIT/ONILINLS 2L ot

NILSAVY 904 SHIJYUYHS
SYIATOL ITIA dns
SdITddNS H3IA40 JHAJYOOHY
SdITAdNS F3TA40 ¥HTI0DET
TYDISAHd

SNDIS DA
SNDIS WOOo¥d

(¥T/9 L1ISOdHEA)00SL-000°SL
INIVIW NOMAX 90

NCISSIWWOD ONINNYI4
I TTOYLINOD

YIAANIS LAITII0A ¥d
JILOITIOD sHdd

ALLOd ¥I304d HOA
ALLOd YId0d -MdYd IW

SZITI?00

SAY0d HOD MHYD HLVKWNI

NOILJI¥OSHA ADIOANI

JILSIOHEY ADIHD
ALNNOD AFYOLS

ONI dEINEDIEY SXIVYW INIVS

NI JJAIT CQEVANVLS HONVITEA

W YIANYS ‘q¥odavd

ONI SEIDILVILS ¥

ONI S¥YENILSYA H ¥ ¥

0D ¥IEdNd ® FYUIL TTIDANd
ONI SHOIAEd NOILDOILOAd

I OO HONUNIA TYNOISSIIOEL
D11 ‘AN-KWSI¥d

ONI SHEDIA¥ES dJTOUNNIAL

a OTEDNY ‘INIALHI

IS5 ® SDIHAYJD HAIS FHL NO

ONI 10d3d dDIAJ0

JINEO HLIIVEH TYNOILVANDD0

01T ONILTASNOD NOJLION
0D HTLIL YAVAEN NJITHIION

ALTVIDEIS VYAYAEN NYTHIYON

ONI VINJOJAITYD 40 THIXEN
DIAYIS YHLINOTIAIS WAVAEN

ONI HEDIAY¥ES TYDIT VYAVAIN

0T SNHOL VAYAEN
ONI NOE¥VYOOYJAH YAYAIN

FIINSYILL AEN

JOaNEA

¥1/90/80
STeETHd

cLB6L

TL86L

oLgeL

698B6L

8986L

L986L

9986L

S986L

v986L

€986L

zogeL

T986L

0986L

6586L

8SB6L
LS86L

9586L

SS86L
¥S86L

£€S86L

2s86L
TSB6L
0sB6L
HIGWAN
ADEHD

93eq UNy
ON 3xoday



L

00°0%L
LETSTO'T
00" %8
S0°260°ST
ZT 65T
896
CO0"ZBT'E
00°8
TYI0L
MOZEHD
obeg

[4NA
€L PE
0e ve
LoteL
68 LYT
€27552°1
€57 1¢
T0°29¢2
75956
LT %91
0Z°80T
86°6CT
6L'6TT
AT
SETLY
65" €F
8€°90T
00°6%T
ZL'T82
IS ARA

00 0%L

007592
€L ¥Y8
¥9°9%T
-00"T¥%<

00°%8
S0°260°ST
2T 69T

€0°T
¥T°0T
L
90" ¥
887 ¢
S0°6
6T ¥
19°¢
0%°9
8L"
SO0'T
€0°T
L9"S
00" LT
oz 'z
S9°¥%T
0s-
98"

T0°Z8T1'6
00°8

LNOOWY

¥0T0L
¥O0TOL
PO0TOL
v0TOL
vO0TOL
70104
¥0TOL
70T0L
70T0L
YO0TOL
vO0TOL
70TOL
v0T0L
¥0T0L
¥0TOL
v0TOL
v0T0L
Y0T0L
¥O0TO0L
7O0TOL

66669

0800L
0800L
0800L
0800L

0S00L
99669
6%00L

9600L
9600L
9600L
9600L
9600L
9600L
9600L
9600L
9600L
9600L
9600L
9600L
9600L
9600L
96004
9600L
9600L
9600L

89669
2500L

#SNTIL

¥1/80/8
¥T/80/8
$T/80/8
¥1/80/8
¥T/80/8
$1/80/8
¥1/80/8
$1/80/8
$1/80/8
¥1/80/8
$T/80/8
$T1/80/8
¥T1/80/8
¥T1/80/8
$1/80/8
$1/80/8
$1/80/8
$T/80/8
¥1/80/8
¥1/80/8

¥1/80/8

¥1/80/8
¥1/80/8
%1/80/8
%1/80/8

¥1/80/8
¥T1/80/8
$1/80/8

$1/80/8
$T/80/8
%1/80/8
¥T/80/8
$1/80/8
¥1/80/8
$1/80/8
$1/80/8
¥1/80/8
%T/80/8
$1/80/8
v1/80/8
¥1/80/8
$1/80/8
»T/80/8
%T/80/8
¥1/80/8
¥1/80/8

¥1/80/8
¥1/80/8

ZIVd

y1/80/8

HOVEVD 1S € § 0T

LS NOLLOS

A¥4¥d DA IS & N S0C

afAv J9 ENIAVE TYINVAS 00S
dWISYD L8 O § T¢

INTd dIM LIS HINOS M 00T
qAvd  SNAWITO WYS 06%
dI1DD SNEWETD WYS 00§
TIYL TP AMH S0 116

05 LS D 5§ so¢

05 18 DO § g02

¥ad I8 D 5§ 10Z

Z/T dOHS Q¥ T1I0L 00T
Z/T 9Q1€ ¥ TIOL 01T
Z/T D419 ad TIOL OFT
dOLSLsEd LS O N T8t
LINO LS O N S%T

SHY (¥ IHDI¥YMLIYVD TI9C
7 IS AUYM NOANYD TE¥
ASHAWNG LHDOIYMI¥YD 019C

LNIVW IXd TYONNY

THOOdAH WAIDTYD-T00d
STYOINWIHD

dIO¥ O¥QAH ‘¥OTHD DIV
SLITHIYD YANIVINOD

¥I0Z ‘0€-LT X100
JIANLNIEIT
Odda TIIH dTI0D WSI¥NO0L DA

DONINNYT4

iI

(OA) TAIA
YINOISSIWWOD

wa

HOLVASIQ TYIINID
YOSSESSY
LNHNdOTIAAT ALINAWWOD
(dA) FYI4A
dOOMADOT/HATA
NINQY/JETTOLLINOD
JATHAHS

ar

JdATIIHS

SXY0M DITTdNd

(dA) FAI4
prclar:(eric o=

p:t-icuire]

AONVUNSNI TYOIdIW HIJTLIY
¥10Z ‘0€-LT A1IAC

NOILJI¥YDSHIA EDIOANI

JALSIOAT ADHHD
ALNAOD AH¥OLS

Q0 ¥AMO4 DIJIDVd VIUIIS

TT NOILDELO¥Yd H¥Id WHdAIS

ANYAWOD TYOIWHHO YIYAIS
NITIY NYIdd ‘dYOHS
O TIVMOH ANY NYWIZHS

ONI SHOIA¥ES Tv¥dQTD DdS

a7l NI SEDIAYAS TYHOTID DES

YHH JE3¥¥Hdddd SAIYW LNIVS

JOUNIA

$1/90/80
sTeTad

0886L

6L86L

8LB6L
LLB6L
oL86L

SLB6L

vLB6L

€LBEL

ATFHAN
JADEHD

a3eqg uny
oN 3xoday



8

0s°20¢
00 €€8'CT
29°8%¥%'6LT
£€0°8S
00°LLT
SL'zZ0og8'€E
0s° 26T
00°0ST
86 €ST'OT
TYLOL
ADIHD
abed

AR 4274
26768

207656
09°00%
ZT 61T
66°%ST
ZT° 61T
CT 61T
0870¢tT
88°00¢
89 TLT
96" ¥CT

0s°zZo¢
00" EEB
00" %

00"9¢€

6T %19
£v v6L
€085
00" LLT
SL"208

05°C6T

‘zT

‘84T

v800L
¥800L
¥800L
¥800L
¥800L
¥800L
7800L
¥800L
¥800L
7800L
9500L
¥800L

T000L
8L669

SS00L
SS00L
T800L
T800L

50004
0co0L
£S00L
TS00L

£T00L
¢T00L

TOTOL
¥O0TOL
¥0TOL
vO0TOL
¥0TOL
y0TOL
vO0TOL
¥0T10L
v0TOL
v0TOoL
vO0TOL
v0TI0L
$0T0L
PO0TOL
voToL
v0TOoL
$O0TOL
¥0TO0L
¥0TOL
v0TOL
y0T0L
70TI0L
VOTOL

#SNVIL

¥T/80/8
$T/80/8
¥1/80/8
¥T/80/8
$T1/80/8
T1/80/8
¥1/80/8
$T/80/8
¥1/80/8
$1/80/8
¥1/80/8
$1/80/8

¥1/80/8
$1/80/8

¥1/80/8
¥1/80/8
»1/80/8
¥1/80/8

¥1/80/8
¥1/80/8
¥1/80/8
$1/80/8

¥1/80/8
¥1/80/8

$1/80/8
¥1/80/8
¥1/80/8
$1/80/8
¥1/80/8
»T/80/8
$1/80/8
$1/80/8
»T/80/8
¥T/80/8
¥1/80/8
$1/80/8
¥1/80/8
¥T/80/8
$1/80/8
¥1/80/8
¥1/80/8
$1/80/8
$T/80/8
$1/80/8
¥1/80/8
»1/80/8
$T/80/8

aL¥a

¥1/80/8

# 0/4

SANNOYDADVE

1¥0ddns

$10Z ‘0€-LT ATAL
QAATHDHY XYL ALIFJ0dEd
LAWATLLAS ONINIW MDOLSWOD

ITIg ¥YEIYM TIOdDNVT d
FAIVES 40014

NELSAS ¥d I1T0SNOD/TIYLSNI
»T0Z ‘0€-LT R1INL

TIYL/0S
qOOMIDOT

0Z 09 SLHDIT IIFILS
SLHDIT IS DOn

SIHDIT LHFYLS

HASHHYIA JIHDI¥MIIAYD 0TS92
d¥YYd d¥ HONVY I¥dd 000T
Jdd¥d HOA ¥ HIIdWT THTIZ
¥ ILINQ AM NOANVYD 027

g LINO AYM NOANVD 0Z%
418 O N S8T

dd N¥dd SOLT

Q¥ HONVY I¥dd 008

SLHDIT LS O S TES
SIHDIT &S O § Z¥%¢t
SLHDIT IS O N 9LT
NOANYD ITIW XIS 02z
ISAOHIIN0OD IS € S 92

HD 1S NIYK

(ONINIVEL) IS D N T¥%T
SHIYII 1§ O N

AEVdTIVE 1S NOSUYD

oA LINO IS O S

IHOIT T¥d/¥00alN0 IS 2 §
oA LINQ LS O S

NOILJI¥DSHEd IDIOANI

JALSIDAY ADHHD
ALNNOD AHYOLS

WILSXAS ddaL¥M 0D IS
J4ATYIHS OD IS

(JA) JAINID JOINES 0D 1S

LOI¥LSIA TOOHDS 0D 1S
SXMJIOM DOITdNd 0O LS

IIT £ DINIWOQ 'HENOOTIVAS
SATIYNIA § NYOTIS

Yad TYNOILEYN HIVLS dIATIS

ONI TOYINOD ISdd WIIIIS

JOaNHEA

$1/90/80
STeTed

6886L
8886L

LB8B6L

9886L
S886L
v886L
£886L

Z886L

T886L

TIGHAN

ADFHD
i@ uny
:oN 3zoday



S0°L65'¥8% TYLOL SMOHHD

00°0S%'T 00°0S%'1 T0TOL ¥1/80/8 d¥W TIIH dT09 ONINVNEI
YHLITY AO¥W ' TIVEEOM 8066L
19 SLP 0T T9°SLP ‘0T ZTTOL ¥1/80/8 dI¥ddd TI¥M HD
¥ QIY¥HOIY ‘HESNOHTEM LO66L
0T°862 097261 L600L %1/80/8 SEINd IHOIT IFIALS DA
09°50T L600L ¥1/80/8 sgrIng TIVL
DNI 00QgaEM 9066L
00°szg 00*seeg 29669 ¥T/ST/L
¥ad 0D HOHSYM S066L
00°00T 00°00T 9900L $1/80/8 $1/92/L NOILYA¥ESHY
MEHIVIW ‘QIdIdTAYM Y066L
00°0S€’6 0070SE‘S6 S600L $1/80/8 N¥ad SO0LT S¥YO0Q AYHHAIAO
DNI TIILS XILIOA €066L
09°L9T 097L9T L9669 ¥T1/80/8 NOISIA FFYILEY
ONI ‘N¥TId HOIAYES NOISIA zZ066L
00" %L6'T 00°89L'T $900L $1/80/8 $T0C ‘0€-LT ATIOL
00°90¢2 $900L ¥1/80/8
ONI SdNOL ALID VINIDIIA T066L
00°6LZ'L 00" €¥6°C T900L $T/80/8
00" %S¥% ‘€ 1900L ¥1/80/8
00°S9¢L 1900¢L $1/80/8
00°LTT T900L ¥1/80/8 $T0Z ‘0€-LT X100
0D ¥¥ FEMONIL ¥ VWINIDAIA 0066L
S9°EVT 00°0ZT 5900L ¥1/80/8 v1/2/8
59°¢€ 5900L ¥1/80/8 NI AETIYA NS¥D OL ONITIVH
00702 S900L $1/80/8 ANZAILS ¥INVHNISH ADVL
2104 6686L
927002 92002 LEOOL $1/80/8 ISANESIA INIWHSINIYD
ONI IDW SEDIAYIS HSYD ¥sn 8686L
$6°2ST 6 ZST 8600L ¥1/80/8 dIHSYAEHIN TYANNY
INIATY EDIANES ANAOYDITANA L686L
00" 66T 0099 6500L ¥1/80/8
00 €E€T 6500L v1/80/8
ONI SHININIA-IYL 9686L
00°00S 00°00S 7000L ¥1/80/8 gNOgE TVYEdAY I¥N0D "dNS
‘ATEA  ONOYLSWIY * TYANYOHL S686L
00°0T2'C 00°028'T 8500L ¥1/80/8 $T0Z ‘0€-LT XIOL
00°06¢ 8500L ¥1/80/8
SXOEMOD INOLSEWOL THL ¥686L
007009 00°009 TLOOL ¥1/80/8 SINZWND0A aId
DNI dno¥sd ,3ENd FHL €686L
00°8T9 00°8T9 Z600L $1/80/8 ATIADSHLOY
OHLIO ¥ HIALOVIA HOHVL Z686L
0S°6%L'T 00°595"'T LS00L ¥1/80/8 $T0Z ‘0€-LT &A10L
057981 LS00L ¥T1/80/8
SEISTYJUIING AVEd NAS 1686L
0006 0006 8Z00L %1/80/8 SWJOL ISEL
ONI DOSSY ¥ QUUYNVLS 0686L
£0°829'¢€ z29'99 9500L $T1/80/8
z£'09 $800L $T/80/8
zZ€'09 ¥800L ¥1/80/8
2T 6TT $800L $1/80/8
88'00Z $800L ¥1/80/8
Zv 80T $800L ¥1/80/8
TYLOL INQOWY HSNTIL qI¥Aa # 0/4 NOILAT¥DSHEA EDIOANI JOAaNZIA JAGHON
ADHEHD MOEHD
Y1/80/8 ¥IALSIDIY ADFHD ¥1/90/80 93ed uny

6 abedg ALNNCD ATUOLS STETId :ON 3xoday



0T

TYLOL
JADEHD

abeg

YINOISSTIHWWOD

$1/80/8 &IYd MDIHD S0°'L6S '¥8F TYLOL SADFHO

NOILVZIYOHINY ANV MAIATY 40 INIWIDATTMONIOY

INQOWY #SNVEL FIVa # 0/d NOILAI¥ISHA ADIOANI Joanan JIEWON
JDFHD

$1/80/8 WHLSIOHIY NDITHD ¥1/90/80 : ®3eg uny

XINNOD ATIOLS STETEd :ON 3x0ded

om——



T

6€°0€T’S

6€°0€T’S

TYLOL
qQuvo

abeg

708

LNOOWY

912

812
8T¢
8T¢
A4

8T¢C
9ze
9ce
92¢
Ei44

8evT
LTIZ
ize
icc

122
x4
6TC
9ze
€cc
€ce
STC
€1
£ET1C
€12
sce
144
oze
oze

(444
£Ce
fxA4
A%4
€ece
tce
€22

#SNTIL

¥1/80/8
v1/80/8

ADYLS0d
SHITddNS dD2I440

¥1/80/8 ¥D DIO0A SALIS 0OIAYVY XT

¥1/80/8
»T/80/8
%1/80/8
¥1/80/8
$1/80/8
%¥1/80/8
¥1/80/8
¥T/80/8
»1/80/8
$1/80/8
¥1/80/8
%¥1/80/8
$1/80/8
$1/80/8
$T1/80/8
$1/80/8
¥1/80/8
%1/80/8
%1/80/8
¥1/80/8
¥1/80/8
¥1/80/8
¥1/80/8
$1/80/8
¥1/80/8
$1/80/8
¥1/80/8
¥1/80/8
¥1/80/8
»1/80/8
$T/80/8
$1/80/8
$1/80/8
¥T/80/8
»T/80/8
¥T/80/8
»T/80/8

dLYa

QH dNA0¥E ¥OLINOW LI
JIDA dNMOVd ANALLYE
SIAIEQ 95N SYIAVIASS

S4Nxovd A¥ALLVE XZ
SYIIVHIS OS
YADIYHD MNVL 2

dOYVHOIIAO NANLIE XYL

XYL d04LIJIYD JdOHS
SAINTA ¥HIDNVA
MAJYd/SNd/EOIJA0 DFH
OYONILINY

W¥d ¥YADSYd

SONILIAW LANIVW TTIYHS
OISNKW NYH

W¥d 470D YADSY

W¥d ¥ADSY

HNOHd ILNIWADYIAHY

ALV HO0I¥d JD0¥ INIVd

ONMIL SIXEL ZDIJJ0 DdY
ONYL SLXEL EOIJAJA0 OFA

1440 ¥OJd JTLYM THITLLOLE

SYD 2T/L
9z/L
9LT XO€H AdA

SINI¥d OLOHd dNId SKWVS

ONILIZW
dOHS I1J4ID d04 ¥HILYM
SEITddns

234 DFY ANOD DdDUN JHY

ve/L TIAYEL DFY
SAWYLS JOYISOd 00T

NVdAL d¥IW HD TEATIL DFY

LZ/L TIAVAL DFA
SZ/L NQT/¥9 230 DAY

NOILI¥DSEA

JALSIDAY dUYD HSYHDANA

ALNAOD AFYOLS

vIi-22-L
SOETEZ0066TY
INVIA-TSV6TT
INVYIA-66S6L0
ANVET-655900
INVYEA-6595900
INVIT-655900
ENVYI3d-655900
LINKWAS - INIYL

ATTIZYO-LNIAL
ATTIIYO-INIIL
STIYHOIW-INIAL

ZSTZ0S #SNWIL

SAAIHD ¥ SAATIITHS
gD¥1s0d T1.ad¥ ¥dos

NOILVYLS DA 94

SANITYIV LSAMINOS 54
SANNLI 94

AYYVYONHSYO Od

aoorg 40 LE¥d0d 94
ITIEOW 1LEL

SHMOT -MNOSYL
T1%928S¥% 4O ISVT #ANI
900€6%Z A0 LSYT #ANI
SHLIWS HIOWAVH

dOLs AIN0 NYWIID
ATIEIAYW NYWIIO
AI¥DITdNd SdSn NIV
SEITAdNS ONN-HAE
JIVMLIOS FOAY HAH

ANNIFY X¥IL ad

dSNO0H DNILSVOA ad
dao0d SHLIWS MD
LO4Ed IDIAA0 MO
PLEVOBL #INOD
TO80TEBBST #ANOD
84S0 -NIAEN'D
8C6TLO #HINVY
Z9TEYO HHINY
055000 #HLOY
LNHWAYd

# HDIOANI Id3A-ANAI

¥»Te301 PIeds

QUYD TYIDYIWWOD HNO STTEM
AOANIA

¥T/90/80
1s08%SHd

14

YITEWAN
od

s3eq uny
:ON 3xodsy



4

TYLOL
aqavo

abeq

YENOISSTIWWOD

NYWAIVYHD
LNNOKWY HSNVIL FLYa NOILII¥DSHJ

dALSIDEY dQUYD dASYHOUNG
ALNNOD AHIOLS

# EDIQANTI IdZd-ANNA

YOANIA

¥1/90/80
Lso8¥vsad

FHINAN

od
23eg uny
ON 3xoday



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 8/19/14 Estimate of time required: 0 - 5

Agenda: Consent [x] Regular agenda [ ] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Business License First Readings

2. Recommended motion; None required (if approved as part of the Consent Agenda)
I move to approve all first readings (if removed from consent agenda by request)

3. Prepared by: Stacey Bucchianeri
Department: Community Development Telephone: 847-0966
4, Staff summary: First readings of submitted business license applications are normally

approved on the consent agenda. The applications are then submitted at the next
Commissioners’ meeting for approval.

5. Supporting materials: See attached Agenda Letter

6. Fiscal impact: None

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required: = None
District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
x___ Departmient Department Name: Community Development

/%ﬂ County Manager Other agency review:
9. Board action:

[] Approved [] Approved with Modifications

[] Denied [] Continued

Agenda Item No.



Storey County Community Bebelopment
Business (o) Licensing

P O Box 526 * Virginia City NV 89440 « (775) 847-0966 * Fax (775) 847-0935 « buslic@storeycounty.org

To: Vanessa Stephens, Clerk’s Office August 11, 2014
Pat Whitten, County Manager Via email

Fr: Stacey Bucchianeri

Please add the following item(s) to the August 19, 2014, COMMISSIONERS Consent Agenda:

LICENSING BOARD
FIRST READINGS:

CHEWY.COM LLC - General / 700 Milan (ecommerce fulfillment ctr) TRI
PEEK BROTHERS CONSTRUCTION INC. — Contractor / 400 Carroll Drive — Fernley (contractor)

A & J PAVING - Contractor / 1490 Cherokee Trail ~ Reno (contractor)

dba RED ROCK SPRING WATER / General — 1145 Icehouse Avenue ~ Sparks

MARTINEZ TREXLER REAL ESTATE GROUP / Home Business — 92 West Taylor (real estate) VC

2O OW»

Inspection Required

ec: Shannon Gardner, Building Dept. Gary Hames, Fire Dept. Sheriff’s Office
Austin Osborme, Planning Dept. Patty Blakely, Fire Dept. Assessor’s Office
Dean Haymore, Economic Dev., Fritz Klingler, Fire Dept.



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: August 19, 2014 Estimate of time required: 10-15 minutes

Agenda: Consent [] Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Recommendation to award contract to successful bidder for the construction of the Storey
County Courthouse Roof Replacement Project.

2. Recommended motion: Move to award contract to successful bidder (name of contractor) for
the construction of the Storey County Courthouse Roof Replacement Project in the amount
of (TBD.)

3. Prepared by: Cherie Nevin
Department: Community Services Telephone: 847-0986

4. Staff summary: PLEASE NOTE THAT BIDS FOR THIS PROJECT WILL BE OPENED
ON 08/14/2014 at 2:00 pm. THE BID TABULATION SHEET WILL MADE AVAILABLE
TO YOU PRIOR TO THE COMMISSION MEETING DATE.

The quality and condition of the metal roof on the County Courthouse has been a significant
problem for many years. In an effort to remedy the ongoing problems, a team was assembled to
chart a course of corrective action. Because funds were somewhat limited at the time we initially
met, it was determined that we would seek bids to repair the roof where substantial leaking appears
to occur. CONTINUED ON PAGE 2

5. Supporting materials: Invitation to Bid

6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: YES Fund: Infrastructure Fund %é Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
UD/epmment Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office

ﬁi County Manager Other agency review:
//1,

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

e
—_—

Agenda Item No.



STAFF SUMMARY CONTINUED FROM PAGE 1

On July 14", we opened sealed bids for the repair work. There were two qualified bids received
and one that did not qualify due to late submittal. This caused an in-depth discussion regarding the
benefits of taking the more complete approach as opposed to initiating repairs. It was decided to
take the more complete approach and go back out to bid for a full roof replacement. At the August
5, 2014 Commission Meeting, a vote was made to reject all bids for the repair work and open

bidding for the re-roof process.




STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA

NOTICE INVITING SEALED PROPOSALS (BIDS)
FOR
STOREY COUNTY COURTHOUSE ROOF REPLACEMENT

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that Storey County, as Owner, invites and will receive sealed
proposals (bids), including any and all addenda, in a sealed envelope addressed and delivered to:

Storey County Clerk — Treasurer

Storey County Courthouse Roof Replacement
26 South B Street

Virginia City, Nevada 89440

up to the hour of 2:00 p.m. PDT on August 14, 2014. Bids, therefore, will be subsequently
opened and read aloud publicly at the Storey County Courthouse.

The project includes removal and replacement of entire roof assembly to include substrate repair,
high temperature snow and ice shield underlayment, new metal roofing including flashing and
other work as more clearly described in the bidding documents.

Copies of the bidding documents may be examined at Storey County Community Development,
110 Toll Road, Virginia City, NV 89440. To request a pre-bid conference or obtain bidding
documents, contact Shannon Gardner, Building Inspector, at (775) 847-0966 or
sgardner@storeycounty.org.

A Bid Bond in the amount of 5% of bid amount is required. This bid bond shall function as a
penalty in the event the successful bidder fails to enter into a written contract with the Owner.
All bidders shall be licensed and qualified by the Nevada State Contractor’s Board to do the type
of work contemplated by this project prior to the time of opening of said bids and shall be skilled
and regularly engaged in the general class or type of work.

This proposal to the Owner is irrevocable for a period of thirty (30) days after the bid opening.
The right is reserved by the Owner to reject any and all bids, waive irregularities, informalities,
or non-conformities, or to accept the bid deemed in their best interest, such as the lowest,
responsible, responsive bid. The right to add or delete items, or change quantities shown on the
bid forms is further reserved by the Owner.

Published:  August 1 and August 8, 2014 in the Comstock Chronicle



STOREY COUNTY COURTHOUSE ROOF REPLACEMENT

BID PACKAGE

July 28, 2014

BIDS DUE NOT LATER THAN: 2:00 PM PDT ON AUGUST 14, 2014

AT

STOREY COUNTY CLERK - TREASURER
26 South B Street
Virginia City, Nevada 89440

Shannon Gardner
Building Inspector
(775) 847-0966

NOTE:
This Project is being partly funded by:

Nevada Commission for Cultural Aftairs



TABLE OF CONTENTS

DIVISION 00 — BIDDING DOCUMENTS
1. INVITATION TO BID

e INVITATION TO BID
e CONTRACTOR’S QUALIFICATION STATEMENT
(AI4 DOCUMENT A305-1986)

2. BIDDING DOCUMENT

e BID PROPOSAL FORM

BID BOND
(AIA DOCUMENT A310 - 2010)

3. AWARD / AIA CONTRACT AGREEMENTS / BONDS

e STANDARD FORM OF AGREEMENT BETWEEN OWNER AND CONTRACTOR
(AIA DOCUMENT A101 —2007)

¢ PERFORMANCE BOND
(414 DOCUMENT A312-2010)

e PAYMENT BOND
(414 DOCUMENT A312-2010)

4. CONDITIONS OF THE CONTRACT

e GENERAL CONDITIONS OF THE CONTRACT FOR CONSTRUCTION
(A14 DOCUMENT A201 — 2007)

5. SCOPE OF WORK

¢ SCOPE OF WORK



Al

Contractor's Qualification Statement

The Understgned certifies under cath thar the informaiion provided hersin is rue and
sufficiently complete 50 as nat to be misleading.

SUBMITTED TO: Shannon Gardner Storey Count

ADDRESS: P.O. Box 176, \ irginia City. NV 9440

SUBMITTEDBY: WALz AR BiZ—

NaME W RIS WRD Sysraus

soress: 1512 el or. c NV 391061
PRINCIPAL OFFICE:

[ ] Corporation

[ ] Partnership

i

A

Individual
Toint Venturs

Other

NAME OF PROJECT: 11y upplivatles Storey © aunty Cowrthouse Root Replacement

TYPE OF WORK: /il sepascite jorm tor cachi ( lassiticution o Work

Genegral Construction

HY AL

Electrical

v Plumbing

§ 1 ORGANIZATION

§ 1.1 How many vears has wour arganization been i busingss as a Contracior”

(
[ 1]
[ ]
(
(

'Y

Document A305° - 1986

ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS:
The guthar of this document nas
added nformation needed for its
completion The author may also
have revisad the fext of the original
Al standard form An Additions ang
Deietions Report that notes added
information as well as rewisions to the
standard form text 1s available from
the author ang should be reviewsd A
vertical e in the teft margw of this
document indicates where the authoer
has added necessary infermation
and whers the authar has added o o
defeied from the original AiA text

This dacument has important legal
consequences Consulitation with an
attorney 18 encouraged with respect
to its compighon or maodification

This form 15 approved ang
recommended by the American
institute of Architects (AlA) and The
Associated Generat Contractors of
America (AGC) for use in evaluating
tha gualifications of contragicrs No
endarsement of the submiting party
or verification of the information 1s
made Dy AA or AGC

§ 1.2 How many years has sour Qrganizatlon seen m AUSIness under its present business l?/

name”

§ 1.2 Lnder what other or farmer fames has vour organi zation operated?

§ 1.3 ifyour organization is a corgoration. answer the following,
§ 1.3.1 Date of incorporation:
§ 1.3.2 Stare of incorparation:
§ 1.3.3 Pregident’s name: mﬁ‘!f
AlA Document Masm-wsé. Sopynght © 1984 1969 1879 and lajﬁ'n Fa amarcan irsntuleo
Dacumuent w protectad by U 5. Cepyright
Aortion of It may resuit In savam civil 4

User Notes:

(hL

Aramiects. All rights resersad. #ARNING: This 44

=i wid niwrnational Treabes. Unsuthorized @oroduction or (istebution of ihis AlA~ Socument, or ey
siminal ganaties and Ml T grasecuted (0 the maxmum extyit onBaibie ynder the law. Thg Aocument was

praducad oy 4 softwara at 1303 08 an 37 242074 undar Srder No 3144 147102 _ ! which axgices o0 04:28/2075 and & 1o For “asale

925041935,



§ 1.3.4 \ ce-president s namet s)

§ 1.3.5 Secretary s name:
§ 1.3.8 Traasurer’s name:

§ 1.4 if vour organization is a partnership, answer the following:
§ 1.4.1 Date of organization:
§ 1.4.2 Type of partnership (it applicabier
§ 1.4.3 Name(s? of general partner(s)

§ 1.5 [ your organization is individually owned. answer the following:

§ 161 Date of organization:  4ge{ 4 & W\
§ 1.5.2 Name of ownar: MM%%»‘XA%%

§ 1.6 If the form of your organization is ather than thuse fisted ahove. describe it and name the principals:

§ 2 LICENSING

§ 2.1 List jurisdictions and rade categories in which vour organization is legalty qualified to do business, and indicate
registration or license numbers, if applicable.

T = /2

§ 2.2 List jurisdictions in which your organization s partnership or trade name is filed.

INEFDYD K

§ 3 EXPERIENCE

§ 3 1 List the categaries of wark that sour organizarion narmaltly pertorms with s own forces

Holun MBI CaBeihTIoN

§ 3.2 Claims and Sutts. (Ifthe answer 1o any of the questions belaw {» yes. please atach derails.)
§ 3.2.1 Has vour organization ever failed w \.ompie[e any work awarded to 117

Ni

§ 3.2.2 Are there any judgmenss, claims, arbirvation proceedings or suits pending or outstanding against sour
organizatiun or s atficers? B\‘/,B

§ 3.2.3 Has your arganization tiled ans law suits or reguested arbitration with regard 1o construction conrracts

within the last Hyve years? Nﬂ

§ 3.3 Within the last five years. hias any officer or principal of your arganization ever been an officer or principal of

another organization when it tailed w complete o construction contract? (If the answer is ves. please attach details.

N6 I

AiA Document A306™ - 1986. Topyngrt 2 1984 1989, 1979 and *988 by Tha Ameican nstitute of Archrects, Al rtgms resar\ml NARNIMG This aia”
Qocumunt ls proteated ay L 4 Sopyrgnt Law and femanona Treaties. Jnauthorzed ssgrodusiion or dmtribution of thin AlA" Soeumant or any
ponion of it, May Asult 0 severe sl and SNTINas Jenaities. and i he prosecutsd 0 the MAXMuUm 3stens gossible undar the law This document was

groduced by A4 3oftware at 12 02 08 ar 07:24/20143 under Order No 31441471037 wineh axgives on G4:28:2075 and :¢ not for rasale
User Notes: 1925041935




§ 3.4 On a separate sheet, [ist major construction projects vour organization has in progress, giving the name of
project. owner. architect, coniract amount, percent complete and scheduled completion dare.

§ 3.4.1 State rotal worth of work in progress and under contract;

§ 3.5 On a separate sheet. list the major projects your organization has completed in the past five years. giving the
name of project. awner. architect. contract amount, date of completion and percentage of the cost of the work
pertormed with your own forees

§ 3.5.1 State average annual amount of construction work pertormed during the past five years:

§ 3.6 On a separate sheet. list the construction experience and present commitments of the Key individuals of your
organization,

§ 4 REFERENCES

§ 4.1 Trade References: w%rm%ugl’r W(’S

§ 4.2 Bank References:

§ 4.3 Suretw:
§ 4.3.1 Name of banding company:

§ 4.3.2 Name and address of agent:

§ 5 FINANCING

§ 5.1 Financial Statement,
§ 5.1.1 Artach a financial statement. preterably audited. including your organizaton's latest bafance sheet
and income statement showing the following items:

Current Assets (e.g.. cash. joint venture accounts. accounts recenvable. notes receivable. accrued
income. deposits, materials inventory and prepaid expenses):

Net Fixed Assets:

Other Assets;

Ingtitute of xrcr-{e;i?-. All rights resarved. WARNMING: This 414"

AlA Dogument A306™ ~ tsﬂ-'ﬁ.-aamnan 1944 1989 1979 and 1688 3y Tha 4marcan

Documant '8 grotectad by U3, Coayrgnt o
partian of il may result 0 snvees il g comimal panaities. aon Wil be prosecutod (o the miUmum axtent sonaible (ivder

aroducad 3y M4 software al 1243 08 on 5772420 4 under Order Ng 5144147 103_1 wiich axowes an 2i28/20135 and s not lar ‘asala
G2604° 935

User Nates:

W and intorniticnal Tmattine Unauthortzed ceoroduction ur disiribution of thie M4 Documant, or any
Ihe aw This decument was

3



Current Liabilities fe.q. aceounts payabie, notes payable, accrued expenses. provision for mcome
taxes. advances, accrued salaries and accrued payroll axes).

Other Liabilities (¢.g., capital. capital stock. authorized and outstanding shares par values. earned
surplus and retained earnings).

§ 5.1.2 Name and address of firm preparing attached financial staterment, and date thereof®

§ 5.1.3 [s the attached financial stazement for the identical organization named on page ong”

§ 5.1.4 [Fnot. explain the relationship and financial responsibility of the organization whose financial
staterent is provided {e.g.. parent-subsidiary b

§ 5.2 Will the organization whuse financial statement is attached act as guarantor of the contract for construction”

§ 6 SIGNATURE
§ 6.1 Dated at this  day of

Name of Organization:
By:

Tisfe:

§ 6.2

M being duly sworn deposes and says that the intormation provided herein is true and sufficiently complete so as not
1o he misleading.

Subscribed and sworn before me this  day ot
~otary Public:

My Commission Expires:

AlA Documnent A306™ - 1986. Copyngnt 3 1964 1983 1975 and 1966 by The Amencan nstiwe of Menitects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AjA~
Cocament i arotected by U 5, Conyright Law 3nd intemationa; Treaties. Lnauthonzed agroduction or distribution of this AIA* Socument. ar any 4
a0rtian of & iy resuit o sevare sivil and criminal oeneaties and wili ha grosscutad W (e MAKIMUM axien? J638ible Undar the iaw. This document was
produced by AiA software at 13 03 98 a0 97:24/20 14 unaer Drdar No 5144 T47103_ 0 shuch 2xpires on 342812015 and 3 not for resaie

User Noies: 1926041935



BID PROPOSAL FORM

ARTICLE 1.
PROJECT NAME Storey County Courthouse Roof Replacement
AND 26 South B Street
LOCATION Virginia City, NV 89440
OWNER Storey County
P.O. Box 176
Virginia City, NV §9440
BID OPENING Date: August 14, 2014

Time: 2:00 p.m. PDT

Place: Storey County Courthouse
26 South B Street
Virginia City, NV 89440

orpoons CORESS MiKE BaxTeR SwWiltER Sney USTEMS
N33 CanNtel D CARS s ey Ny $4761

TELEPHONE NO.
NS~ 23143

STATE OF INCORPORATION

(if applicable)

IF PARTNERSHIP

NAMES OF PARTNERS

BID GUARANTEE UNDERLINE ONE:

Min. 5% of Bid BID BOND, CASH, CERTIFIED CHECK, CASHIER’S CHECK

ADDENDA RECEIPT ADDENDA NUMBERED:

ACKNOWLEDGED

CONTRACT TIME 45 Calendar Days

LIQUIDATED DAMAGES $500.00 per excess calendar day

Bid Proposal Form
Page 1 of 4



ARTICLE 2.

IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE NOTICE INVITING SEALED PROPOSALS (BIDS), AND IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE BIDDING DOCUMENTS, THE UNDERSIGNED BIDDER, BEING DULY
LICENSED TO PERFORM SUCH WORK BY THE NEVADA STATE CONTRACTOR’S BOARD, AND
BEING THOROUGHLY FAMILIAR WITH ALL LOCAL CONDITIONS AFFECTING THE COST OF
THE PROJECT, HAVING CAREFULLY EXAMINED THE SITE, AND BIDDING DOCUMENTS,
PROPOSES TO PROVIDE AND TO FURNISH FOR THE COSTS SET FORTH IN THE FOLLOWING
BID SCHEDULE, ALL LABOR AND MATERIAL, TOOLS, UTILITIES, TRANSPORTATION,
EQUIPMENT AND SERVICES REQUIRED TO PERFORM AND TO COMPLETE IN A
WORKMANLIKE MANNER ALL THE WORK FROM THE DATE OF THE NOTICE TO PROCEED
WITHIN THE ESTABLISHED CONSTRUCTION TIME, SUBJECT TO LIQUIDATED DAMAGES FOR
EXCESS WORKING TIME AS ESTABLISHED UNDER ARTICLE 1.

ARTICLE 3. BID SCHEDULE

BASE BID DESCRIPTION:

Provide all labor, materials, services and equipment to perform all work described in the
bidding documents for:

69020 .4

FOR THE SUM OF: §

ALTERNATE 1 DESCRIPTION:

Add New Snow Retention System rated for 70 psf snow load.

FOR THE SUM OF: § 7 (030 =

ALTERNATE 2 DESCRIPTION:

Add new color matching 24 gauge metal gutters and downspouts.
z = OO
FOR THE SUMOF: § 700 “=

ALTERNATE 3 DESCRIPTION:

Add fabrication and installation of metal access stairs and cat walk with guard /
handrails (Design by owner).

7 oo
FORTHESUMOF: 8, J 30 —

Bid Proposal Form
Page 2 of 4



ARTICLE 4. LIST OF SUBCONTRACTORS

Each bidder must list on this bid form the name of each subcontractor who will provide labor or a portion of
the work or improvement for the bidder for which the subcontractor will be paid an amount exceeding 5% of
the bidder’s total bid. The prime contractor shall also list any portion of the work exceeding 5% of the prime

contractor’s total bid that the prime contractor intends to self-perform.

SUBCONTRACTOR LICENSE NUMBER

DESCRIPTION OF WORK

FABRiCATION oF STARS  ARC Bapnne LS leerwieTi

i .
% AT W ALE
V& 19z o0
INTANTITD T 1 A A ) cerr . S~ E n 2y I TR DE's) ] R} ] a1 311 P, 1 h
UNU LS 1 adqition 1o the "USt O Susconiraciors” on s 101, i N iIOGWEST DIGALTS MUST alsG subimit

a second list of subcontractors within two (2) hours afier the completion of the opening of bids. This second list
must contain the names and contractor’s license numbers of all subcontractors whose work will exceed 1% of
the total bid or $50, 000, whichever is greater. The second list must be on the form provided and must be
submitted even if there are no subcontractors in the required category. The second list may be submitted with
the bid. The prime contractor shall also list any portion of the work exceeding 1% of the prime contractor’s
total bid or $50,000, whichever is greater, that the prime contractor intends to self-perform.)

Bid Proposal Form
Page 3 of 4



ARTICLE 5.

BY AFFIXING HIS SIGNATURE, THE BIDDER CERTIFIES THAT THIS BID PROPOSAL IS
SUBMITTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH ALL THE PROVISIONS CONTAINED IN THE BIDDING
DOCUMENTS WHICH SHALL BE DEEMED APPLICABLE TO THE WITHIN PROPOSED BID.

BY: (SIGN & TYPE) TITLE 1 ON@R.
7 f ’

MIKE BAXTER

DATE: 5 K| 72X ‘f NEVADA CONTRACTORS LICENSENO.: Q¥ 7 Lo

Bid Proposal Form
Page 4 of 4



CONTRACTOR: SURETY:

tName, legal status und address; i \Nene, legal status and prineipal pluace
M ‘ "l/ é 6M 7% % of business:

757% cé N L DIC =3

CRTEoN CLy MV 39701

ryame. legad statis and addeevs
Storey County

P.O.Box 176

Virginia City, NV 89440

BOND AMOUNT: §

PROJECT:

IName. locatian or address. amd Project mumber, if am
Storey County Courthouse Roof Replacement

Virginia City, Storey County, NV

The Contractor and Surety are hound o the Owner in the amount set forth above, for the
payment of which the Conmacter and Surety bind themselves. their heirs. executors,
administrators, suceessors and assigns, jointdy and severally. as provided herain, The
conditions of this Bond are such that it the Owner accepts the bid of the Contractor within
the time specified 1n the bid documents. or within such rime period as may be agreed ro by
the Owner and Contractor, and the Contractor ¢ither 11) enters into a contract with the
Owner in accordance with the terms of such bid. and gives such bond or bonds as may be
specified in the bidding or Conrract Decuments, with a sureny admitted in the jurisdiction
of the Project and otherwise acceprable to the Owner. for the faithtul parformance of such
Contract and for the prompt payment of {abor and material furnished in the prosecution
thereof or (2) pays 1o the Guner the diference. not to exceed the amount of this Bond,
between theamount specified in said bid and such larger amount for which the Owner mas
in good faith contract with another party 10 perform the work coverad by said bid. then thix
obligation shail be null and void, otherwise to remain in fisll force and etfect. The Surets
hereby waives any notice of an agreement benween the Owner and Contractor 10 extend the
time in which the Owner may accept the bid, Waiver of norice by the Surety shall nor appty
toany extension exceeding sixty 160 duvs it the aggrezare berond the time for aceepance
of bids specified in the hid dovirments. and the Cwner and Contracror shall obrain the

Surety s consent for an extension bevond sIxty (61 davs

oo i . 7 .
ssued i crion with g suix

=

{Fihis

Contractor i this Bond shall be deemad 1o be Subconrractor and the termy Owner shall be
deermed to be Contractor,

When this Bond has been furnished o comply with a staturors or arher legal requiranten
in the location o the Project. any provisiun in this Bond contlicting with said staiutors or
legal requirement shall be deemed daleted herefrom and provisims conforming o such
statutory or other legal requirement shall be deemed tucorporated herein, When so
furnished. the infent is that this Bond shall be construed as a statutors bond and not as a

comman lgw bond.

Document A310" - 2010

ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS:
The author of this document has
aaded information needed for its
completion The author may also
have revised the text of the original
AlA standard form An Additions ang
Deletons Report that notes added
informatson as wel! as revisions (o the
standard form text 1s available from
the author and should be reviewed A
verticai iing «n the left mangin of this
document indicates where the author
nas added necessary nformation
and where the author has added ta or
asletad from ihe original AlA text
Tris document has impaortani legal
consequences. Consuitation with an
attorney is encouraged with raspect
to its compigtion or modification

Any singular reference o Contracior

Surety Qwner or other party shall be
considersd piurai whers apoticable

ELECTRONIC COPYING of any portion
of smis AIA™ Document te another
siactronic fiie is prohibited and
constitutes a violatian of copyright laws
as s2t forth in the footer of this
document

AJA Document A310 ™ - 2010, Copyrignt % *963 1570 and 25°0 ny Tha Amencan instiuie of Accnitects. All rlgntsrreservejq.r WNARNING: This AiA™ Document
'3 protected ay 5.8 Sopynght Law and iniarmationd Teaties nauknorzed eprmauction o7 distrbution 2t s 447 Tocumant, or any aortion of |,
Tedy resuit e savera ovil NG nmical sonaities 60 will D¢ arosacuted tc the Maximum axtans 1g8aibie under he ‘aw This draf was procuced oy AlA

software at 1305 5 an 97'24:2G14 urder Sraer No 3144 147031 wiriGh 2xpires on 24,2820 13, and .8 2ot for ‘gsale

Liser Notes:



N
g
c
<%
B
=
a8
o
Z
o
IR
~
@
e
=
A
o)
=

U ontraclo 1Seal
i Title
iSureivi (Seal

(it sy

crmtects. All rights resarved, WARNING. This Ala" Sosumens

AJA Document A3T0™ - 2010, Coayrgit 2 5383 1370 ang 201G oy 7a ;
- this AIAT Dacument 9r any aoton of @,

s profectyd gy U8 O Rt AW ared inamat tigs e
Ay BEHIE N Ay 2l a AN ETRRELETE AtHd s

software ar 7195 13 on 4 undar fNo 3144047
User Notes:




-AIA Document A101" - 2007

Standard Form of Agreement Between Owner and Contractor where the basis of

payment is a Stipulated Sum

AGREEMENT made as of the  day of i the vear
fin words. indicate day, month wnd vear. )

BETWEEN the Owner:

ume, legal sturis. address and other informaion;
Storey County

P.O. Box 176
Virginia City, NV 89440

and the Contractor:
IName. fegal siatus, wddress and other informaiion

N1/ KE BAXTER. [/ WATER. slisd SysiEms
7273 conrer De. cadson cirty WY 3470)

for the foliowing Project:
Name. location and deiailed deseripnon

Storey County Courthouse Roof Replacement
Virginia City, Storey County, NV
The Archirect:

tName, tegal statiss, cddrzss and orher informarion;

Not Applicable

The Owner and Contractor agree as follows

=

ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS:
The author of this decument has
added information needed for its
compietion The auther may alsc
nave revised the text of the original
AlA standard form. An Additions and
Deletrons Report that notes added
information as well ag revisions to the
standard form text is avatiable from
the author and should be reviewed A
vertical fine in the feft margin of this
documeant indicates whera the authar
nas added necessary informalion
and where the author has added to or
deleted from the criginai A1A text.

This document has important iegal
congequences. Consultation with an
attorney 15 encouraged with respect
i its compietion ar modification

AiA Document A201™-2007
General Conditions of the Coniract
for Construction, is adopted in this
documant by reference Do not use
with ether general conditions unless
this document is modified.

ELECTRONIC COPYING of any portion

of this A1A% Document 1o another
giactronic file is orotibited and
censiitutes a viotation of cooyright faws
as set fortn n tne foater of this
Focument

AlA Dogument A191™ = 2007, Copysgnt © 3915 1313 1925 1837 195 1453 1981 1963 1967 1974 1977 1987 '59Y 1897 and 2007 oy The American

institute of Architects. All rights reserved, WARNING:

e ALAT Docwimant s smalested dy U3 Topyngnr Law ana intemaianal Teaties, unauthornzea

ceprodusuon ar disinbution of shis AIA" Docurmens, 21 any 20rUGH of € My esuit . 3evera civit Ind criminal penamez;E st wt_ﬁ 2 prosacutad i the
MARiMurr exrant JoIRiire ynaze the aw Toig raht was progused by AlA software ag 13 48 48 on 07.24/201 4 under Order No, 51447471931 which expires on

04/28/2075 and 's nat for vesale
User Notes:

+1178822938



TABLE OFf ARTICLES
1 THE GONTRACT DOCUMENTS
2 THE WORK OF THIS CONTRACT

3 DATE OF COMMENCEMENT AND SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION
4 CONTRACT SUM

3 PAYMENTS

§ DISPUTE RESOLUTION

7 TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION

8 MISCELLANEQUS PROVISIONS

9 ENUMERATION OF CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

10 INSURANCE AND BONDS

ARTICLE 1 THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

The Contract Documerits consist of this Agreement. Conditions of the Contract { General, Supplementary and other
Conditions), Drawings. Specifications, Addenda issued prior to exacuiion of this Agreement, other documents fisted
in this Agreement and Modificarions issued atter execution of this Agreement. all of which form the Contract. and are
as fully a part of the Coniract as if attachad o this Agreement or repeated herein. The Contract represents the entire
and integrated agreement betsween the parties hereto and supersedes prior negotiations, representations or agreemeants.
aither written or oral. An enwnveration of the Contract Documents, other than a Modification. appears i Arucie 9

ARTICLE 2 THE WORK OF THIS CONTRACT
The Contractor shall tully execute the Work described in the Conract Documents. except as specifically indicated in
the Contract Documents to be the responsibiliny of others,

ARTICLE 3 DATE QOF COMMENCEMENT AND SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION
§ 3.1 The date of commencement of the Work shall be the dare of this Agreement unless a different date is stated
below ar provision is made tor the date to be fived m a notice tw proceed issued by the Owner.

e of commenement it it differs from the date of s Lgreement or, if applicable, stafe thar the daje will

L)

2ed 19 2 IOHCE 10 PrOcEs:

It prior to the commencement of the Work, the Owner requires thme to e mortgages and other seeurity interests. the

Gramer’s time reguirement shail be as toliows:

§ 3.2 The Contract Time shall be measurad thom the dare of commencement.

§ 3.3 The Contractor shait achieve Substantial Completion of the entire Work not larer than BQ}@}S from the date
of commencerment. or as follows
tlasert sunber of cofendur duvs Afreraatrely s ocdendur duare oy he nsed wher

erigia porticss of ihe

S, TSRl ey irenieals i carler Subviuntiul Completion of _g

wordinated with the date of

commencemeit, It upre
hork.)

Forty-Five (45) Calendar Days

AlA Document A101™ - 2007, Cogynght 5 1875 1818 1925 7 1331 1958 '981 1383 "987 1974 ig77 1987 19§ 1997 and 2007 oy The American
Institute of Architecis. All rights reservad, WARNING: T'wis Aia” Documaent 15 orptacted oy L3 Sopyngnt Law ana nrermationa Trealles. Unauthonzay 2
Apesductinn o Jistripution 5 s AtAT Oosumont ar any 20eMAn a1 May Bsuit i savare 2l and sAminal Jenaities. aaa will he gmsecutad o ihe
MaUmuT 3xtant sossiile (naer che aw This Fraft was arogucad oy AIA software at 3 06 45 o 07724:20 14 ynger Order No 81441471031 wiich expires or
04/28/2015 and :s nat ‘or rasaie

Usar Notes: (1178822996



Partion of Work Substantial Completion [i;te

- subject to adjustments of this Contract Time as provided i the Contract Documents. 7
tlasert provisions, if anvy. for hguidited danages relating o lalure to achieve Substantial Completion on ume or for

honus paymients for curly completion of the Work. )
Five Hundred Dollars ($500.00) Per Excess €alendar Day

ARTICLE 4 CONTRACT SUM )
§ 4.1 The Owner shall pav the Contractor the Coneract Suin in current funds for the C ontragtor”
Contract. The Contract Sum shali be {5 . subject to additions and deductions as provided m the Coniract

Documents. & 9617?& o &

§ 4.2 The Contract Sum is based upon the following alternates. 1 anx. which are described in the Coniract Documents
and are hersby accepted by the Owner:

tStctre the ninbers or other identification of « .«,cap[au ulterages. {7 the bidding or proposal documents permit the
Owner to acvept ather alterndtes subseqient o the execwion of s Agreement. atlach u schedule of such other

alternates showing the amount for 2ach and the Lite when thar umoint expires.;

s pertormance of the

§ 4.3 Unii prices, ifany:
tldentify and stare the wit price, swate guantity limitations. §f anv, 1o which the unit price will be applicabie.

Item Units and Limitations Price Per Unit {$0.00)

§ 4.4 Allowances included in the C(mtracf Sum. if any:
tldentify allowance and state exclusions. it s from the allmvwice price

item Price

ARTICLE & PAYMENTS

§ 5.1 PROGRESS PAYMENTS
§ 5.1.1 Based upon Applications for Payment submitted to the Ownerby the Contracter and Certiticates for Payment
issued by the Owner, the Owner shall make progress paymenis on account of the Contract Sum to the Conrractor as

provided below and elsewhere in the Contract Documents.

§ 5.1.2 The period covered by each Applicarion for Pavment shali be one calendar month ending on the last day of'the
month. or as follows: = — - / 3
S0 F oF 70ime codpipherS¢/nm Z PRI RESS iy E.
PO I+ S Vo LARER rm,v 7 97ys Flom Billirg DHTE. .

§ 5.1.3 Proy 1d¢d that an &pphcmfon tor Pa‘ ament is received by the Owner not fater than the Lia1 ofa momh jw

e Confracior not inter than
e oniaeny n 1an

1 the applicarion date fixzd above, na\»ment shall be made by the

@
(J,vm_r nol later (han l'-/ ydavs after the Owner receives the Application for Paymcm
(Federal. state or locdd [wovs ipay reguire puvewnl within g certain period of me

§ 514 Each Application for Paysrent shall b hased un the most rece 1 “““ scheduie of values submitied by the Conrracror
in accordance with the Contract Documants. The scheduie of values shall allocate the entire Contract Sum among the
various portions of the Work. The scheduis of values shall be csrepared in such form and supported by such dara to

substantiate its accuracy as the Cwner may require. This schedule, unisss objected 1o by the Owner, shall be used as a
basis for reviewing the Consractor’s Applications for Payment

AIA Document A101™ ~ 2007. Coopynght © 1913 1413 1925 1937 195! 1958 !96¢ 1982 1967 1974 1377 1887 189! 1997 and 2007 by The Amercan
Instiute of Architects. All rights reserved, WARNING This AIA™ Tocumeant ‘s orotectad 3y 15-3. Copyright Law and internatianal Treaties. Unauthonzad 3
raproduction or distnbution ot s MA” Document. ar any pactan of 4. may WUt 0 sovers Tl and SAmnai penaities. 1nd wifi be prosecuted to tha
Maxunum axtent dnssrhie undar 1he law. This drat was sroducea 9y AiA software 2t 13 0B8'45 on 07.24,2014 under Order N0 3744147403 _1 whch expires on
04/28:2015 ang s not for r2sais

User Notes. {1178822996)



§ 5.1.5 Applications for Pasment shall show the percentage of completion ot each portion ot the Work as of the end of
the periad covered by the Application for Payment.

§ 5.1.8 Subject to other provisions of the Contract Documents. the amount of 2ach progress pavment shall be
computed as foilows:

A Take that pornon of the Contract Sum properit allocable ta completed Work as determined by
multiplying the percentage completion of each portion of the Work by the share of'the Contract Sum
aliocated to that portion of the Work in the schedule of vaiues, less retainage of percent gt@%).
Pending final determination of cost to the Owner of changes in the Work. amounts not in dispute shall
be included as provided in Section 7.3.9 of AIA Document AZ01™--2007, General Conditions of the
Contract for Consiruction:

2 Add that portion of the Contract Sum properly allocable 1o materials and equipment deiivered and
suitably stored at the site fer subsequent incorporation in the completed construction {or. if approved in
advanee by the Owner. suitably stored offthe site at a location agreed upon in writing). less retainage of
percent ( f}%%):

3 Subtract the agaregate of pravious pavinents made by the Gwner: and

4 Subtract amounts. it any. for which the Owner has withheld or oullified a Certificare for Payment as
provided in Section 9.3 of AlA Document AZG1-2007,

§ 5.1.7 The progress payment amount determined in accordance with Section 5.1.6 shall be further modified under the
following circumstances:

A Add. upon Substantial Completion of the Work. a sum sutficient 1o increase the toral payments to the
fiall amount of the Contract Sum. less such amounts as the Owner shall determme for incomplete Work.
retainage applicable to such work and unsettled claims; and
(Section ¥ 5.5 of 4id Docapsent 4207 2007 reguizes reledss of upplicable retuindge upon Substanttal
Completion of Work with consent of surerv. ifany

2 Add. if finai completion of the Work s thereatter materially delayed through no fault of the Contractor.
any addinonal amounts pavable in aceordance with Section 9.40.3 of ALA Document A20 12007

§ 5.1.8 Reduction or limitation of retainage. if any, shail be as follows:
(I it is intended. prior 1o Subsiamitad Completion of the eatire Work, 1o reduce or limit the retalnage resufting trom the

percentages inserted in Sections 57,6, F and 3.1 8.2 ubove, and this s not explaied elsewhere in the Contract

Documents. insert hore provisions ror such reduction or {imiation.

§ 5.1.9 Except with the Crwner’s arior approval. the Contractor shail not make advance payments to suppliers for
materials or equipment which have not been deliversd and stored at the site.

§ 5.2 FINAL PAYMENT
§ 5.2.1 Final payment, constituting the entirg unpaid baiance of the Conrract Sum. shall be made by the {mamer o the

Contractor when
A the Contracror has fully pertormed the Coneract except for the Contractor’s responsibilits 1o correct
Work as provided ir Section 12.2.2 of 1A Docutnent A20) 2007, and v saristy other requitements. if
any. which extend bevond mmal pavment: and
2 afinal Certificate tor Pavment hus been ssued by the Owner,

§ 5.2.2 The Owner s final payment to the Contractor shali be made o later than 20 days after the issuance of the
Owner's final Certiticate for Pavinent. or as tollows.

ARTICLE 6§ DISPUTE RESOLUTION

§ 6.1 INITIAL DECISION MAKER

The Owner will serve as initial Decision Maker pursuant to Section (5.2 of ALA Document A201 2007, uniess the
parties appoint below another individual. not a parts to this Agreement. to serve as (nitial Decision Maker

AlA Document A161™ - 2007 Copyngrt © 1373 1318 1925 1837 $957 1§58 ‘9§' 1863 ‘967 19743977 18987 1997 1997 and 2007 oy The Ainencan
Instituta of Arctutects. All rights raservad. WARNING: This A" Dooumant § grmtectas 2y 3. Copyngni Lew and Inwrnational Treaties Unaulhortzed
momduction ar distrhution of this AA” DJocument, o 4ny gomion ¢ 1, May mault o Jeveres wwil and srmindl penaibes. and il 08 Drosecuted o e
maximum axtent gosaibie yoder tve law TS Irafl was progucad oy AtA softwars a: 13 06 45 on 07/24:26 74 undar Orger No 5144147102t which expires on
G44/28:2013 and s not for resale

User Notes: £1173822996;

4



I the parties mutually agree. insert the nume. addrass and other contact information of the Iitial Decsion Maker. if

other than the wner. )

§ 6,2 BINDING DISPUTE RESOLUTION

For any Claim subject to, but not resolved by. mediation pursuant to Section 13.3 of AIA Document A201-2007, the

method of binding dispute resolution shall be as follows-

(Check the appropriate box. [f the Owner and Conractor deo not sefect a method of binding dispute resolution below,
or do not subsequently agree i wrinng o a inding dispute resolutivn method other than litigation. Clesims wifl be
resofved by litigation in a comt of competend jurisdiction. ;

[-X] Arbitration pursuant to Section {34 of AlA Document A201-2007
[ ] Litigation In a court of competent jurisdiction

[ 1] Other rSpecifi

ARTICLE 7 TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION
§ 7.1 The Contract may be terminated by the Gwner or the Canfractor as provided in Article 14 of AIA Document

A2G1-2007,
§ 7.2 The Work may be suspended by ehe Owner as provided in Articte {4 of ALA Document A201-2007.

ARTICLE 8  MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

§ 8.1 Where reference is made in this Agreement 1o a provision of Al& Document A201--2007 or another Contract
Document. the reference refers to that provision as amended or supplemented by other provisions ot the Contract
Documents.

§ 8.2 Payments due and unpaid under the Contract shall bear interest from the dare payment is due at the rate stated
below. or in the absence thersol. at the legal rate provailing from tme to tme @ the place whaere the Project is located

(Inxert rate of interest agregd upon, if uny

5

§ 8.3 The Owner's representative:
1¥ame. address and ather informations

P.O. Box 176
Vieginia City, NV 89440

§ 8.4 U'he Contractor’s representative:
(Name, address dard other infarmation;
ATIRE Bx7EL _
7873 coniBE DL CHRsgNy ciTH My, $970/

AlA Document A101™ — 2007 Copyrgnt @ 1915 1918, 1925 193

User Notes:

7 1957 1958, 1841 1983 1967 1374 1977 1387 1991 1397 and 2007 by The American

Institute of Architects. Al rights reserved. NARMING. This AlA® Docurment w8 protectad by U 3. Copyrgnt Law and intemationdl Treatles. Unauthonzea
mpraduction or Hatribution of this A" Document, 3r any portign of t, may resuit i severs 2wl and criminal penalties, and will be progsecuted @ the
manimum axtant possibite under the law. This draft was produced 9y AIA software at 13,08 45 on 07/24/2014 ynder Order No.8144 147103 1 which axpires on
34/28:2013. and 5 not for resale

{11788229596)

5



§ 8.5 Neither the Owner’s nar the Contractor s representative shall be changed without ten days written notice to the
other party.

§ 8.8 Other provisions:

ARTICLE ¢ ENUMERATION OF CONTRACT DOCUMENTS
§ 9.1 The Contract Documents. except for Modifications issued after execution of this Agreement. are enumerated in

the sections below.

§ 9.1.1 The Agraement is this executed ALA Document A 101-2007. Standard Form of Agreement Betwezen Owner
and Contractor.

§ 9.1.2 The General Conditions ars AlA Document A201 -2007. General Conditions of the Contract for Construction.
§ 9.1.3 The Supplementary and other Conditiens of the Coniract:
Document Title Date Pages

§ 9.1.4 The Specifications:

(Either lisi the Specifications fwre or refer 1o un exhibat attached o this dgregment

Section Titie Date Pages

§ 9.1.5 The Drawings:

(Either list the Drawings here or refer to an exhibil attuched to 1his Agreement. i
Number Title Date

§ 9.1.6 The Addenda. if any:

Number Date Pages

Portions of Addenda relating to biddmg requiremsnts are not part of the Contract Documents uniless the bidding
requirements are also shumerated in this Article 9.

§ 9.1.7 Additional documents. if ans. forming part of the Contract Documents:

A ATA Document E2017%-2007. Digital Data Protocol Exhibirt. if compteted by the parties. or the
following:

2 Other documents. 1fany. listed below:
List here amy acditional documents that are imended (o form pave of the Contract Documents, 114
Document 42012007 provides that pulding requirements such as acvertivement or mvitation (o bid,

AIA Document A101™ - 2007. Copyrignt S 1915 1938 1925 1937 :35: 1948 196% 1362 1987 1974 1977 1987 1991 1997 and 2007 by The Amencan
ingtitute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This 414" Dotument 's aratected By 1.8, Sopynght Law and mternationad Treaties. Urauthorized
reproductian or distributian of tus AIA" Documaent, ar any nosion of A, may Bsult .n savare cvil and sniminai pendities. and ~ilt e prosecuted to the
maximum axtent possible under the taw Thus Jraft was produced by Aid software 3t '3 06 45 on 07/24/20 14 under Order N0.5744347103_1 which expires on
(4(28/2073 arid s not for resaie

User Notes: 11178822996

8



Instructions 1o Bidders., sumple forms and the Contragror's bid are not part of the Contruct Documents
unless enumerated in this Agreement. They should be listed here only if intended (0 be purt of the
Contract Documents. s

ARTICLE 10 INSURANCE AND BONDS

The Contractor shall purchase and maintain insurance and provide bonds as set forth in Article 11 of ALA Docuiment
A201-2007.

(State bonding reguirements, if any. and limits of liabilit for insurance required in Article 11 of Ald Dacument
A201-2007

Type of insurance or bond Limit of liability or bon

/LI 7.

d amount ($0.00)

This Agreement entered into as of the day and year first written above.

OWNER (Signarure) ONTRACTOR /Signaiure)

(Printed name and title) { Printed name and title

lreitpEL BAxXIEL
TWNER

ATA Docuisent AT01™ ~ 2007. Copyrigni © (915 1918, 1925 937 1851 1958 198" 1963 18567 1374 1977 '987 1991 1997 and 2007 oy The American
institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: Ttus AiA" Oncument is orotected by 1J.3. Copynght Law and Intemational Treasties. Unauthorized
regmduction or distributian of this AIA” Document. ar any pAITton of It, May AsIl 0 savere civil and sriminal panaities. and Wil be prosacuted to the
maximum axtent passibla under the law This draft sas praduced by AIA software at 13 06 45 on 07:24/2014 under Order No 8144147103_1 wnich expires on
04128/2013, ang 15 not for resaie

User Notes: (1173822596}



-AIA Document A312" - 2010

Performance Bond

CONTRACTOR: SURETY:
I Nume, legal statis and address L\{ume: ('e,gtu! sratus and principal place ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS:
of business The author of this document has

added information needed for its

completion The author may alsc

have revised the text of the onginal
OWNER: AlA standard form. An Additions and
Dalerions Report that notes added

t Nunte lagad stalis and adidress - ; )
= informiation as weil as revisions to the

Storey County standard form text is available from
P.O. Box 176 the author and should be reviewed A
Virginia City, NV 89440 verticat iine in the left margin of this
document indicates where the author
CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT has added necessary information
Date: and whare the author has added to or
TS deteted from the original AlA text
Description: This documnent has important legal

consequences, Sansulfation with an
attornay s encouraged with respect
1o s compietion ar modification

(Name and locarinn
Storey County Courthouse Roof Replacement
Virginia City, Storey County, NV

Any singuiar referance to Contractor
BOND Surety. Owner or other party shall ne

Date: considered plural whare applicable.

I\ earlier than Constraction Unatiacr Deate

Amount: S

Muodifications to this Bond: | | None L oSee Section 16

CONTRACTOR AS PRINCIPAL SURETY

Company: (Corpoirdre Seal: Company: (Crporide Seuls
Signature: Signaturs:

MName and Name and

Title: Titte:

b ddditioned sigmatires appear on e lase page of dis Performunce Besid
(FORINFORVATION ONLY — Name address and tefenhoine
AGENT or BROKER: QWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE:

Cleuiitect Eaginesr or ofher parn

P.O.Box 176

Virginia City, NV 89440
ELECTRONIC COPYING of any portion
of this AIA" Dacument 1o another
siactronic file s promibited and
consiiuies 3 vialation of copyright faws
ag sat forth in the footer of thig
decument

AlA Document A312™ - 2010 Performance Bond . The American ‘nsttute of Arcriiecis. Al rights reserved. WARNING. fnis AIA° Documant is aromected oy

U.5, Copyngnt Law and mleatinnal Treaites, Undussnzed METoducton S6amtrhubion o s A& Dacument ar 2y 3ortian af it may MLt n 1
savere svii and Srimuial aenaties, 3wd 4l e scosecuted fo fhe nraximuin atenr possipie usder the ‘aw Thus draft was oroduced ny AIA software at

13.G8:24 an 3724:20%4 gnder Oragr No 5144147 1031 which 3xpires an 34282015 and .3 0ot ‘or vesale

User Notes L 1TBAS53E2



8§ 1 The Coniractor and Surets. jointy and severally, bind themselves, their heirs, executors, administrators,
successors and ssigns ta the Owner tor the performance of the Canstruction Contract. which is incorporated herein by
reference

§ 2 [the Contractor performs the Construction Contract, the Surety and the Contractor shail have no obligation under
this Bond, except when applicable w participats in @ conference us provided in Section 3

§ 3 [t there is no Owner Default under the Construction Contract, the Surety's obligation under this Bond shail arise
after
A the Owner first provides notice to the Contractor and the Surety that the Owner is considering declaring
a Conmactor Default. Such notice shall indicate whether the Owner is requesting a conference among
the Owner. Contractor and Surety to discuss the Contractor's performance. if the Owner does not
request a conference, the Suretv may. within Hve 13) business days after receipt of the Owner’s notice,
request such a conterence. If the Suret's timely requests a conterence. the Owner shall attend. Unless
the Owner agrees otherwise, any conterence requested under this Section 3.1 shall be held within ten
(10) business davs ot the Suraty’'s receipt of the Owner’s notice, [ the Gwner, the Contractor and the
Surery agree. the Conractar shall be allowed a reasonable time to perform the Construction Contract.
but such an agreement shall not waive the Owner’s right. if any. subsequently to declare a Contractor
Petfaulr:
2 the Owner declares a Contractor Detault, terminates the Construction Contract and notifies the Surefy:
and
3 the Owner has agreed to pay the Balance of the Contract Price in accordance with the terms of the
Construction Contract to the Sursty or to a contractor selected to pertorm the Construction Contract,

§ 4 Failure on the part of the Owner to comply with the notice requirement in Section 3.1 shall not constitute a failure
to comply with a condition precedent to the Surety’s obligations. or release the Sursry from its obligations, except to
the extent the Surets demonstraies actual prejudice.

§ 5 When the Owner has satisfied the conditions of Section 3. the Sureny shall promptiy and at the Surety's expense
take one of the following actions.

§ 5.1 Arrange for the Contractor. with the consent of the Owrser, to perform and complete the Construction Contract;

§ 5.2 Underiake to perform and complete the Construction Contract itself. through its agents or independent
corractors:

§ 5.3 Obrain bids or negatiated proposals from qualified contractors acceptable to the Owner for a conuact for
performance and completion of the Construetion Conmract. arrangs for a contract o be prepared for execution by the
Owner and a contractor selected with the Owner's concurrence, 1o be secured with performance and payment bonds
executed by a qualified suretv equivalent to the bonds issued on the Construction Contract. and pay to the Owner the
amount of damages as described in Section 7 in excess of the Balance of the Contract Price incurred by the Owner as
a result of the Contractor Default; or

§ 5.4 Waive its right 1o perform and compiere. arrange for completion. or obtain a new contractor and with reasonable
prompiness under the circumstances:
A After investiganon, determine the amount for which it may be Hable to the Owner and. as soon as
practicable after the amount is determined. make pasment to the Owner: ot
2 Deny liabthny in whole of v part and notiny the Owner, citing the reasons for denial

§ 6 (t'the Surety does not procesd as provided in Section 3 with reasonable prompiness. the Surety shali be deeraed to
be in default on this Bond seven davs after receipt of an additional written nonice from the Owner to the Surety
demanding that the Surety perform its obligations under this Bond. and the Owner shall be entided to enforce any
remedy available to the Owner (7 the Surets proceeds as provided in Section 3 4, and the Owner refuses the payment
or the Surety has denied liability, in whole or in pars. without firther notics the Owner shalt be entitled to enforce any

remedy available o the Owner

AlA Document A312°% - 2010 Performance Bond. Tne Amercan mattute 3f Archiscts. All rights reserved. WARNING. This AIA" Document 's grtectad ny
-3, Copyngnt Law and intarnational Treaties. Unaulhgnzed mproduction of distribution 2f s AJA" Jacumaent. sr amy portion of 4. may asuit 'n
savare Zivil and cnfmmal sengities, and il e gruse;utea io the maximum axtgnt Jonebie under e law This draft was preduced by AJA software at
13 38 24 an 072412014 ynder Order N 3142147 1031 #4nigh 2x0ires on 04.38:2G15 and s Aot for ;esale

Usger Notes: {*768055362)



§ 7 1vthe Surety 2lects 1o act under Secoon 5 L3 2 or 3.3 then the responsibilities olthe Surety 1o the Owner shall st
be areater than those of the Contractor under the Construction Contract. and the responsibilities of the Owner o the
Su.z, shall not he greater than those of the Owner under the Construction Contragt, Subject to the commitment by the
Owner to pay the Balance of the Contract Price. the Surety is obligated, withour duplication. for

A the responsibilities of the Contractor tor correction of detective work and completion of the

Censtruction Contract:
2 additional legal. design professionai and defas costs resufting from the Contractor’s Default. and

resulting from the actions or favure o act of the Surety under Section 3t and

3 liquidated damagss. or if no liguidared damages are specitied in the Construetion Contract. actual

damages caused by delayed performance ar non-performance of the Contractor.

§ 8 Ifthe Surery elects o act under Section 3.1, 3.3 or 3.4, the Sureiy's lfability is limited to the amount of this Bond.
§ 9 The Surety shall not be liable to the Owner or others for ohi?gafi@ns of the Contractor that are unrelated to the
Constraction Conrreact, and the Balance of the Contraut Price shali nat be reduced or set off on account of any such
urrefated obligations, No right of action shall accrue on this Buné to any person or entity other than the Owner or it
heirs. exscutors, adm mistrators, successors and assigns.

§ 10 The Surety hereby waives notive of any change. including changes of time. to the Construction Conract or (0
related subcontracts. purchase orders and other obligations.

§ 1AM pmgandma legal or equitable, under this Bond max be instituted in any court of competent jurisdiction &
the Jocation in which the work or part of the work is focated and shali be instituted within two years alter a declaration
ot Contracter Detault or within two sears atter the Coniractor ceased working or within two years after the Surety
refuses or fails pertorm its obhgarions under this Bond. whichever oceurs first. [€the provisions of this Paragraph
are voud or profibited by law. the minimum period of limitation avaitabie to sureties as a defense in the jurisdiction of

the suit shali be appiicabie.

§ 12 Notice to the Surers, the Owner or the Contractor shall be mailed or delivered 1o the address shown on the page
on which thefr signature appears.

§ 13 When this Bond has been flanished to comply with u statutory or other legal requirement in the lecation where
the construction was e be performed. an» provision i this Bond contlicting with said statutory or legal requirement
shalf be deemed delered herefrom and provisions conforming o such statutory or other legal requirement shall be

deemed incorporated herein. When so furnished. the intent is that tus Bond shall be construed as a statutory bond and

not as a comman law bond

§ 14 Definitions

§ 14.1 Balance of the Contract Price. The total amount payabiz oy the Owrner to the Contractor under the Construction
Contract after all proper adjustments have been made. including allowance o the Confractor of any amyunis received
ar t be recetved by the Ovner in settlement of insurance or other claims for damages to which the Contractor is
entitled. reduced by st valid and proper payments made w or on behalt of e Contractoy under the Construction
L{ontract.

§ 14.2 Construction Contract. The agreement detween e Dwner and Conpactor idennified on the cover page.
mcluding ail Contract Documents and changes made to the agreemens and the Contract Documents,

§ 14.3 Contractor Default. Fasiure of the Contractor. which has nut been remedied or waived, o perform or otherwise

Lo comply with a material lerm of the Construcrion < oniragt

§ 14.4 Owner Default. Failure of the Owner, which has not been remedied or waived. @ pay the Contractar as required
uader the Construction Coniract or to pertomn and complets or cormpls with the other materiai teyms of the
Construction Contract,

§ 14.5 Contract Dacuments. A!l the docuimenis thar comprise the agrzemant between the Owner and Contractor.

AlA Document A312™ - 2010 Parformance Bond. Tre Amercan insttute 27 Archracts. All rights reserved. NARNING Tius aiA” Document 8 Drotecies Sy
U 8. Sopyngas vaw 400 nternaticnal Treaties. Lnauth.yivzed ‘epryducuoly of dstnbution af this AlA Socument 97 any parhar af 't may resui
avare Sivi and cominal sanadities, and A Be prosecuted o the Maomum sttt soasibie dtdes e iaw s draft was produced by AlA software as
1308 24 on 37124,204 3 under 123:2G15 ang § notor fesag

User Notes:

1758058538



§ 15 [rthis Bond is issued for an agreement berween a Contractor and sibcontractor. the renm Contractor in this Bond
shall be deemed to be Subcontractor and the term Owner shall be deemed to be Contractor

§ 16 Modifications to this bond are as follows:

(Space is provided helow far additional signatures of added purties, other than those appearing on the cover page. )
CONTRACTOR AS PRINCIPAL

SURETY
Company: (Corporate Seal Company: (Corporate Seal
PRESHED S S
Signature:

2l Sigaure
Name and Titie: y ; i Name and Title:
Address: WA BALTER Address:

55%23' ks
7373 ciER DL =
CRESeN c+727 Ny

920/

AlA Document A312™ - 2010 Performance Bond. T2 Amercan Instituta of Arcmitects: All Aghts raserved. WARNING This 4iA” Qocument is protacted sy
U.3. Copyright Law and Intemalional Treathes, Lnauthorized repraduction ar distribution of this AIA" Document, or iy portion of i, may result in

savars civil and criminal penalties. ina il be prosecuted to (he maximum axtent pessibie ondar the law This draft #as droduced oy AJA software at
130824 on 0772412014 unaer Orgar NG 3144 147 103! wnich axmiras an 04,28/20°5 -and 8 nat for resaie
User Notes:

{1768055382)



.AIA Document A312" - 2010

Payment Bond

SURETY:

e, fegad steuus und principal pluce

CONTRACTOR:
tName. legal status and addresss

;L
af PUSIHCRS,

OWNER:

tName. legal status and address)
Storey County

P.O. Box 176

Virginia City. NV 89440

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT

Date;

Amount: $

Descripzion;

fNume dad location

Storey County Courthouse Roof Replacement
Virginia City. Storey County, NV

BOND
Date:
{Nar earlicr than Constricrion Congraer Dafe

Amount; %

Modifications (o this Bond: T —: Nofie
CONTRACTOR AS PRINCIPAL SURETY
Company: (Ciperaie Seaf Compans o rpopruts Seal )

Signature: Signature:

Name and Name and
Title: Title:

fAny uddisional sigiwaires g st ihals Pavment Boad. s

nr e foxs o

FEOR INFORMATION ONL)
AGENT or BROKER:

Migne addiesy gad welephone
OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE:

P e Hite ) BRgineer Qo atfier parih

P.G. Box 176
Virginia Citv. NV 89440

ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS:

The author of this document has
added nformatian needed for its
completion Tha author may aiso
have revisad the text of ihe ariginal
AiA standard form Ao Additions and
Detetions Report at notes added
information as weil 4s revisions to the
standard form text is available from
the author and shouls be reviewsd A
Jartical ine n the left margin of this
document indicates where the author
nas added necessary information
and where the author has added to or
deieted from the ongimal AlA text

This document has important iegal
consequences Consultation with an
attorney s encouraged with respect
to s completion or modification

Any singular reference to Contractor

Surety Owner or other party shail be
considered lural wherg apptcable

ELECTRONIC COPYING of any portion
af tus AlAT Document 1o anothar
2iecironic fig s proMmbited and
constitdtes a vialatior of sopyright laws
as sat forth 0 the footer of this
documeant

AU} Docwment A312™ - 2010 Payment Bond. The Amer<ar
w3 Capyngnt (aw 1o teriabkaads Toeaties wnauinunzer
FQYBIR S g SYRINING JRndIl@s. ANl s De arsIcufed 1o
1309 *3 ap 724,20 74 snder Draer Ne 3742147 1331 whics @xpiras an 24 28
tIsar Notes:

nstizute of Aranites. Al rights reserved. WARNING This AlAT Document s oratected Sy
wiprnducon oo Jigirputon o s A7 Dacument orany goien of 4 may resuit m
& MALNNU PTent Jossibile undar e law Tois draft was oreduces oy AlA software ar
3l § 70t oF tesale

(88758318,



§ 1 The Contractor and Surerv. jointy and severalix. bind themseives, their heirs, executors, administrators,
successors and assigns to the Owner to pay tor labor, materials and equipment turnished tor use i1 the performance ol
the Construction Congract. which is incorporated herein by reterence. subject to the following terms.

§ 2 [fthe Conwactor promptiy makes puyment of ail sums dug 10 Claimants. and defends, indemnities and holds
harmless the Owner from claims. demands. tiens or suits by any person or entity seeking payment for laber. materials
or equipment furnished for use iin the performance of the Construction Contract. then the Surety and the Contractor

shall have no obligation under this Bond,

§ 3 Ifthere is no Owner Default under the Construction Contract, the Surety’s obligation to the Owner under this
Bond shall arise atter the Owner has promptly notitied the Contractor and the Surety {at the address described in
Section |3 of claims, demands. liens or suits against the Owner or the Owner’s property by any person or entity
seeking payment tor fabor, maierials or equipment furnished tor use in the performance of the Construction Contract
and tendered defense of such claims, demands. liens or suits o the Contractor and the Surety,

§ 4 When the Owner has satistied the conditions in Section 3. the Surets shall promptly and at the Surety’s expense
defend. indemnify and hold harmless the Owner against a duly fenderad claim. demand. iien or suit.

§ 5 The Surery’s cbligations Lo a Claimant under this Bond shail arise afier the toliowing:

§ 5.1 Claimants. who do not have a direcr contract with the Conrractor.

A have furnished a written netice of non-payment to the Contractor. stating with substantial accuracy the
amouni claimed and the name of the party to whoimn the materiafs were, or equipment was, furnished or
supplied or for whom the [abor was done or performed. within ninety (90} days after having last
perfurmed labor or fast furnished materials or equipment included m the C'laim: and

2 have sent a Claim to the Surets (ar the address described in Section {34,

§ 5.2 Claimanis, who are employed by or have a direct contract with the Contractor. have sent a Claim to the Surery (ar
the address described in Section {31,

§ 6 1fa notice of non-pavinent requirsd by Section .11 {5 given by the Cwner to the Contractor. that is sufficient o
satisfy a Claimant’s obligation to furnish a written notice of non-pavment under Section 3.1.1,

§ 7 When a Claimant has satisfied the conditions of Sections 3.1 or 5.2, whichever is applicahle. the Surety shall
prompify and at the Surety s expense ake the fo)lowing actions:

§ 7.1 Send an answer to the Claimant. with a copy to the Owner, within sixty (60) days atter receipt of the Claim.
stating the amounts that are undisputed and the basis tor challenging any amounts that are disputed: and

§ 7.2 Pay or arrange for pasviment of ans andisputed amounts.

shall not be deemed o

§ 7.3 The Swreny’s failure 10 discharge its obhigations under Section 7.1 or Section 7 2
constitute a wajver of defenses the Surety or Contractor may have or acquire s to o Claum, except as ro andisputed
amounts for which the Surety and Claimant navs reached agreement 1, however. the Surety fails to discharge its
obligations wider Section 7.1 or Section 7 2. the Surets shall indemmifs the Claimant for the reasonable attomey s fees
the Claimant incurs thereatter to recover ary sums found to be due and owing o the Claimant

§ B The Surety’s total ubligation skali nut exceed the amount of this Bond. pius the amount of reasonabie attorney s
fees provided under Section 7.3, and the amuunt of this Bond snall be credited tor any payiments made in good faith by
the Surety

§ 9 Amounts owed by the Owner to the Contractor under the Construction Contrace shatl be used for the performance
ofthe Censtruction Contract and to saiisty cluints, ifany. under any construction per formance bond. By the Contracror
furnishing and the Owner accepting this Bond. thes agree that all funds 2armed by the Contractor in the performance of
the Construction Contract are dedivated to satists obiigations of the Contractor and Sureny under this Bond. subject io
the Owner's priovity o use the funds tor the completion of the work.

AlA Document A312™ - 2016 Payment Bond. The Amarcan instiute ¥ Archiects. All rights reservad, NARNING This &A" Document s protected ay
J.3. Cogyrght Law and :nternational Treaties ynauthonzed regreduetinn a¢ datdbution 2f tys aid” Qocument, or any portion of 4. may resuft in
savars civil and cominat genaities. andg vl ve prosesuted To the Mazimun sstent pasmbie gnder ihe faw Thus draft was oroducad by AiA software a¢
13 35 13 0n 972420 14 under Ordar No 3144147103 _7 winigh aspiras an 04 28:2015 2035 not for rasale

lser Notes: /8087495313)



§ 10 The Surety shall nvt b2 labie ta the Owner. Clammants or athers tor obligations of the Contractor that ape
unrelated to the Constrycrion Contract. The Owster shall not be {iable for the payment of any costs ur expenses of any
Clairmant under this Borud, and shali have under this Bond no obligation to make pavments to. or give notice on behalt
of. Claimants or otherwise have any oblizadons w Claimants under this Sond,

§ 11 The Surety hereby watves notice of any change, inciwding changes of time, o the Construction Contract or 1o
related subconiracts. purchase orders and other obligations.

§ 12 No sust or acnon shail be commenced by 4 Claimant under this Bond other than in 4 court of comperent
Jurisdiction in the state m which the project that is the subject of the Construction Contract is tocated or after the
expiration of one year from the date (1) on which the Claimani sent a Claim to the Surery pursuans to Section 3.1.2 or
5.2, 0r {2y on which tha last labor or service was performed hy anyone or the last materials or squipment were
furnished by anyone under the Construction Contract. whichever of (1 or (2) first occurs. [{the provisions of this
Paragraph are void or prohibited by lavw. the minimum period of limitation available to sureties as a defense in the
Jurisdiction of the suit shai! be applicabie.

§ 13 Noutice and Claims to the Surery. the Owner or the Centractor shall be mailted or deliverad to the address shown
on the page on which their signature appears. Actual receipt of notice or Claims. however accomplished. shall be
sufficient compliance as of the daie received.

§ 14 When this Bond has been furnished o comp'y with a statutory or ether legal requirement in the tocation where
the construcrion was to be pertormed. any provision i this Bond conflicting with said statutory or legal requirement
shatl be deemed deleted heretrom and provisions conforming o such statutory or other iegal requirement shall be
deemed incorporated herew, When so turnished. the intent is that this Bond shall be construed as a statutory bond and
not as a common law bond.

§ 15 Upon request by any person or enrit: appearing o be a potential beneficiary of this Bond. the Contractor and
Owner shall promptly tuenish a copy of this Bond or shall permit a copy o be made.

§ 16 Definitions
§ 161 Claim, A written statement by the Claimant including ar a minimum:
A the name of the Clamant
.2 the name of'the person for whore the labor was done. or materials or equipment fumished.
3 acopy of the agreement or purchase order pursuant to which labor. materials or equipment was
furnished for use in the performance ol the Construction Contract:
a brief description ot thy labor. maierials or equipment Ranished.
S5 the date on which the Clanman: last performed {abor or last furnished materials or equipment for use in
the performance of the Construction Contract;
& the wtal amount sarned by the Claimans for fabor. macerials or equipment furnished s of the date of the
Claim;
T the total amouns of previus pavments recetvad oy the Clafimant: and

'y

date oi'the Claim.

comeract with the Confracior or with a subconmacror of the

§ 16.2 Claimant. An sdividual or entits baving 1 di
Contractor to furnish labor. marterials or equipment for use i the performance of the Construction Contract The term
Claimant afso meludes ary individual or entny that has righthdiy asserted a claim under an applicable mechanic’s fien
or similar statute against the real properny upon whieh she Project i3 located. The mitent of this Bond shall be to mclude
without limitation in the renrs "labor. materials or egiupment” that part of water, gas. nower. light, heat. oil, gasoline.
telephone service or rontat equipment used 5 the L onsteucrion Contract architecrural and engingering services
required for performance o the work of the Contractor and the Contractor’s subcontractors. and alf other items for
which a mechanic’s lien may be asserted in the ursdiction where the iabor. materiais or esquipment wers furnished.

2]
H

§ 16.3 Construction Contract. The agreement between the Ovwner and Contractor identified on the cover page.
including all Conrract Documents and all changes made 1 the agreement and the Contract Documents

AtA Document A312™ - 2010 Paymsni Bond. The Amercar mstiute of Arcrtens, All rglits reserved. MARNING This AA" Docummant 's arotectad oy
.8 Lopynghiiaw aed internannaat Treabes Upadtiorgen Murogaction or diatnbulion o1 tue A" Josument. of any aomion of t, may maul in
aevare vl and 020al genalting. B afi De groseculad W the mANMuUm axtant possihe anaer me aw Ths draft was oroguesc oy AlA software at
1395 1300 972402604 ander Crder No 4144047 1031 wruch 2xpdas o 34/28,20 13 and 's o1 ot -
User Notes:

(8087993 &)



§ 16.4 Qwner Default. Failure of the Owner. which has not been remedied or waived. to pav the Contractor as required
under the Constructivn Contract or to perform and complete or comply with the other material termts ot the
Construction Contract,

§ 16.5 Contract Documents. All the documents that comprise the agreement between the Owner and Contractor.

§ 17 (fthis Bond is issued for an agreement between a Contractor and subcontractor. the term Contractor in this Bond
shall be desmed to be Subcontractor and the term Owner shall be deemed to be Contractor.

§ 18 Modifications to this bond are as foliows:

(Space is provided betow for additional signusures of adided parties, other thun thuse appearing on the cover page. ;

CONTRACTOR AS PRINCIPAL SURETY

Company: {Corparate Secl Company: Corporate Seal)
Signature: Signature:

Name and Title: Name and Tirle:

Address: Address:

AlA Documant A312™ - 2010 Payment Bond. The Arerican Instiuie of Arshiterts, All rights resarved, WARNING This AlA” Docyment & protacted by
.8, Copyright Law and international Treatiss. Linautharized reproduction or distribution of thig AlA" Documeni. ar any portion of 1, may resuit in
savere civil and criminal penaities Anc will e arosecuted o Hie maximum axtent possible under the 'aw This draft was produced by AlA software at
1305 13 on 07/24/2014 uader Order No 8144147703 _1 wrish exoires an 04:28/2015 and 18 not for resale

User Notes: {B08799318)



ATIA Document A201™ — 2007

General Conditions of the Contract for Construction

for the following PROJECT:

(Name and location or address)

«Storey County Courthouse Roof Replacement Storey-County-Courthouse-Reof Repairs»

«Virginia City, Storey County, NV»

THE OWNER:

(Name, legal status and address)
«Storey County»« »

«P.O. Box 176

Virginia City, NV 89440»

THE ARCHITECT:

(Name, legal status and address)
«Not Applicable »« »

«»

TABLE OF ARTICLES

1 GENERAL PROVISIONS

2 OWNER

3 CONTRACTOR

4 ARCHITECT

5 SUBCONTRACTORS

6 CONSTRUCTION BY OWNER OR BY SEPARATE CONTRACTORS
1 CHANGES IN THE WORK

8 TIME

9 PAYMENTS AND COMPLETION

10 PROTECTION OF PERSONS AND PROPERTY

n INSURANCE AND BONDS

12 UNCOVERING AND CORRECTION OF WORK

13 MISCELLANEQUS PROVISIONS

14 TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION OF THE CONTRACT
15 CLAIMS AND DISPUTES

ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS:
The author of this document
has added information
needed for its completion.
The author may also have
révised the text of the
original AIA standard form.
An Additions and Deletions
Report that notes added
information as well as
revisions to the standard
form text is available from
the author and should be
reviewed.

This document has important
legal consequences.
Consultation with an
attorney is encouraged with
respect to its completion
or modification.

ELECTRONIC COPYING of any
portion of this AIA® Document
to another electronic file is
prohibited and constitutes a
violation of copyright laws
as set forth in the footer of
this document.

AIA Document A201™ — 2007. Copyright ° 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, :
American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.8. Copyright Law and International

Treaties. Unauthorized raproduction or distribution of this ATA® Document, or any portien of 1t, may result in severe civil and zriminal
penalties, and will be prosecutad to the maximum sxtent possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 156:12:36 on

06/06/2014 under Order No.5144147103_1 which expires on 04/28/2015, and is not for resale,

User Notes:

1951, 1958,

1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The

(1196123245)



INDEX
(Topics and numbers in bold are section headings.)

Acceptance of Nonconforming Work
9.6.6,99.3,12.3

Acceptance of Work
9.6.6,9.8.2,9.9.3,9.10.1,9.10.3, 12.3

Access to Work

3.16,6.2.1,12.1

Accident Prevention

10

Acts and Omissions
3.2,3.3.2,3.12.8,3.18,4.2.3,8.3.1,9.5.1, 10.2.5,
102.8,13.4.2,13.7,14.1, 15.2

Addenda

1.1.1, 3.11

Additional Costs, Claims for
3.74,3.7.5,6.1.1,7.3.7.5,10.3,15.1.4
Additional Inspections and Testing
94.2,9.8.3,122.1,13.5

Additional Insured

11.1.4

Additional Time, Claims for
324,3.74,3.7.5,3.102,83.2,15.1.5
Administration of the Contract
3.1.3,4.2,94,95

Advertisement or Invitation to Bid

1.1.1

Aesthetic Effect

4.2.13

Allowances

3.8,73.8

All-risk Insurance

11.3.1, 11.3.1.1

Applications for Payment
42.5,739,9.2,9.3,94,95.1,9.6.3,9.7,9.10,
11.1.3

Approvals

2.1.1,22.2,2.4,3.1.3,3.10.2, 3.12.8, 3.12.9, 3.12.10,
4.2.7,93.2,13.5.1

Arbitration

8.3.1,11.3.10, 13.1, 15.3.2, 15.4
ARCHITECT

4

Architect, Definition of

4.1.1

Architect, Extent of Authority
24,3.12.7,4.1,42,52,63,712,73.7,74,9.2,
9.3.1,94,9.5,9.6.3,9.8,9.10.1,9.10.3, 12.1, 12.2.1,
13.5.1,13.5.2,14.2.2,14.24,15.1.3,15.2.1
Architect, Limitations of Authority and
Responsibility
2.1.1,3.12.4,3.12.8,3.12.10,4.1.2,4.2.1,4.2.2,
4.23,426,427,42.10,4.2.12,4.2.13,5.2.1, 7.4,
94.2,953,9.6.4,15.1.3,15.2

Architect’s Additional Services and Expenses
24,11.3.1.1,12.2.1,13.5.2,13.5.3, 1424
Architect’s Administration of the Contract
3.1.3,42,374,152,94.1,9.5

Architect’s Approvals

2.4,3.13,3.5,3.10.2,42.7

Architect’s Authority to Reject Work
3.5,426,12.1.2,12.2.1 j

Architect’s Copyright

.17, 1.5

Architect’s Decisions
3.74,42.6,427,42.11,4.2.12,4.2.13,4.2.14, 6.3,
73.7,73.9,8.1.3,83.1,9.2,94.1,9.5,9.8.4,9.9.1,
13.5.2,15.2,15.3

Architect’s Inspections
3.74,422,429,94.2,9.83,99.2,9.10.1, 13.5
Architect’s Instructions 1
32.4,33.1,426,427,13.5.2

Architect’s Interpretations

42.11,4.2.12

Architect’s Project Represeritative

42.10

Architect’s Relationship with Contractor
1.1.2,1.5,3.1.3,3.2.2,3.2.3,3.2.4,33.1,34.2,3.5,
3.7.4,3.7.5,3.9.2,3.9.3,3.10, 3.11, 3.12, 3.16, 3.18,
4.12,4.13,42,52,622,7,83.1,92,9.3,94,9.5,
9.7,9.8,9.9,10.2.6,10.3,11.3.7, 12, 13.4.2, 13.5,
152 ,
Architect’s Relationship with Subcontractors
1.1.2,42.3,4.2.4,42.6,9.6.3,96.4,11.3.7
Architect’s Representations

9.4.2,9.5.1,9.10.1

Architect’s Site Visits
37.4,42.2,429,94.2,95.1,9.9.2,9.10.1, 13.5
Asbestos

10.3.1

Attorneys’ Fees

3.18.1,9.10.2, 10.3.3

Award of Separate Contracts

6.1.1,6.1.2

Award of Subcontracts and Other Contracts for
Portions of the Work

52

Basic Definitions

1.1

Bidding Requirements

1.1.1,52.1,11.4.1

Binding Dispute Resolution

9.7,11.3.9,11.3.10, 13.1, 15.2.5, 15.2.6.1, 15.3.1,
15.3.2,15.4.1

Boiler and Machinery Insurance

11.3.2

Bonds, Lien

7.3.7.4,9.10.2,9.10.3

Bonds, Performance, and Payment
7.3.74,9.6.7,9.10.3,11.3.9,11.4

AIA Document A201™ - 2007. Copyright 2 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925,

1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The

American Tastitute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This ATIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International
Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this ATA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal
penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 16:12:36 on

06/06/2014 under Order No.6144147103_1 which expires on 04/28/2015, and is not for resale.

User Notes:

(1196123245)



Building Permit

3.7.1

Capitalization

1.3

Certificate of Substantial Completion
9.8.3,9.8.4,9.8.5

Certificates for Payment
42.1,42.5,4.2.9,93.3,9.4,9.5,9.6.1,9.6.6,9.7,
9.10.1,9.10.3,14.1.1.3, 14.2.4, 15.13

Certificates of Inspection, Testing or Approval
1354

Certificates of Insurance

9.10.2,11.1.3

Change Orders
1.1.1,2.4,34.2,3.7.4,3.82.3,3.11,3.12.8,4.2.8,
523,712,7.1.3,7.2,7.3.2,7.3.6,7.3.9,7.3.10,
8.3.1,9.3.1.1,9.10.3, 10.3.2, 11.3.1.2, 11.3.4, 1 1.3.9,
12.1.2,15.1.3

Change Orders, Definition of

7.2.1

CHANGES IN THE WORK
22.1,3.11,428,7,72.1,7.3.1,74,83.1,93.1.1,
11.3.9

Claims, Definition of

15.1.1

CLAIMS AND DISPUTES
3.24,6.1.1,6.3,7.3.9,9.3.3,9.104, 10.3.3, 15, 154
Claims and Timely Assertion of Claims

15.4.1

Claims for Additional Cost
324,3.74,6.1.1,73.9,10.3.2,15.1.4

Claims for Additional Time
3.24,3.74,6.1.1,83.2,10.3.2,15.1.5

Concealed or Unknown Conditions, Claims for
3.7.4

Claims for Damages
3.2.4,3.18,6.1.1,8.3.3,9.5.1,9.6.7,10.3.3, 11.1.1,
11.3.5,11.3.7, 14.1.3, 14.2.4, 15.1.6

Claims Subject to Arbitration

153.1, 15.4.1

Cleaning Up

3.15,6.3

Commencement of the Work, Conditions Relating to
22.1,322,34.1,3.7.1,3.10.1, 3.12.6, 5.2.1,5.2.3,
6.2.2,8.12,82.2,83.1,11.1,11.3.1,11.3.6, 114.1,
15.1.4

Commencement of the Work, Definition of

8.1.2

Communications Facilitating Contract
Administration

39.1,4.2.4

Completion, Conditions Relating to
3.4.1,3.11,3.15,42.2,42.9,82,94.2,9.8,99.1,
9.10,12.2, 13.7, 14.1.2
COMPLETION, PAYMENTS AND
9

Completion, Substantial
429,8.1.1,8.1.3,82.3,9.42,9.8,9.9.1,9.10.3,
12.2,13.7
Compliance with Laws

16,3.2.3,3.6,3.7,3.12.10, 3.13,4.1.1,9.6.4, 10.2.2,
11.1,11.3,13.1, 13.4, 13.5.1, 13.5.2, 13.6, 14.1.1,
14.2.1.3,15.2.8,154.2,154.3

Concealed or Unknown Conditiens
3.7.4,42.8,83.1,103

Conditions of the Contract

1.1.1,6.1.1,6.1.4

Consent, Written
3.42,3.74,3.12.8,3.14.2,4.1.2,9.3.2,9.8.5,9.9.1,
9.10.2,9.10.3, 11.3.1,13.2,13.4.2, 15.4.4.2
Consolidation or Joinder

15.4.4

CONSTRUCTION BY OWNER OR BY
SEPARATE CONTRACTORS

1.14,6 d

Coanstruction Change Directive, Definition of
7.3.1

Construction Change Directives
1.1.1,3.4.2,3.12.8,4.2.8,7.1.1,7.1.2,7.1.3,7.3,
93.1.1

Construction Schedules, Contractor’s
3.10,3.12.1,3.12.2,6.1.3, 15.1.5.2

Contingent Assignment of Subcontracts
54,14222

Continuing Contract Performance

15.1.3

Contract, Definition of

1.1.2

CONTRACT, TERMINATION OR
SUSPENSION OF THE

54.1.1,11.39, 14

Contract Administration

3.1.3,4,9.4,9.5

Contract Award and Execution, Conditions Relating
to

3.7.1,3.10,5.2,6.1, 11.1.3, 1 1.3.6, 11.4.1
Contract Documents, Copies Furnished and Use of
1.52,225,53

Contract Documents, Definition of

1.1.1

Contract Sum
3.74,3.8,523,72,73,74,9.1,9.4.2,9.5.1.4,
9.6.7,9.7,10.3.2,11.3.1, 14.2.4, 143.2, 15.1.4,
15.2.5

Contract Sum, Definition of

9.1

Contract Time
3.7.4,3.7.5,3.10.2,5.2.3,7.2.1.3,73.1,7.3.5, 7.4,
8.1.1,8.2.1,83.1,9.5.1,9.7,10.3.2, 12.1.1, 14.3.2,
15.1.5.1,15.2.5

Contract Time, Definition of

8.1.1

AIA Document A201™ - 2007. Copyright 3

* 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The

American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This ATA® Document 28 protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International
Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this ATA? Document, or any portion of it, may result in severs civil and eriminal
penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possibles under the law. This draft was produced by AIR software at 16:12:36 on

06/06/2014 under Order No.6144147103 1 which expires on 04/28/2015, and is not for resale.

User Notes:

(1196123245)



CONTRACTOR

3

Contractor, Definition of

3.1,6.1.2

Contractor’s Construction Schedules
3.10,3.12.1,3.12.2,6.1.3, 15.1.5.2

Contractor’s Employees
332,343,3.8.1,39,3.18.2,423,4.2.6, 10.2, 10.3,
11.1.1,11.3.7, 14.1, 14.2.1.1

Contractor’s Liability Insurance

11.1

Contractor’s Relationship with Separate Contractors
and Owner’s Forces
3.12.5,3.142,42.4,6,11.3.7,12.1.2,12.2.4
Contractor’s Relationship with Subcontractors
1.2.2,3.3.2,3.18.1,3.18.2, 5,9.6.2,9.6.7,9.10.2,
11.3.1.2,11.3.7,11.3.8

Contractor’s Relationship with the Architect
1.1.2,1.5,3.1.3,3.2.2,3.2.3,3.24,33.1,3.4.2, 3.5,
3.74,3.10,3.11,3.12,3.16, 3.18, 4.1.3,4.2, 5.2,
6.2.2,7,83.1,92,9.3,9.4,95,9.7,9.8,9.9, 10.2.6,
10.3,11.3.7,12, 13,5, 15.1.2, 15.2.1

Contractor’s Representations
32.1,322,3.5,3.12.6,6.2.2,82.1,9.3.3,9.8.2
Contractor’s Responsibility for Those Performing the
Work

33.2,3.18,53,6.1.3,6.2,9.5.1, 10.2.8
Contractor’s Review of Contract Documents

32

Contractor’s Right to Stop the Work

9.7

Contractor’s Right to Terminate the Contract
14.1,15.1.6

Contractor’s Submittals
3.10,3.11,3.124,42.7,52.1,5.2.3,9.2,9.3,9.8.2,
9.8.3,99.1,9.10.2,9.10.3, 11.1.3, 11.4.2
Contractor’s Superintendent

3.9,10.2.6

Contractor’s Supervision and Construction
Procedures
1.2.2,3.3,34,3.12.10,4.2.2,42.7,6.1.3,6.2.4,
7.1.3,7.3.5,73.7,8.2, 10,12, 14, 15.1.3
Contractual Liability [nsurance

11.1.1.8,11.2

Coordination and Correlation

1.2,3.2.1,3.3.1,3.10, 3.i12.6,6.1.3,6.2.1

Copies Furnished of Drawings and Specifications
1.5,2.2.5,3.11

Copyrights

1.5,3.17

Correction of Work
23,24,3.73,942,9.82,9.83,99.1, 12.1.2,12.2
Correlation and Intent of the Contract Documents
1.2

Cost, Definition of

7.3.7

Costs
24,324,373,382,3.152,54.2,6.1.1,6.2.3,
7.3.3.3,7.3.7,7.3.8,7.3.9,9.10.2, 10.3.2, 10.3.6,
11.3,12.1.2,12.2.1,12.2.4,13.5, 14

Cutting and Patching

3.14,6.2.5

Damage to Construction of Owner or Separate
Contractors A
3.142,6.2.4,102.1.2,102.5,10.4,11.1.1, 11.3,
12.2.4

Damage to the Work
3.14.2,99.1,10.2.1.2,10.2.5,10.4, 11.3.1, 12.2.4
Damages, Claims for
3.2.4,3.18,6.1.1,8.3.3,9.5.1,9.6.7, 10.3.3, 11.1.1,
11.3.5,11.3.7,14.1.3, 14.2.4,15.1.6

Damages for Delay

6.1.1,8.3.3,9.5.1.6,9.7, 10.3.2

Date of Commencement of the Work, Definition of
8.1.2 |

Date of Substantial Completion, Definition of
8.1.3

Day, Definition of

8.1.4

Decisions of the Architect
3.74,426,427,4.2.11,42.12,42.13,15.2,6.3,
73.7,73.9,8.1.3,8.3.1,9.2,9.4,9.5.1,9.84,9.9.1,
13.5.2,14.2.2,14.2.4,15.1, 15.2

Decisions to Withhold Certification

9.4.1,9.5,9.7, 14.1.1.3

Defective or Nonconforming Work, Acceptance,
Rejection and Correction of
2.3,2.4,3.5,426,62.5,95.1,9.52,9.6.6,9.8.2,
9.9.3,9.104, 12.2.1

Definitions
1.1,2.1.1,3.1.1,3.5,3.12.1,3.12.2,3.12.3, 4.1.1,
15.1.1,5.1,6.1.2,7.2.1,7.3.1, 8.1,9.1,9.8.1
Delays and Extensions of Time
32,3.7.4,523,72.1,73.1,7.4,83,9.5.1,9.7,
10.3.2,10.4,14.3.2, 15.1.5,15.2.5

Disputes

6.3,73.9,15.1,15.2

Documents and Samples at the Site

3.11

Drawings, Definition of

1.1.5

Drawings and Speciiicaiions, Use and Ownership of
3.11

Effective Date of Insurance

822, 11.12

Emergencies

104,14.1.1.2,15.1.4

Employees, Contractor’s
3.3.2,3.4.3,3.8.1,3.9,3.18.2,4.2.3,4.2.6,10.2,
10.3.3,11.1.1,11.3.7, 14.1, 14.2.1.1

AIA Document A201™ - 2007. Copyright = 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925,

1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The

Bmerican Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA’ Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International
Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this ATA® Document, or any portion of 1t, may result in severe civil and criminal
penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possibla under the law, This draft was produced by AIA software at 16:12:36 on

06/06/2014 under Order No.6144147103_1 which expires on 04/28/2015, and is not for resale.

User Notes:

(1196123245)



Equipment, Labor, Materials or
1.1.3,1.1.6,3.4,3.5,3.82,3.8.3, 3.12,3.13, 3.15.1,
426,42.7,52.1,62.1,73.7,93.2,93.3,9.5.1.3,
9.10.2,10.2.1,10.2.4,14.2.1.1, 14.2.1.2

Execution and Progress of the Work
1.1.3,1.2.1,1.2.2,22.3,2.2.5,3.1,33.1,3.4.1, 3.5,
3.7.1,3.10.1,3.12,3.14,4.2,6.2.2,7.1.3,7.3.5, 8.2,
9.5.1,9.9.1,10.2, 103, 12.2, 14.2, 14.3.1, 15.1.3
Extensions of Time
32.4,3.74,52.3,72.1,7.3,7.4,95.1,9.7,103.2,
10.4, 14.3, 15.1.5, 15.2.5

Failure of Payment

95.1.3,9.7,9.102, 13.6, 14.1.1.3, 14.2.12

Faulty Work

(See Defective or Nonconforming Work)

Final Completion and Final Payment
42.1,429,9.8.2,9.10, 11.1.2,11.1.3, 11.3.1, 11.3.5,
12.3,14.2.4, 1443

Financial Arrangements, Owner’s
22.1,1322,14.1.14

Fire and Extended Coverage Insurance

11.3.1.1

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1

Governing Law

13.1

Guarantees (See Warranty)

Hazardous Materials

10.2.4,10.3

Identification of Subcontractors and Suppliers

52.1

Indemnification

3.17,3.18,9.10.2, 10.3.3, 10.3.5, 10.3.6, 1 1.3.1.2,
11.3.7

Information and Services Required of the Owner
2.1.2,2.2,3.2.2,3.124,3.12.10,6.1.3, 6.1.4, 6.2.5,
9.6.1,9.6.4,9.9.2,9.10.3, 10.3.3, 1 1.2, 11.4, 13.5.1,
13.52,14.1.1.4,14.1.4,15.1.3

Initial Decision

15.2

Initial Decision Maker, Definition of

1.1.8

[nitial Decision Maker, Decisions
142.2,14.24,152.1,152.2,15.2.3,15.2.4, 15.2.5
[nitial Decision Maker, Extent of Authority
i4.2.2,14.2.4,15.1.3,15.2.1,15.2.2,15.2.3, 15.2.4,
1525

Injury or Damage to Person or Property

10.2.8, 10.4

Inspections
3.13,333,3.7.1,42.2,42.6,429,94.2,9.83,
9.9.2,9.10.1, 12.2.1, 13.5

Instructions to Bidders

1.1.1

Instructions to the Contractor
324,33.1,3.8.1,52.1,7,82.2,12,1352

Instruments of Service, Definition of

1.1.7

Insurance
3.18.1,6.1.1,7.3.7,9.3.2,9.8.4,9.9.1,9.10.2, 11
Insurance, Boiler and Machinery

11.3.2

Insurance, Contractor’s Liability

11.1

[nsurance, Effective Date of

822,11.1.2

Insurance, Loss of Use

11.3.3

Insurance, Owner’s Liability

11.2

Insurance, Property

10.2.5,11.3

Insurance, Stored Materials

9.3.2 g

INSURANCE AND BONDS

11

Insurance Companies, Consént to Partial Occupancy
9.9.1

Intent of the Contract Documents
12.1,42.7,42.12,4.2.13,7.4

Interest

13.6

Interpretation

123,14,4.1.1,5.1,6.1.2,15.1.1

[nterpretations, Written

42.11,4.2.12,15.14

Judgment on Final Award

15.4.2

Labor and Materials, Equipment
1.1.3,1.1.6,3.4,3.5,3.8.2,3.8.3,3.12, 3.13, 3.15.1,
426,42.7,52.1,62.1,73.7,93.2,9.3.3,9.5.1.3,
9.10.2, 10.2.1,10.2.4, 14.2.1.1, 14.2.1.2

Labor Disputes

8.3.1

Laws and Regulations

1.5,3.23,3.6,3.7,3.12.10, 3.13,4.1.1,9.6.4,9.9.1,
10.2.2, 11.1.1, 11.3, 13.1, 13.4, 13.5.1, 13.5.2, 13.6,
14,15.2.8,15.4

Liens

2.1.2,93.3,9.10.2,9.104, 15.2.8

Limitations, Statutes of

i2.2.5,13.7, 15.4.1.1

Limitations of Liability
23,322,35,3.12.10,3.17,3.18.1,4.2.6,4.2.7,
42.12,62.2,9.42,964,9.6.7,102.5,10.3.3,
11.1.2,11.2,11.3.7,12.2.5, 13.4.2

Limitations of Time
2.1.2,22,24,3.2.2,3.10,3.11,3.12.5,3.15.1,4.2.7,
52,53,54.1,624,73,74,82,92,93.1,9.33,
9.4.1,9.5,9.6,9.7,9.8,9.9,9.10, 11.1.3, 11.3.1.5,
11.3.6,11.3.10, 12.2, 13.5, 13.7, 14, 15

Loss of Use Insurance

11.3.3

AIA Document A201% - 2007. Copyright & 1911, 1915, 1919, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The
American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This ATIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International
Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and cziminal
penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 16:12:36 on
06/06/2014 under Order No.6144147103_1 which expires on 04/28/2015, and is not for resale.

User Notes: (1196123245)



Material Suppliers
1.5,3.12.1,4.24,42.6,52.1,9.3,9.4.2,9.6,9.10.5
Materials, Hazardous

10.2.4,10.3

Materials, Labor, Equipment and
1.1.3,1.1.6,1.5.1,3.4.1,3.5,3.8.2,3.8.3,3.12,3.13,
3.15.1,42.6,4.2.7,52.1,6.2.1,7.3.7,9.3.2,9.3.3,
9.5.1.3,9.10.2,10.2.1.2,10.2.4, 14.2.1.1, 14.2.1.2
Means, Methods, Techniques, Sequences and
Procedures of Construction
3.3.1,3.12.10,4.2.2,42.7,94.2

Mechanic’s Lien

2.1.2,152.8

Mediation

83.1,10.3.5,10.3.6,15.2.1, 15.2.5, 15.2.6, 15.3,
15.4.1

Minor Changes in the Work
1.1.1,3.12.8,4.2.8,7.1,7.4

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

13

Modifications, Definition of

1.1.1

Modifications to the Contract
1.1.1,1.1.2,3.11,4.1.2,4.2.1,5.2.3,7,8.3.1,9.7,
10.3.2, 11.3.1

Mutual Responsibility

6.2

Nonconforming Work, Acceptance of
9.6.6,9.9.3,12.3

Nonconforming Work, Rejection and Correction of
2.3,2.4,35,42.6,62.4,9.5.1,9.82,993,9.104,
12.2.1

Notice
22.1,23,24,32.4,3.3.1,3.7.2,3.12.9,5.2.1,9.7,
9.10,10.2.2,11.1.3, 12.2.2.1, 13.3, 13.5.1, 13.5.2,
14.1,14.2,15.2.8, 15.4.1

Notice, Written
2.3,24,33.1,392,3.12.9,3.12.10,5.2.1,9.7,9.10,
10.2.2,10.3,11.1.3, 11.3.6, 12.2.2.1, 13.3, 14, 15.2.8,
15.4.1

Notice of Claims

3.74,10.2.8,15.1.2, 154

Notice of Testing and [nspections

13.5.1,13.5.2

Observations, Contractor’s

B oS i

Occupancy

2.22,96.6,98,11.3.1.5

Orders, Written
1.1.1,2.3,39.2,7,8.22,11.3.9,12.1, 12.2.2.1,
13.5.2,143.1

OWNER
2
Owner, Deflnition of
2.1.1

Owner, Information and Services Required of the
2.1.2,22,32.2,3.12.10,6.1.3,6.1.4,6.2.5,9.3.2,
9.6.1,9.6.4,9.9.2,9.10.3, 10.3.3, 11.2, 11.3, 13.5.1,
13.5.2,14.1.1.4, 14.1.4,15.1.3

Owner’s Authority

1.5,2.1.1,23,24,3.4.2,3.8.1, 3.12.10, 3.14.2,4.1.2,
4.13,42.4,429,52.1,5.24,54.1,6.1,6.3,7.2.1,
73.1,82.2,8.3.1,93.1,9.3.2,9.5.1,9.64,99.1,
9.10.2,10.3.2,11.1.3,11.3.3, 11.3.10, 12.2.2, 12.3,
13.2.2,14.3,14.4,15.2.7

Owner’s Financial Capability

22.1,1322,14.1.14

Owner’s Liability Insurance

11.2

Ownet’s Relationship with Subcontractors
1.1.2,52,53,54,9.6.4,9.10.2, 14.2.2

Owner’s Right to Carry Out the Work
24,1422

Owner’s Right to Clean Up

6.3

Owner’s Right to Perform Construction and to
Award Separate Contracts

6.1

Owner’s Right to Stop the Work

23

Owner’s Right to Suspend the Work

14.3

Ownet’s Right to Terminate the Contract

142

Ownership and Use of Drawings, Specifications
and Other Instruments of Service
1.1.1,1.1.6,1.1.7,1.5,2.2.5,3.2.2,3.11, 3.17, 4 2.12,
53

Partial Occupancy or Use

9.6.6,9.9,11.3.1.5

Patching, Cutting and

3.14,6.2.5

Patents

3.17

Payment, Applications for
425,739,92,9.3,9.4,9.5,9.63,9.7,9.8.5,9.10.1,
14.2.3,14.2.4,14.43

Payment, Certificates for
425,4.29,93.3,9.4,9.5,9.6.1,9.6.6,9.7,9.10.1,
9.10.3,13.7, 14.1.1.3, 14.2.4

U m Tailnra nf
Payment, Failure of

95.1.3,9.7,9.10.2, 13.6, 14.1.1.3, 14.2.1.2

Payment, Final

421,42.9,9.82,9.10, 11.1.2, 11.1.3, 11.4.1, 12.3,
13.7,14.2.4, 1443

Payment Bond, Performance Bond and
73.74,9.6.7,9.103,11.4

Payments, Progress

9.3, 9.6,9.8.5,9.10.3,13.6, 14.2.3, 15.1.3
PAYMENTS AND COMPLETION

9

AIA Document A201™ — 2007. Copyright - 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The
American Institute of Architects, All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.3. Copyright Law and International
Treatiss. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this ATIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severa civil and criminal
penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 16:12:36 on
06/06/2014 under Order No.6144147103 1 which expires on 04/28/2015, and is not for resale.

User Notes: ) (1196123245)



Payments to Subcontractors
542,95.13,962,96.3,9.64,9.6.7,142.1.2
PCB

10.3.1

Performance Bond and Payment Bond
7.3.74,9.6.7,9.10.3,11.4

Permits, Fees, Notices and Compliance with Laws
222,3.7,3.13,73.74,10.2.2

PERSONS AND PROPERTY, PROTECTION
OF

10

Polychlorinated Biphenyl

103.1

Product Data, Definition of

3.12.2

Product Data and Samples, Shop Drawings
3.11,3.12,42.7

Progress and Completion
422,82,9.8,99.1,14.14,15.1.3

Progress Payments

9.3,9.6,9.8.5,9.10.3, 13.6, 14.2.3, 15.1.3
Project, Definition of

1.14

Project Representatives

42.10

Property Insurance

10.2.5,11.3

PROTECTION OF PERSONS AND PROPERTY
10

Regulations and Laws

1.5,3.2.3,3.6,3.7,3.12.10, 3.13,4.1.1,9.6 4, 9.9.1,
10.2.2,11.1,11.4,13.1, 13.4, 13.5.1, 13.5.2, 13.6, 14,
152.8,154

Rejection of Work

3.5,4.26,122.1

Releases and Waivers of Liens

9.10.2

Representations
32.1,3.5,3.126,62.2,82.1,93.3,9.42,9.5.1,
9.8.2,9.10.1

Representatives
2.1.1,3.1.1,3.9,4.1.1,4.2.1,42.2,42.10, 5.1.1,
5.1.2,13.2.1

Responsibility for Those Performing the Work
33.2,3.18,4.23,53,6.1.3,6.2,6.3,95.1, 10

Ratninaoa
AN tunuusu

9.3.1,9.62,9.8.5,9.9.1,9.10.2,9.10.3

Review of Contract Documents and Field
Conditions by Contractor

3.2,3.12.7,6.1.3

Review of Contractor’s Submittals by Owner and
Architect
3.10.1,3.10.2,3.11,3.12,4.2,52,6.1.3,9.2,9.8 2
Review of Shop Drawings, Product Data and
Samples by Contractor

3.12

Rights and Remedies
1.1.2,2.3,2.4,3.5,3.74,3.15.2,42.6,53,5.4,6.1,
6.3,7.3.1,8.3,9.5.1,9.7,10.2.5, 103, 12.2.2, 12.2 4,
13.4,14,154

Royalties, Patents and Copyrights
3.17

Rules and Notices for Arbitration

15.4.1

Safety of Persons and Property

10.2, 10.4

Safety Precautions and Programs
33.1,422,42.7,53,10.1,10.2, 10.4

Samples, Definition of

3.12.3

Samples, Shop Drawings, Product Data and
3.11,3.12,4.2.7

Samples at the Site, Documents and

3.11

Schedule of Values

9.2,9.3.1

Schedules, Construction -
3.10,3.12.1,3.12.2,6.1.3,15.1.5.2

Separate Contracts and Contractors
1.1.4,3.12.5,3.14.2,42.4,42.7,6,83.1, 12.1.2
Shop Drawings, Definition of

3.12.1

Shop Drawings, Product Data and Samples
3.11, 3.12,4.2.7

Site, Use of

3.13,6.1.1,6.2.1

Site [nspections
322,333,3.7.1,3.74,4.2,94.2,9.10.1, 13.5
Site Visits, Architect’s
37.4,422,429,942,9.5.1,992,9.10.1, 13.5
Special Inspections and Testing
42.6,12.2.1,13.5

Specifications, Definition of

1.1.6

Specifications

1.1.1,1.1.6,1.2.2, 1.5,3.11, 3.12.10, 3.17, 4.2.14
Statute of Limitations

13.7,15.4.1.1

Stopping the Work

2.3,9.7,10.3, 14.1
Stored Materials

Subcontractor, Definition of

5.1.1

SUBCONTRACTORS

5

Subcontractors, Work by
1.2.2,3.3.2,3.12.1,4.2.3,52.3,53,54,93.1.2,
9.6.7

Subcontractual Relations
53,5.4,93.1.2,96,9.10, 10.2.1, 14.1, 14.2.1

AIA Document A201™ - 2007. Copyright & 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The
American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S5. Copyright Law and Intermational
Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this ATA® Document, or any portion of ik, may result in severe civil and criminal
penaltias, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 16:12:36 on
06/06/2014 under Order No.6144147103_1 which expires on 04/28/2015, and is not for resale.

User Notes: (1196123245}



Submittals
3.10,3.11,3.12,4.2.7,5.2.1,5.23,73.7,9.2,9.3,
9.8,9.9.1,9.10.2,9.10.3, 11.1.3

Submittal Schedule

3.10.2,3.12.5,4.2.7

Subrogation, Waivers of

6.1.1,11.3.7

Substantial Completion
429,8.1.1,8.1.3,8.2.3,9.4.2,9.8,9.9.1,9.10.3,
12.2,13.7

Substantial Completion, Definition of

9.8.1

Substitution of Subcontractors

523,524

Substitution of Architect

413

Substitutions of Materials

34.2,35,73.8

Sub-subcontractor, Definition of

5.1.2

Subsurface Conditions

3.74

Successors and Assigns

13.2

Superintendent

3.9, 10.2.6

Supervision and Construction Procedures
1.2.2,3.3,3.4,3.12.10,4.2.2,42.7,6.1.3, 6.2 4,
7.13,73.7,82,83.1,942,10,12, 14, 15.1.3
Surety
5.4.1.2,9.85,9.10.2,9.10.3,14.2.2,15.2.7
Surety, Consent of

9.10.2,9.10.3

Surveys

223

Suspension by the Owner for Convenience
14.3

Suspension of the Work

5.4.2,14.3

Suspension or Termination of the Contract
54.1.1, 14

Taxes

3.6,3.82.1,73.7.4

Termination by the Contractor
14.1,15.1.6

.6
Termination by the Owner for Convenience
14.4
Termination of the Architect
4.13
Termination of the Contractor
14.2.2
TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION OF THE
CONTRACT
14

Tests and Inspections
3.1.3,3.3.3,42.2,42.6,42.9,94.2,9.8.3,9.9.2,
9.10.1,10.3.2, 11.4.1, 12.2.1, 13.5

TIME

8

Time, Delays and Extensions of
324,374,523,72.1,73.1,74,83,9.5.1,9.7,
10.3.2,10.4,14.3.2,15.1.5,15.2.5

Time Limits
2.12,22,24,322,3.10,3.11,3.12.5,3.15.1, 4.2,
52,53,54,624,73,7.4,82,9.2,9.3.1,93.3,
94.1,9.5,9.6,9.7,9.8,9.9,9.10, 11.1.3, 12.2, 13.5,
13.7,14,15.1.2,15.4

Time Limits on Claims

3.7.4,10.2.8,13.7, 15.1.2

Title to Work

93.2,93.3

Transmission of Data in Digital Form

1.6 .

UNCOVERING AND CORRECTION OF
WORK

12

Uncovering of Work

12.1

Unforeseen Conditions, Concealed or Unknown
3.7.4,83.1,103

Unit Prices

733.2,734

Use of Documents

1.1.1,1.5,2.2.5,3.12.6,5.3

Use of Site

3.13,6.1.1,6.2.1

Values, Schedule of

9.2,9.3.1

Waiver of Claims by the Architect

13.4.2

Waiver of Claims by the Contractor
9.10.5,13.4.2, 15.1.6

Waiver of Claims by the Owner
9.9.3,9.10.3,9.10.4,12.2.2.1, 1342, 1424, 15.16
Waiver of Consequential Damages
14.2.4,15.1.6

Waiver of Liens

9.10.2,9.10.4

Waivers of Subrogation

6.1.1 1137

Warranty

3.5,429,93.3,9.84,9.9.1,9.10:4, 1222, 13.7
Weather Delays

15.1.5.2

Work, Definition of

1.1.3

Written Consent
1.52,3.4.2,3.74,3.12.8,3.14.2,4.1.2,9.3.2,9.8.5,

9.9.1,9.10.2,9.10.3, 11.4.1,13.2,13.4.2, 15.4.4.2
Written Interpretations
42.11,4.2.12

AIA Document BA201™ - 2007. Copyright 2 1911, 1915, 1918,

1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The

American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This ATA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International
Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distzibution of this ATA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal
penalties, and will be prosecutad to the maximum extent possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 16:12:36 on

06/06/2014 under Order No.6144147103 1 which expires on 04/28/2015, and is aot for resale.
(1196123245)

User Notes:



Written Notice Written Orders

23,24,33.1,39,3.12.9,3.12.10,5.2.1, 8.2.2,9.7, 1.1.1,23,3.9,7,82.2,12.1,12.2,13.5.2, 14 3.1,
9.10,10.2.2,10.3, 11.1.3,12.2.2, 12.2.4,13.3, 14, 15.1.2
15.4.1

AIA Document A201™ - 2007. Copyright & 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The
American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This ATA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International
Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this ATA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal
penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 16:12:36 on
06/06/2014 under Order No.6144147103_1 which expires on 04/28/2015, and is not for resale.

User Notes: (1196123245}



ARTICLE 1T GENERAL PROVISIONS
§ 1.1 BASIC DEFINITIONS

§ 1.1.1 THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS
The Contract Documents are enumerated in the Agreement between the Owner and Contractor (hereinafter the

Agreement) and consist of the Agreement, Conditions of the Contract (General, Supplementary and other
Conditions), Drawings, Specifications, Addenda issued prior to execution of the Contract, ether documents listed in
the Agreement and Modifications issued after execution of the Contract. A Modification is (1) a written amendment
to the Contract signed by both parties, (2) a Change Order, (3) a Construction Change Directive or (4) a written
order for a minor change in the Work issued by the Architect. Unless specifically enumerated in the Agreement, the
Contract Documents do not include the advertisement or invitation to bid, Instructions to Bidders, sample forms,
other information furnished by the Owner in anticipation of receiving bids or proposals, the Contractor’s bid er
proposal, or portions of Addenda relating to bidding requirements.

§ 1.1.2 THE CONTRACT
The Contract Documents form the Contract for Construction. The Contract represents the entire and integrated

agreement between the parties hereto and supersedes prior negotiations, representations or agreements, either written
or oral, The Contract may be amended or modified only by a Modification. The Contract Docutnents shall not be
construed to create a contractual relationship of any kind (1) between the Contractor and the Architect or the
Architect’s consultants, (2) between the Owner and a Subcontractor or a Sub-subcontractor, (3} between the Owner
and the Architect or the Architect’s consultants or (4) between any persons or entities other than the Owner and the
Contractor. The Architect shall, however, be entitled to performance and enforcement of obllgatlons under the
Contract intended to facilitate performance of the Architect’s duties.

§ 1.1.3 THE WORK
The term “Work™ means the construction and services required by the Contract Documents, whether completed or

partially completed, and includes all other labor, materials, equipment and services provided or to be provided by
the Contractor to fulfill the Contractor’s obligations. The Work may constitute the whole or a part of the Project.

§ 1.1.4 THE PROJECT
The Project is the total construction of which the Work performed under the Contract Documents may be the whole

or a part and which may include construction by the Owner and by separate contractors.

§ 1.1.5 THE DRAWINGS
The Drawings are the graphic and pictorial portions of the Contract Documents showing the design, location and

dimensions of the Work, generally including plans, elevations, sections, details, schedules and diagrams.

§ 1.1.6 THE SPECIFICATIONS
The Specifications are that portion of the Contract Documents consisting of the written requirements for materials,

equipment, systems, standards and workmanship for the Work, and performance of related services.

§ 1.1.7 INSTRUMENTS OF SERVICE
Instruments of Service are representations, in any medium of expression now known or later developed, of the

tangible and intangible creative work performed by the Architect and the Architect’s consultants under their
respective professional services agreements. Instruments of Service may include, without limitation, studies,
surveys, models, sketches, drawings, specifications, and other similar materials.

§ 1.1.8 INITIAL DECISION MAKER
The [nitial Decision Maker is the person identified in the Agreement to render initial decisions on Claims in

accordance with Section 15.2 and certify termination of the Agreement under Section 14.2.2.

§1.2 CORRELATION AND INTENT OF THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

§ 1.2.1 The intent of the Contract Documents is to include all items necessary for the proper executlon and
completion of the Work by the Contractor. The Contract Documents are complementary, and what is required by
one shall be as binding as if required by all; performance by the Contractor shall be required only to the extent
consistent with the Contract Documents and reasonably inferable from them as being necessary to produce the

indicated results.

AIA Document A201™ - 2007. Copyright 5 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The
American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This ATA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International

Treaties, Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this ATA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal
penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum axtent possible under the law. This draft was produced by ATA software at 16:12:36 on
06/06/2014 under Order No.6144147103_1 which expires on 04/28/2015, and is not for resale.

User Notes: (1196123245)

10



§ 1.2.2 Organization of the Specifications into divisions, sections and articles, and arrangement of Drawings shall not
control the Contractor in dividing the Work among Subcontractors or in establishing the extent of Work to be

performed by any trade.

§ 1.2.3 Unless otherwise stated in the Contract Documents, words that have well-known technical or construction
industry meanings are used in the Contract Documents in accordance with such recognized meanings.

§ 1.3 CAPITALIZATION
Terms capitalized in these General Conditions include those that are (1) specifically defined, (2) the titles of

numbered articles or (3) the titles of other documents published by the American Institute of Architects.

§ 1.4 INTERPRETATION
In the interest of brevity the Contract Documents frequently omit modifying words such as “all” and “any” and
articles such as “the” and “an,” but the fact that a modifier or an article is absent from one statement and appears in

another is not intended to affect the interpretation of either statement.

§ 1.5 OWNERSHIP AND USE OF DRAWINGS, SPECIFICATIONS AND OTHER INSTRUMENTS OF SERVICE

§ 1.5.1 The Architect and the Architect’s consultants shall be deemed the authors and owners of their respective
Instruments of Service, including the Drawings and Specifications, and will retain all common law, statutory and
other reserved rights, including copyrights. The Contractor, Subcontractors, Sub-subcontractors, and material or
equipment suppliers shall not own or claim a copyright in the Instruments of Service. Submittal or distribution to
meet official regulatory requirements or for other purposes in connection with this Project is not to be construed as
publication in derogation of the Architect’s or Architect’s consultants’ reserved rights.

§ 1.5.2 The Contractor, Subcontractors, Sub-subcontractors and material or equipment suppliers are authorized to use
and reproduce the Instruments of Service provided to them solely and exclusively for execution of the Work. All
copies made under this authorization shall bear the copyright notice, if any, shown on the Instruments of Service.
The Contractor, Subcontractors, Sub-subcontractors, and material or equipment suppliers may not use the
Instruments of Service on other projects or for additions to this Project outside the scope of the Work without the
specific written consent of the Owner, Architect and the Architect’s consultants.

§ 1.6 TRANSMISSION OF DATA IN DIGITAL FORM
If the parties intend to transmit [nstruments of Service or any other information or documentation in digital form,

they shall endeavor to establish necessary protocols governing such transmissions, unless otherwise already
provided in the Agreement or the Contract Documents.

ARTICLE 2 OWNER

§ 2.1 GENERAL
§ 2.1.1 The Owner is the person or entity identified as such in the Agreement and is referred to throughout the

Contract Documents as if singular in number. The Owner shall designate in writing a representative who shall have
express authority to bind the Owner with respect to all matters requiring the Owner’s approval or authorization.
Except as otherwise provided in Section 4.2.1, the Architect does not have such authority. The term “Owner” means

the Owner or the Owner’s authorized representative.

§ 2.1.2 The Owner shall furnish to the Contractor within fifteen days after receipt of a written request information

necessary and relevant for ihe Coniractor o Cleud[ﬁ glVC notice of or enforce mcula[uu s lici llglllb Such
information shall include a correct statement of the record legal title to the property on which the Project is located,

usually referred to as the site, and the Owner’s interest therein.

§ 2.2 INFORMATION AND SERVICES REQUIRED OF THE OWNER

§ 2.2.1 Prior to commencement of the Work, the Contractor may request in writing that the Owner provide
reasonable evidence that the Owner has made financial arrangements to fulfill the Owner’s obligations under the
Contract. Thereafter, the Contractor may only request such evidence if (1) the Owner fails to make payments to the
Contractor as the Contract Documents require; (2) a change in the Work materially changes the Contract Sum; or (3)
the Contractor identifies in writing a reasonable concern regarding the Owner’s ability to make payment when due.
The Owner shall furnish such evidence as a condition precedent to commencement or continuation of the Work or

AIA Document A201% - 2007. Copyright & 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The
American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This ATA® Document is protected by U.5 Copyright Law and International
Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this ATA? Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal
penalties, and will be prosecuted tc the maximum extent possibla under the law. This draft was produced by ATA software at 16:12:36 on
06/06/2014 under Order No.§144147103_1 which expires on 04/28/2015, and is not for resale.

User Notes: (1196123245)

11



the portion of the Work affected by a material change. After the Owner furnishes the evidence, the Owner shall not
materially vary such financial arrangements without prior notice to the Contractor.

§2.2.2 Except for permits and fees that are the responsibility of the Contractor under the Contract Documents,
including those required under Section 3.7.1, the Owner shall secure and pay for necessary approvals, easements,
assessments and charges required for construction, use or occupancy of permanent structures or for permanent

changes in existing facilities.

§ 2.2.3 The Owner shall furnish surveys describing physical characteristics, legal limitations and utility locations for
the site of the Project, and a legal description of the site. The Contractor shall be entitled torely on the accuracy of
information furnished by the Owner but shall exercise proper precautions relating to the safe performance of the

Work.

§ 2.2.4 The Owner shall furnish information or services required of the Owner by the Contract Pocuments with
reasonable promptness. The Owner shall also furnish any other information or services undet the Owner’s control
and relevant to the Contractor’s performance of the Work with reasonable promptness after recelvmg the
Contractor’s written request for such information or services. i

§ 2.2.5 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, the Owner shall furnish to the Contractor one copy of
the Contract Documents for purposes of making reproductions pursuant to Section 1.5.2.

§ 2.3 OWNER'S RIGHT TO STOP THE WORK
[f the Contractor fails to correct Work that is not in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents as

required by Section 12.2 or repeatedly fails to carry out Work in accordance with the Contract Documents, the
Owner may issue a written order to the Contractor to stop the Work, or any portion thereof, until the cause for such
order has been eliminated; however, the right of the Owner to stop the Work shall not give rise to a duty on the part
of the Owner to exercise this right for the benefit of the Contractor or any other person or entity, except to.the extent

required by Section 6.1.3.

§ 2.4 OWNER'S RIGHT TO CARRY OUT THE WORK
[f the Contractor defaults or neglects to carry out the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents and fails

within a ten-day period after receipt of written notice from the Owner to commence and continue correction of such
default or neglect with diligence and promptness, the Owner may, without prejudice to other remedies the Owner
may have, correct such deficiencies. [n such case an appropriate Change Order shall be issued deducting from
payments then or thereafter due the Contractor the reasonable cost of correcting such deficiencies, including
Owner’s expenses and compensation for the Architect’s additional services made necessary by such default, neglect
or failure. Such action by the Owner and amounts charged to the Contractor are both subject to prior approval of the
Architect. If payments then or thereafter due the Contractor are not sufficient to cover such amounts, the Contractor

shall pay the difference to the Owner.

ARTICLE 3 CONTRACTOR

§ 3.1 GENERAL

§3.1.1 The Contractor is the person or entity identified as such in the Agreement and is referred to throughout the
Contract Documents as if singular in number. The Contractor shall be lawfully licensed, if required in the
jurisdiction where the Project is located. The Contractor shall designate in writing a representative Wh‘O shall have

xnreaes auth ier thi
express authority to bind the Contractor with respect to all matters under this Cont

the Contractor or the Contractor’s authorized representative.

UlinialOl daealis

§ 3.1.2 The Contractor shall perform the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents.

§ 3.1.3 The Contractor shall not be relieved of obligations to perform the Work in accordance with the Contract
Documents either by activities or duties of the Architect in the Architect’s administration of the Contract, or by tests,

inspections or approvals required or performed by persons or entities other than the Contractor.

AIA Document A201™ - 2007. Copyright & 1911, 1915, 1919, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The
American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This ATIA® Document is protectad by U.3. Copyright Law and International 12
Treatiss. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of 1t, may result in severe civil and criminal
penalties, and wall be prosecutaed to the maximum sxtent possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 16:12:36 on

06/06/2014 under Order No.6144147103_1 which expires on 04/28/2015, and is not for resale.
User Notes: (1196123245)



§ 3.2 REVIEW OF CONTRACT DOCUMENTS AND FIELD CONDITIONS BY CONTRACTOR

§ 3.2.1 Execution of the Contract by the Contractor is a representation that the Contractor has visited the site, become
generally familiar with local conditions under which the Work is to be performed and correlated personat
observations with requirements of the Contract Documents.

§ 3.2.2 Because the Contract Documents are complementary, the Contractor shall, before starting each portion of the
Work, carefully study and compare the various Contract Documents relative to that portion of the Work, as well as
the information furnished by the Owner pursuant to Section 2.2.3, shall take field measurements of any existing
conditions related to that portion of the Work, and shall observe any conditions at the site affecting it. These
obligations are for the purpose of facilitating coordination and construction by the Contractor and are not for the
purpose of discovering errors, omissions, or inconsistencies in the Contract Documents; however, the Contractor
shall promptly report to the Architect any errors, inconsistencies or omissions discovered by or made known to the
Contractor as a request for information in such form as the Architect may require. It is recognized that the
Contractor’s review is made in the Contractor’s capacity as a contractor and not as a licensed design professional,
unless otherwise specifically provided in the Contract Documents.

§ 3.2.3 The Contractor is not required to ascertain that the Contract Documents are in accordance with applicable
laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, rules and regulations, or lawtul orders of public authorities, but the Contractor
shall promptly report to the Architect any nonconformity discovered by or made known to the Contractor as a
request for information in such form as the Architect may require.

§ 3.2.4 If the Contractor believes that additional cost or time is involved because of clarifications or instructions the
Architect issues in response to the Contractor’s notices or requests for information pursuant to Sections 3.2.2 or
3.2.3, the Contractor shall make Claims as provided in Atticle 15. If the Contractor fails to perform the obligations
of Sections 3.2.2 or 3.2.3, the Contractor shall pay such costs and damages to the Owner as would have been
avoided if the Contractor had performed such obligations. If the Contractor performs those obligations, the
Contractor shall not be liable to the Owner or Architect for damages resulting from errors, inconsistencies or
omissions in the Contract Documents, for differences between field measurements or conditions and the Contract
Documents, or for nonconformities of the Contract Documents to applicable laws, statutes, erdinances, codes, rules

and regulations, and lawful orders of public authorities.

§ 3.3 SUPERVISION AND CONSTRUCTION PROCEDURES
§ 3.3.1 The Contractor shall supervise and direct the Work, using the Contractor’s best skill and attention. The

Contractor shall be solely responsible for, and have control over, construction means, methods, techniques,
sequences and procedures and for coordinating all portions of the Work under the Contract, unless the Contract
Documents give other specific instructions concerning these matters. [f the Contract Documents give specific
instructions concerning construction means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures, the Contractor shall
evaluate the jobsite safety thereof and, except as stated below, shall be fully and solely respensibie for the jobsite
safety of such means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures. [f the Contractor determines that such means,
methods, techniques, sequences or procedures may not be safe, the Contractor shall give timely written notice to the
Owner and Architect and shall not proceed with that portion of the Work without further written instructions from
the Architect. [f the Contractor is then instructed to proceed with the required means, methods, techniques,
sequences or procedures without acceptance of changes proposed by the Contractor, the Owner shall be solely
responsible for any loss or damage arising solely from those Owner-required means, methods, techniques, sequences

or procedures.

§ 3.3.2 The Contractor shall be responsible to the Owner for acts and omissions of the Contractor’s employees,
Subcontractors and their agents and employees, and other persons or entities performing portions of the Work for, or

on behalf of, the Contractor or any of its Subcontractors.

§ 3.3.3 The Contractor shall be responsible for inspection of portions of Work already performed to determine that
such portions are in proper condition to receive subsequent Work.

§ 3.4 LABOR AND MATERIALS
§ 3.4.1 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall provide and pay for labor,

materials, equipment, tools, construction equipment and machinery, water, heat, utilities, transportation, and other

AIA Document A201™ - 2007. Copyright & 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The
American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document 1s protected by U.S. Copyright Law and Intarnational

Treatias, Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this ATA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal
penalties, and will be prosecutaed to the maximum sxtent possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 16:12:36 on
06/06/2014 under Order No.6144147103 1 which expires on 04/28/2015, and is not for resale.

User Notes: (1196123245}

13



facilities and services necessary for proper execution and completion of the Work, whether temporary or permanent
and whether or not incorporated or to be incorporated in the Work.

§ 3.4.2 Except in the case of minor changes in the Work authorized by the Architect in accordance with Sections
3.12.8 or 7.4, the Contractor may make substitutions only with the consent of the Owner, after evaluation by the

Architect and in accordance with a Change Order or Construction Change Directive.

§ 3.4.3 The Contractor shall enforce strict discipline and good order among the Contractor’s employees and other
persons carrying out the Work. The Contractor shall not permit employment of unfit persons or persons not properly

skilled in tasks assigned to them.

§ 3.5 WARRANTY
The Contractor warrants to the Owner and Architect that materials and equipment furnished under the Contract will

be of good quality and new unless the Contract Documents require or permit otherwise. The Contractor further
warrants that the Work will conform to the requirements of the Contract Documents and will be free from defects,
except for those inherent in the quality of the Work the Contract Documents require or permiit. Work, materials, or
equipment not conforming to these requirements may be considered defective. The Contractor’s warranty excludes
remedy for damage or defect caused by abuse, alterations to the Work not executed by the Contractor, improper or
insufficient maintenance, improper operation, or normal wear and tear and normal usage. If required by the
Architect, the Contractor shall furnish satisfactory evidence as to the kind and quality of materials and equipment.

§ 3.6 TAXES
The Contractor shall pay sales, consumer, use and similar taxes for the Work provided by the Contractor that are

legally enacted when bids are received or negotiations concluded, whether or not yet effective or merely scheduled
to go into effect.

§ 3.7 PERMITS, FEES, NOTICES AND COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

§ 3.7.1 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall secure and pay for the building
permit as well as for other permits, fees, licenses, and inspections by government agencies necessary for proper
execution and completion of the Work that are customarily secured after execution of the Contract and legally
required at the time bids are received or negotiations concluded.

§ 3.7.2 The Contractor shall comply with and give notices required by applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes,
rules and regulations, and lawful orders of public authorities applicable to performance of the Work.

§ 3.7.3 If the Contractor performs Work knowing it to be contrary to applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes,
rules and regulations, or lawful orders of public authorities, the Contractor shall assume appropriate responsibility

for such Work and shall bear the costs attributable to correction.

§3.7.4 Concealed or Unknown Conditions. If the Contractor encounters conditions at the site that are (1)
subsurface or otherwise concealed physical conditions that differ materially from those indicated in the Contract
Documents or (2) unknown physical conditions of an unusual nature, that differ materially from those ordinarily
found to exist and generally recognized as inherent in construction activities of the character provided for in the
Contract Documents, the Contractor shall promptly provide notice to the Owner and the Architect before conditions
are disturbed and in no event later than 21 days after first observance of the conditions. The Architect will promptly

investigate such conditions and, if the Architect determines that they differ materially and cause an increase or
decrease in the Contractor’s cost of, or time required for, performance of any part of the Work, will recommend an
equitable adjustment in the Contract Sum or Contract Time, or both. If the Architect determines that the conditions
at the site are not materially different from those indicated in the Contract Documents and that no change in the
terms of the Contract is justified, the Architect shall promptly notify the Owner and Contractor in writing, stating the

reasons. [f either party disputes the Architect’s determination or recommendation, that party may proceed as
provided in Article 15.

§ 3.7.5 If, in the course of the Work, the Contractor encounters human remains or recognizes the existence of burial
markers, archaeological sites or wetlands not indicated in the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall immediately
suspend any operations that would affect them and shall notify the Owner and Architect. Upon receipt of such
notice, the Owner shall promptly take any action necessary to obtain governmental authorization required to resume

1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The

AIA Document A201™ - 2007. Copyright = 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951,
. Copyright Law and International

American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This ATA® Document is protected by U.8
Treaties, Unauthorized reproductien or distribution of this ATA® Document, ox any portion of ik, may result in severs civil and eriminal
penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 16:12:36 on
06/06/2014 under Order No.6144147103_1 which expires on 04/28/2015, and is not for resale,

User Notes: (1196123245)

14



the operations. The Contractor shall continue to suspend such operations until otherwise instructed by the Owner but
shall continue with all other operations that do not affect those remains or features. Requests for adjustments in the
Contract Sum and Contract Time arising from the existence of such remains or features may be made as provided in

Article 15.

§ 3.8 ALLOWANCES
§ 3.8.1 The Contractor shall include in the Contract Sum all allowances stated in the Contract Documents. [tems

covered by allowances shall be supplied for such amounts and by such persons or entities as the Owner may direct,
but the Contractor shall not be required to employ persons or entities to whom the Contractor has reasonable

objection.

§ 3.8.2 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents,
.1 Allowances shall cover the cost to the Contractor of materials and equipment delivered at the site and

all required taxes, less applicable trade discounts;

.2 Contractor’s costs for unloading and handling at the site, labor, installation costs, overhead, profit and
other expenses contemplated for stated allowance amounts shall be included in the Contract Sum but
not in the allowances; and

.3 Whenever costs are more than or less than allowances, the Contract Sum shall be adjusted
accordingly by Change Order. The amount of the Change Order shall reflect (1) the difference
between actual costs and the allowances under Section 3.8.2.1 and (2) changes in Contractor’s costs

under Section 3.8.2.2.

§ 3.8.3 Materials and equipment under an allowance shall be selected by the Owner with reasonable promptness.

§ 3.9 SUPERINTENDENT
§ 3.9.1 The Contractor shall employ a competent superintendent and necessary assistants who shall be in attendance

at the Project site during performance of the Work. The superintendent shall represent the Contractor, and
communications given to the superintendent shall be as binding as if given to the Contractor.

§ 3.9.2 The Contractor, as soon as practicable after award of the Contract, shall furnish in writing to the Owner
through the Architect the name and qualifications of a proposed superintendent. The Architect may teply within 14
days to the Contractor in writing stating ( 1) whether the Owner or the Architect has reasonable objection to the
proposed superintendent or (2) that the Architect requires additional time to review. Failure of the Architect to reply
within the 14 day period shall constitute notice of no reasonable objection.

§ 3.9.3 The Contractor shall not employ a proposed superintendent to whom the Owner or Architect has. made
reasonable and timely objection. The Contractor shall not change the superintendent without the Owner’s consent,

which shall not unreasonably be withheld or delayed.

§3.10 CONTRACTOR'S CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULES

§ 3.10.1 The Contractor, promptly after being awarded the Contract, shall prepare and submit for the Owner’s and
Architect’s information a Contractor’s construction schedule for the Work. The schedule shall not exceed time limits
current under the Contract Documents, shall be revised at appropriate intervals as required by the conditions of the
Work and Project, shall be related to the entire Project to the extent required by the Contract Documents, and shall

provide for expeditious and practicable execution of the Work.

§3.10.2 The Contractor shall prepare a submittal schedule, promptly after being awarded the Contract and thereafter
as necessary to maintain a current submittal schedule, and shall submit the schedule(s) for the Architect’s approval.
The Architect’s approval shall not unreasonably be delayed or withheld. The submittal schedule shall (1) be
coordinated with the Contractor’s construction schedule, and (2) allow the Architect reasonable time to review
submittals. If the Contractor fails to submit a submittal schedule, the Contractor shall not be entitled to any increase
in Contract Sum or extension of Contract Time based on the time required for review of submittals.

§ 3.10.3 The Contractor shall perform the Work in general accordance with the most recent schedules submitted to
the Owner and Architect.

1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The

AIA Document A201™ - 2007. Copyright > 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963,
Copyright Law and Intarnational

American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA’ Document is protected by U.S
Treaties. Unauthorizad reproduction or distribution of this ATA? Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal
penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 16:12:36 on
06/06/2014 under Order No.6144147103_1 which expires on 04/28/2015, and is not for resale.

User Notes: {1196123245)

15



§ 3.11 DOCUMENTS AND SAMPLES AT THE SITE
The Contractor shall maintain at the site for the Owner one copy of the Drawings, Specifications, Addenda, Change

Orders and other Modifications, in good order and marked currently to indicate field changes and selections made
during construction, and one copy of approved Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples and similar required
submittals. These shall be available to the Architect and shall be delivered to the Architect for submittal to the
Owner upon completion of the Work as a record of the Work as constructed.

§ 3.12 SHOP DRAWINGS, PRODUCT DATA AND SAMPLES
§ 3.12.1 Shop Drawings are drawings, diagrams, schedules and other data specially prepared for the Work by the

Contractor or a Subcontractor, Sub-subcontractor, manufacturer, supplier or distributor to illustrate some portion of
the Work.

§ 3.12.2 Product Data are illustrations, standard schedules, performance charts, instructions, brochures, diagrams and
other information furnished by the Contractor to illustrate materials or equipment for some portion of the Work.

§ 3.12.3 Samples are physical examples that illustrate materials, equipment or workmanship and establish standards
by which the Work will be judged.

§ 3.12.4 Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples and similar submittals are not Contract Documents. Their purpose is
to demonstrate the way by which the Contractor proposes to conform to the information given and the design.
concept expressed in the Contract Documents for those portions of the Work for which the Contract Documents
require submittals. Review by the Architect is subject to the limitations of Section 4.2.7. Informational submittals
upon which the Architect is not expected to take responsive action may be so identified in the Contract Documents.
Submittals that are not required by the Contract Documents may be returned by the Architect without action.

§ 3.12.5 The Contractor shall review for compliance with the Contract Documents, approve and submiit to the
Architect Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples and similar submittals required by the Contract Documents in
accordance with the submittal schedule approved by the Architect or, in the absence of an approved submittal
schedule, with reasonable promptness and in such sequence as to cause no delay in the Work or in the activities of

the Owner or of separate contractors.

§ 3.12.6 By submitting Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples and similar submittals, the Contractor represents to
the Owner and Architect that the Contractor has (1) reviewed and approved them, (2) determined and verified
materials, field measurements and field construction criteria related thereto, or will do so and (3) checked and
coordinated the information contained within such submittals with the requirements of the Work and of the Contract

Documents.

§ 3.12.7 The Contractor shall perform no portion of the Work for which the Contract Documents require submittal
and review of Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples or similar submittals until the respective submittal has been

approved by the Architect.

§ 3.12.8 The Work shall be in accordance with approved submittals except that the Contractor shall not be relicved of
responsibility for deviations from requirements of the Contract Documents by the Architect’s approval of Shop
Drawings, Product Data, Samples or similar submittals unless the Contractor has specifically informed the Architect
in writing of such deviation at the time of submittal and (1) the Architect has given written approval to the speciﬁc
deviation as a minor change in ifie Work, or (2) a Change Order or Consiruction Change Directive has been issued
authorizing the deviation. The Contractor shall not be relieved of responsibility for errors or omissions in Shop
Drawings, Product Data, Samples or similar submittals by the Architect’s approval thereof.

§ 3.12.9 The Contractor shall direct specific attention, in writing or on resubmitted Shop Drawings, Product Data,
Samples or similar submittals, to revisions other than those requested by the Architect on previeus submittals. In the
absence of such written notice, the Architect’s approval of a resubmission shall not apply to such revisions.

§ 3.12.10 The Contractor shall not be required to provide professional services that constitute the practice of
architecture or engineering unless such services are specifically required by the Contract Documents for a portion of
the Work or unless the Contractor needs to provide such services in order to carry out the Coniractor’s
responsibilities for construction means, methods, techniques, sequences and procedures. The Contractor shall not be

ATA Document A201™ — 2007. Copyright » 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The
American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This BIA® Document is protacted by U,S. Copyright Law and International
Treaties. Unauthorized raproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal
penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maxaimum extent possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 16:12:36 on
06/06/2014 under Order No.6144147103_1 which expires on 04/28/2015, and is not for resale.

User Notes: (1196123245)

16



required to provide professional services in violation of applicable law. [f professional design services or
certifications by a design professional related to systers, materials or equipment are specifically required of the
Contractor by the Contract Documents, the Owner and the Architect will specify all performance and design criteria
that such services must satisfy. The Contractor shall cause such services or certifications to be provided by a
properly licensed design professional, whose signature and seal shall appear on all drawings, calculations,
specifications, certifications, Shop Drawings and other submittals prepared by such professienal. Shop Drawings
and other submittals related to the Work designed or certified by such professional, if prepared by others, shall bear
such professional’s written approval when submitted to the Architect. The Owner and the Architect shall be entitled
to rely upon the adequacy, accuracy and completeness of the services, certifications and approvals performed or
provided by such design professionals, provided the Owner and Architect have specified to'the Confractor all
performance and design criteria that such services must satisfy. Pursuant to this Section 3.12.10, the Architect will
review, approve or take other appropriate action on submitals only for the limited purpose of checking for
conformance with information given and the design concept expressed in the Contract Documents. The Contractor
shall not be responsible for the adequacy of the performance and design criteria specified iri the Contract

Documents.

§3.13 USE OF SITE
The Contractor shall confine operations at the site to areas permitted by applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes,

rules and regulations, and lawful orders of public authorities and the Contract Documents and shall not unreasonably
encurber the site with materials or equipment.

§ 3.14 CUTTING AND PATCHING
§ 3.14.1 The Contractor shall be responsible for cutting, fitting or patching required to complete the Work or to make

its parts fit together properly. All areas requiring cutting, fitting and patching shall be restored to the condition
existing prior to the cutting, fitting and patching, unless otherwise required by the Contract Documents.

§ 3.14.2 The Contractor shall not damage or endanger a portion of the Work or fully or partially completed
construction of the Owner or separate contractors by cutting, patching or otherwise altering such construction, ot by
excavation. The Contractor shall not cut or otherwise alter such construction by the Owner or a separate contractor
except with written consent of the Owner and of such separate contractor; such consent shall not be unreasonably
withheld. The Contractor shall not unreasonably withhold from the Owner or a separate contractor the Contractor’s

consent to cutting or otherwise altering the Work.

§ 3.15 CLEANING UP
§ 3.15.1 The Contractor shall keep the premises and surrounding area free from accumulation of waste materials or

rubbish caused by operations under the Contract. At completion of the Work, the Contractor shall remove waste
materials, rubbish, the Contractot’s tools, construction equipment, machinery and surplus materials from and about

the Project.

§3.15.2 [f the Contractor fails to clean up as provided in the Contract Documents, the Owner may do so and Owner
shall be entitled to reimbursement from the Contractor.

§3.16 ACCESS TO WORK
The Contractor shall provide the Owner and Architect access to the Work in preparation and progress wherever

located.

§ 3.17 ROYALTIES, PATENTS AND COPYRIGHTS
The Contractor shall pay all royalties and license fees. The Contractor shall defend suits or claims for infringement

of copyrights and patent rights and shall hold the Owner and Architect harmless from loss on account thereof, but
shall not be responsible for such defense or loss when a particular design, process or product of a particular
manufacturer or manufacturers is required by the Contract Documents, or where the copyright violations are
contained in Drawings, Specifications or other documents prepared by the Owner or Architect. However, if the
Contractor has reason to believe that the required design, process or product is an infringement of'a copyright or a
patent, the Contractor shall be responsible for such loss unless such information is promptly furnished to the

Architect.

AIA Document A201® - 2007. Copyright & 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1870, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The
American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This a1a® Document is protectad by U.S. Copyright Law and International
Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distzibution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severa civil and criminal 17
penalties, and will be prosecutsd te the maximum extent possible undex the law. This draft was produced by ATA software at 16:12:36 on
06/06/2014 under Order No.6144147103_1 which expires on 04/28/2015, and is not for resale.

User Notes: (1196123245}



§ 3.18 INDEMNIFICATION
§ 3.18.1 To the fullest extent permitted by law the Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the Owner,

Architect, Architect’s consultants, and agents and employees of any of them from and against claims, damages,
losses and expenses, including but not limited to attorneys’ fees, arising out of or resulting from performance of the
Work, provided that such claim, damage, loss or expense is attributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease or death,
or to injury to or destruction of tangible property (other than the Work itself), but only to the extent caused by the
negligent acts or omissions of the Contractor, a Subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed by them or
anyone for whose acts they may be liable, regardless of whether or not such claim, damage, loss or expense is
caused in part by a party indemnified hereunder. Such obligation shall not be construed to negate, abridge, or reduce
other rights or obligations of indemnity that would otherwise exist as to a party or person described in this Seéction

3.18.

§ 3.18.2 In claims against any person or entity indemnified under this Section 3.18 by an emiployee of the Contractor,
a Subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed by them or anyone for whose acts they' may be liable, the
indemnification obligation under Section 3.18.1 shall not be limited by a limitation on amount or type of damages,
compensation or benefits payable by or for the Contractor or a Subcontractor under workers” compensation acts,
disability benefit acts or other employee benefit acts.

ARTICLE 4 ARCHITECT

§ 4.1 GENERAL ;
§ 4.1.1 The Owner shall retain an architect lawfully licensed to practice architecture or an entity: lawfully practicing

architecture in the jurisdiction where the Project is located. That person or entity is identified as the Architect in the
Agreement and is referred to throughout the Contract Documents as if singular in number.

§ 4.1.2 Duties, responsibilities and limitations of authority of the Architect as set forth in the Contract Documents
shall not be restricted, modified or extended without written consent of the Owner, Contractor and Architect.

Consent shall not be unreasonably withheld.

§ 4.1.3 If the employment of the Architect is terminated, the Owner shall employ a successor architect as to whom
the Contractor has no reasonable objection and whose status under the Contract Documents shatl-be that of the

Architect.

§ 4.2 ADMINISTRATION OF THE CONTRACT
§ 4.2.1 The Architect will provide administration of the Contract as described in the Contract Documents and will be

an Owner’s representative during construction until the date the Architect issues the final Certificate for Payment.
The Architect will have authority to act on behalf of the Owner only to the extent provided in the Contract

Documents.

§ 4.2.2 The Architect will visit the site at intervals appropriate to the stage of construction, or as otherwise agreed
with the Owner, to become generally familiar with the progress and quality of the portion of the Work completed,
and to determine in general if the Work observed is being performed in a manner indicating that the Work, when
fully completed, will be in accordance with the Contract Documents. However, the Architect will not be required to
make exhaustive or continuous on-site inspections to check the quality or quantity of the Work. The Architect will
not have control over, charge of] or responsibility for, the construction means, methods, techniques, sequences or
procedures, or for the safety precautions and programs in connection with the Work, since these are solely the

Contractor’s rights and responsibilities under the Contract Documents, except as provided in Section 3.3.1.

§ 4.2.3 On the basis of the site visits, the Architect will keep the Owner reasonably informed about the progress and
quality of the portion of the Work completed, and report to the Owner (1) known deviations from the Contract
Documents and from the most recent construction schedule submitted by the Contractor, and (2) defects and
deficiencies observed in the Work. The Architect will not be responsible for the Contractor’s failure to perform the
Work in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents. The Architect will not have control over or
charge of and will not be responsible for acts or omissions of the Contractor, Subcontractors, or their agents or

employees, or any other persons or entities performing portions of the Work.

1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 aand 2007 by The

AIA Document A201™ - 2007. Copyright & 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925,
Copyright Law and International

American Iastitute of Architects. All rights reserved, WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S
Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this ATA? Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and eriminal
penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 16:12:36 on
06/06/2014 under Order No.&§144147103_1 which expires on 04/28/2015, and is not for resale.

User Notes: {1196123245)

18



§ 4.2.4 COMMUNICATIONS FACILITATING CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION

Except as otherwise provided in the Contract Documents or when direct communications have been specially
authorized, the Owner and Contractor shall endeavor to communicate with each other through the Architect about
matters arising out of or relating to the Contract. Communications by and with the Architect’s consultants shall be
through the Architect. Communications by and with Subcontractors and material suppliers shall be through the
Contractor. Communications by and with separate contractors shall be through the Owner.

§ 4.2.5 Based on the Architect’s evaluations of the Contractor’s Applications for Payment, the Architect will review
and certify the amounts due the Contractor and will issue Certificates for Payment in such amounts.

§ 4.2.6 The Architect has authority to reject Work that does not conform to the Contract Documents. Whenever the
Architect considers it necessary or advisable, the Architect will have authority to require inspection or testing of the
Work in accordance with Sections 13.5.2 and 13.5.3, whether or not such Work is fabricated, installed or completed.
However, neither this authority of the Architect nor a decision made in good faith either to exercise or not to
exercise such authority shall give rise to a duty or responsibility of the Architect to the Contractor, Subcontractors,
material and equipment suppliers, their agents or employees, or other persons or entities performing portions of the

Work.

§ 4.2.7 The Architect will review and approve, or take other appropriate action upon, the Contractot’s submittals
such as Shop Drawings, Product Data and Samples, but only for the limited purpose of checking for confermance
with information given and the design concept expressed in the Contract Documents. The Architect’s action will be
taken in accordance with the submittal schedule approved by the Architect or, in the absence of an approved
submittal schedule, with reasonable promptness while allowing sufficient time in the Architect’s professional
Jjudgment to permit adequate review. Review of such submittals is not conducted for the purpose of determining the
accuracy and completeness of other details such as dimensions and quantities, or for substantiating instructions for
installation or performance of equipment or systems, all of which remain the responsibility of the Contractor as
required by the Contract Documents. The Architect’s teview of the Contractor’s submittals shall not relieve the
Contractor of the obligations under Sections 3.3, 3.5 and 3.12. The Architect’s review shall not constitute approval
of safety precautions or, unless otherwise specifically stated by the Architect, of any construction means, methods,
techniques, sequences or procedures. The Architect’s approval of a specific item shall not indicate approval of an

assembly of which the item is a component.

§ 4.2.8 The Architect will prepare Change Orders and Construction Change Directives, and may authorize minor
changes in the Work as provided in Section 7.4. The Architect will investigate and make determinations and
recommendations regarding concealed and unknown conditions as provided in Section 3.7.4.

§ 4.2.9 The Architect will conduct inspections to determine the date or dates of Substantial Completion and the date
of final completion; issue Certificates of Substantial Completion pursuant to Section 9.8; receive and forward to the
Owner, for the Owner’s review and records, written warranties and related documents required by the Coantract and
assembled by the Contractor pursuant to Section 9.10; and issue a {inal Certificate for Payment pursuant to Section

9.10.

§ 4.2.10 If the Owner and Architect agree, the Architect will provide one or more project representatives to assist in
carrying out the Architect’s responsibilities at the site. The duties, responsibilities and limitations of authority of
such project representatives shall be as set forth in an exhibit to be incorporated in the Contract Documents.

§4.2.11 The Architect will interpret and decide matters concerning performance under, and requirements of, the
Contract Documents on written request of either the Owner or Contractor. The Architect’s response to such requests
will be made in writing within any time limits agreed upon or otherwise with reasonable promptness.

§ 4.2.12 Interpretations and decisions of the Architect will be consistent with the intent of, and reasonably inferable
from, the Contract Documents and will be in writing or in the form of drawings. When making such interpretations
and decisions, the Architect will endeavor to secure faithful performance by both Owner and Contractor, will not
show partiality to either and will not be liable for results of interpretations or decisions rendered in good faith.

§4.2.13 The Architect’s decisions on matters relating to aesthetic effect will be final if consistent with the intent
expressed in the Contract Documents.

ATA Document A201™ - 2007. Copyright & 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The
American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved, WARNING: This ATA® Document is protected by J.S8. Copyright Law and International

Treatias. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this ATA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal
penalties, and will be prosecuted to che maximum extent possible under the law, This draft was produced by AIA software at 16:12:36 on
06/06/2014 under Order No.6144147103_1 which expires on 04/28/2015, and is aot for resale.

User Notes: (1196123245)

19



§4.2.14 The Architect will review and respond to requests for information about the Contract Documents. The
Architect’s response to such requests will be made in writing within any time limits agreed upon or otherwise with
reasonable promptness. [f appropriate, the Architect will prepare and issue supplemental Drawings and
Specifications in response to the requests for information.

ARTICLE5 SUBCONTRACTORS

§ 5.1 DEFINITIONS
§5.1.1 A Subcontractor is a person or entity who has a direct contract with the Contractor to perform a portion of the

Work at the site. The term “Subcontractor” is referred to throughout the Contract Documents as if singular in
number and means a Subcontractor or an authorized representative of the Subcontractor. The term “Subcontractor”
does not include a separate contractor or subcontractors of a separate contractor. g

§5.1.2 A Sub-subcontractor is a person or entity who has a direct or indirect contract with a Subcontractor to
perform a portion of the Work at the site. The term “Sub-subcontractor” is referred to throughout the Contract
Documents as if singular in number and means a Sub-subcontractor or an authorized representatlve of the Sub-

subcontractor.

§ 5.2 AWARD OF SUBCONTRACTS AND OTHER CONTRACTS FOR PORTIONS OF THE WORK

§ 5.2.1 Unless otherwise stated in the Contract Documents or the bidding requirements, the Contractor, asisoon as
practicable after award of the Contract, shall furnish in writing to the Owner through the Architect the names of
persons or entities (including those who are to furnish materials or equipment fabricated to a speciat design)
proposed for each principal portion of the Work. The Architect may reply within 14 days to the Contractor in
writing stating (1) whether the Owner or the Architect has reasonable objection to any such proposed person or
entity or (2) that the Architect requires additional time for review. Failure of the Owner or Architect to reply within

the 14-day period shall constitute notice of no reasonable objection.

§ 5.2.2 The Contractor shall not contract with a proposed person or entity to whom the Owner or Arehitect has made
reasonable and timely objection. The Contractor shall not be required to contract with anyone to whom the
Contractor has made reasonable objection.

§ 5.2.3 [f the Owner or Architect has reasonable objection to a person or entity proposed by the Contractor, the
Contractor shall propose another to whom the Owner or Architect has no reasonable objection. 1f the proposed but
rejected Subcontractor was reasonably capable of performing the Work, the Contract Sum and Contract Time shall
be increased or decreased by the difference, if any, occasioned by such change, and an appropriate Change Order
shall be issued before commencement of the substitute Subcontractor’s Work. However, no increase in the Contract
Sum or Contract Time shall be allowed for such change unless the Contractor has acted promptly and responsively

in submitting names as required.

§ 5.2.4 The Contractor shall not substitute a Subcontractor, person or entity previously selected if the Owner or
Architect makes reasonable objection to such substitution.

§ 5.3 SUBCONTRACTUAL RELATIONS

By appropriate agreement, written where legally required for validity, the Contractor shall require each
Subcontractor, to the extent of the Work to be performed by the Subcontractor, to be bound to the Contractor by
terms of the Contract D Documents, and 1o assume toward the Contracior all the nnnua_[l_()ns and [t_-_\_nnn\l S
including the responsibility for safety of the Subcontractor’s Work, which the Contractor, by these Documents
assumes toward the Owner and Architect. Each subcontract agreement shall preserve and protect the rights of the
Owner and Architect under the Contract Documents with respect to the Work to be performed by the Subcontractor
so that subcontracting thereof will not prejudice such rights, and shall allow to the Subcontractor, unless specifically
provided otherwise in the subcontract agreement, the benefit of all rights, remedies and redress against the
Contractor that the Contractor, by the Contract Documents, has against the Owner. Where appropriate, the
Contractor shall require each Subcontractor to enter into similar agreements with Sub-subcentractors. The
Contractor shall make available to each proposed Subcontractor, prior to the execution of the subcontract agreement,
copies of the Contract Documents to which the Subcontractor will be bound, and, upon written request of the
Subcontractor, identify to the Subcontractor terms and conditions of the proposed subcontract agreement that may

1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The

ATA Document A201%™ - 2007. Copyright I 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963,
Copyright Law and Internatioral 20

American Institute of Architects. ALl rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S.
Treaties. Unauthorizad reproduction or distribution of this ATA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal
penaltiaes, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possibla under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 16:12:36 on
06/06/2014 under Order No.6144147103 1 which expires on 04/28/2015, and is not For resale.

User Notes: (1196123245)



be at variance with the Contract Documents. Subcontractors will similarly make copies of applicable portions of
such documents available to their respective proposed Sub-subcontractors.

§ 5.4 CONTINGENT ASSIGNMENT OF SUBCONTRACTS
§ 5.4.1 Each subcontract agreement for a portion of the Work is assigned by the Contractor to the Owner, provided

that
.1 assignment is effective only after termination of the Contract by the Owner for cause pursuant to
Section 14.2 and only for those subcontract agreements that the Owner accepts by notifying the

Subcontractor and Contractor in writing; and
.2 assignment is subject to the prior rights of the surety, if any, obligated under bond relating to the

Contract.

When the Owner accepts the assignment of a subcontract agreement, the Owner assumes the Contractor’s rights and
obligations under the subcontract.

§ 5.4.2 Upon such assignment, if the Work has been suspended for more than 30 days, the Subcontractot’s
compensation shall be equitably adjusted for increases in cost resulting from the suspension.

§ 5.4.3 Upon such assignment to the Owner under this Section 5.4, the Owner may further assign the subcontract to a
successor contractor or other entity. [f the Owner assigns the subcontract to a successor contractot ot other entity,
the Owner shall nevertheless remain legally responsible for all of the successor contractor’s obligations under the

subcontract.

ARTICLE 6 CONSTRUCTION BY OWNER OR BY SEPARATE CONTRACTORS

§ 6.1 OWNER'S RIGHT TO PERFORM CONSTRUCTION AND TO AWARD SEPARATE CONTRACTS

§ 6.1.1 The Owner reserves the right to perform construction or operations related to the Project with the Owner’s
own forces, and to award separate contracts in connection with other portions of the Project or other construction or
operations on the site under Conditions of the Contract identical or substantially similar to these including those
portions related to insurance and waiver of subrogation. If the Contractor claims that delay or additional cost is
involved because of such action by the Owner, the Contractor shall make such Claim as provided in Article 15.

§ 6.1.2 When separate contracts are awarded for different portions of the Project or other construction er operations.
on the site, the term “Contractor” in the Contract Documents in each case shall mean the Contractor who executes

each separate Owner-Contractor Agreement.

§ 6.1.3 The Owner shall provide for coordination of the activities of the Owner’s own forces and of each separate
contractor with the Work of the Contractor, who shall cooperate with them. The Contractor shall participate with
other separate contractors and the Owner in reviewing their construction schedules. The Contractor shall make any
revisions to the construction schedule deemed necessary after a joint review and mutual agreement. The construction
schedules shall then constitute the schedules to be used by the Contractor, separate contractors and the Owner until

subsequently revised.

§ 6.1.4 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, when the Owner performs construction or operations

related to the Project with the Owner’s own forces, the Owner shall be deenied to be subject to the same obligations

and to have the same rights that apply to the Contractor under the Conditions of the Contract, inctuding, without
th‘lps HI I I Qll‘\d ll_l‘

F“”"‘J.Gl!‘.g omers, those stated in Article 3, this Article 6 and Article

§ 6.2 MUTUAL RESPONSIBILITY
§ 6.2.1 The Contractor shall afford the Owner and separate contractors reasonable opportunity for introduction and

storage of their materials and equipment and performance of their activities, and shall connect and coordinate the
Contractor’s construction and operations with theirs as required by the Contract Documents.

§6.2.2 [f part of the Contractor’s Work depends for proper execution or results upon construction or operations by
the Owner or a separate contractor, the Contractor shall, prior to proceeding with that portion of the Work, promptly
report to the Architect apparent discrepancies or defects in such other construction that would render it unsuitable
for such proper execution and results. Failure of the Contractor so to report shall constitute an acknowledgment that

1951 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The

AIA Document A201™ - 2007. Copyright » 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937,
Copyright Law and International 21

American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This ATA? Document is protectad by U.S.
Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this ATA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severs ciwil and criminal
penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 16:12:36 on
06/06/2014 under Order No.§144147103 1 which expires on 04/29/2015, and is not for resale.

User Notes: (1196123245)



the Owner’s or separate contractor’s completed or partially completed construction is fit and proper to receive the
Contractor’s Work, except as to defects not then reasonably discoverable.

§ 6.2.3 The Contractor shall reimburse the Owner for costs the Owner incurs that are payable to a separate contractor
because of the Contractor’s delays, improperly timed activities or defective construction. The Owner shall be
responsible to the Contractor for costs the Contractor incurs because of a separate contractor’s delays, improperly

timed activities, damage to the Work or defective construction.

§ 6.2.4 The Contractor shall promptly remedy damage the Contractor wrongfully causes to completed or partially
completed construction or to property of the Owner or separate contractors as provided in Section 10.2.5.

§ 6.2.5 The Owner and each separate contractor shall have the same responsibilities for cutting and patching as are
described for the Contractor in Section 3.14. !

§ 6.3 OWNER'S RIGHT TO CLEAN UP
[f a dispute arises among the Contractor, separate contractors and the Owner as to the responsibility under their

respective contracts for maintaining the premises and surrounding area free from waste materials and rubblsh the
Owner may clean up and the Architect will allocate the cost among those responsible. i i

ARTICLE 7 CHANGES IN THE WORK

§ 7.1 GENERAL
§ 7.1.1 Changes in the Work may be accomplished after execution of the Contract, and without invalidating the

Contract, by Change Order, Construction Change Directive or order for a minor change in the Work, subject to the
limitations stated in this Article 7 and elsewhere in the Contract Documents.

§ 7.1.2 A Change Order shall be based upon agreement among the Owner, Contractor and Architect; a Construction
Change Directive requires agreement by the Owner and Architect and may or may not be agreed to by the
Contractor; an order for a minor change in the Work may be issued by the Architect alone.

§ 7.1.3 Changes in the Work shall be performed under applicable provisions of the Contract Documents, and the
Contractor shall proceed promptly, unless otherwise provided in the Change Order, Construction Change Directive

or order for a minor change in the Work.

§ 7.2 CHANGE ORDERS
§ 7.2.1 A Change Order is a written instrument prepared by the Architect and signed by the Owner, Contractor and

Architect stating their agreement upon all of the following:
.1 The change in the Work;
.2 The amount of the adjustment, if any, in the Contract Sum; and
.3 The extent of the adjustment, if any, in the Contract Time.

§ 7.3 CONSTRUCTION CHANGE DIRECTIVES
§7.3.1 A Construction Change Directive is a written order prepared by the Architect and signed by the Owner and

Architect, directing a change in the Work prior to agreement on adjustment, if any, in the Contract Sum or Contract
Time, or both. The Owner may by Construction Change Directive, without invalidating the Contract, order changes
in the Work within the general scope of the Contract consisting of additions, deletions or other revisions, the

Contract Sum and Contract Time being adjusted accordingiy.

§ 7.3.2 A Construction Change Directive shall be used in the absence of total agreement on the terms of a Change
Order.

§ 7.3.3 [f the Construction Change Directive provides for an adjustment to the Contract Sum, the adjustment shall be

based on one of the following methods:
.1 Mutual acceptance of a lump sum properly itemized and supported by sufficient substantiating data to

permit evaluation;
.2 Unit prices stated in the Contract Documents or subsequently agreed upon;
3 Cost to be determined in a manner agreed upon by the parties and a mutually acceptable fixed or

percentage fee; or

1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The

ATA Document A201™ - 2007. Copyright 2 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951,
Copyright Law and International

American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: Thia ATA® Document 1s protected by U.S.
Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal
penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law, This draft was produced by AIA software at 16:12:36 on
06/06/2014 under Order No.6144147103 1 which expires on 04/28/2015, and is not for resale.

User Notes: (1196123245)

22



4 Asprovided in Section 7.3.7.

§ 7.3.4 If unit prices are stated in the Contract Documents or subsequently agreed upon, and if quantities originally
contemplated are materially changed in a proposed Change Order or Construction Change Directive so that
application of such unit prices to quantities of Work proposed will cause substantial inequity to the Owner or

Contractor, the applicable unit prices shall be equitably adjusted.

§ 7.3.5 Upon receipt of a Construction Change Directive, the Contractor shall promptly proceed with the change in
the Work involved and advise the Architect of the Contractor’s agreement or disagreement with the method, if any,
provided in the Construction Change Directive for determining the proposed adjustment in the Contract Sum or

Contract Time.

§7.3.6 A Construction Change Directive signed by the Contractor indicates the Contractor’s agreement therewith,
including adjustment in Contract Sum and Contract Time or the method for determining them. Such agreement shall
be effective immediately and shall be recorded as a Change Order.

§ 7.3.7 If the Contractor does not respond promptly or disagrees with the method for adjustment in the Contract Sum,
the Architect shall determine the method and the adjustment on the basis of reasonable expenditures and savings of
those performing the Work attributable to the change, including, in case of an increase in the Contract Sum, an
amount for overhead and profit as set forth in the Agreement, or if no such amount is set forth in the Agreement, a
reasonable amount. In such case, and also under Section 7.3.3.3, the Contractor shall keep and present, in such form
as the Architect may prescribe, an itemized accounting together with appropriate supporting data. Unitess otherwise
provided in the Contract Documents, costs for the purposes of this Section 7.3.7 shall be limited to the following:

.1 Costs of labor, including social security, old age and unemployment insurance, fringe benefits

required by agreement or custom, and workers’ compensation insurance;
.2 Costs of materials, supplies and equipment, including cost of transportation, whether incorporated or

consumed;
.3 Rental costs of machinery and equipment, exclusive of hand tools, whether rented from the

Contractor or others;
A4 Costs of premiums for all bonds and insurance, permit fees, and sales, use or similar taxes related to

the Work; and
5 Additional costs of supervision and field office personnel directly attributable to the change.

§ 7.3.8 The amount of credit to be allowed by the Contractor to the Owner for a deletion or change that results in a
net decrease in the Contract Sum shall be actual net cost as confirmed by the Architect. When both additions and
credits covering related Work or substitutions are involved in a change, the allowance for overhead and profit shall
be figured on the basis of net increase, if any, with respect to that change.

§ 7.3.9 Pending final determination of the total cost of a Construction Change Directive to the Owner, the Contractor
may request payment for Work completed under the Construction Change Directive in Applications for Payment.
The Architect will make an interim determination for purposes of monthly certification for payment for those costs
and certify for payment the amount that the Architect determines, in the Architect’s professional judgment, to be
reasonably justified. The Architect’s interim determination of cost shall adjust the Contract Sum on the same basis
as a Change Order, subject to the right of either party to disagree and assert a Claim in accordance with Atticle 15.

§ 7.3.10 When the Owner and Contractor agree with a determination made by the Architect concerning the
adjustments in the Contract Sum and Contract Time, or otherwise reach agreement upon the adjustments, such
agreement shall be effective immediately and the Architect will prepare a Change Order. Change Orders may be
issued for all or any part of a Construction Change Directive.

§ 7.4 MINOR CHANGES IN THE WORK
The Architect has authority to order minor changes in the Work not involving adjustment in the Contract Sum or

extension of the Contract Time and not inconsistent with the intent of the Contract Documents. Such changes will be
effected by written order signed by the Architect and shall be binding on the Owner and Centractor.

AIA Document A201® - 2007. Copyright +¢ 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The
American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and Iaternational
Treatiss. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and eriminal
penaltias, and will be prosecutad to the maximum extent possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 16:12:36 on
06/06/2014 under Order No.6144147103 1 which expires on 04/28/2015, and is not for resale.

User Notes: (1196123245)

23



ARTICLE 8 TIME

§ 8.1 DEFINITIONS
§ 8.1.1 Unless otherwise provided, Contract Time is the period of time, including authorized adjustments, allotted in

the Contract Documents for Substantial Completion of the Work.
§ 8.1.2 The date of commencement of the Work is the date established in the Agreement.
§ 8.1.3 The date of Substantial Completion is the date certified by the Architect in accordance with Section 9.8.

§ 8.1.4 The term “day” as used in the Contract Documents shall mean calendar day unless otherwise specifically
defined.

§ 8.2 PROGRESS AND COMPLETION
§ 8.2.1 Time limits stated in the Contract Documents are of the essence of the Contract. By executing the Agreement

the Contractor confirms that the Contract Time is a reasonable period for performing the Work.

§ 8.2.2 The Contractor shall not knowingly, except by agreement or instruction of the Owner in:writing, prematurely
commence operations on the site or elsewhere prior to the effective date of insurance required by Article 11 to be
furnished by the Contractor and Owner. The date of commencement of the Work shall not be changed by the
effective date of such insurance. :

§ 8.2.3 The Contractor shall proceed expeditiously with adequate forces and shall achieve Substantial Completion
within the Contract Time.

§ 8.3 DELAYS AND EXTENSIONS OF TIME
§ 8.3.1 If the Contractor is delayed at any time in the commencement or progress of the Work by an act or neglect of

the Owner ot Architect, or of an employee of either, or of a separate contractor employed by the Owner; or by
changes ordered in the Work; or by labor disputes, fire, unusual delay in deliveries, unavoidable casualties or other
causes beyond the Contractor’s control; or by delay authorized by the Owner pending mediation and arbitration; or
by other causes that the Architect determines may justify delay, then the Contract Time shall be extended by Change
Order for such reasonable time as the Architect may determine.

§ 8.3.2 Claims relating to time shall be made in accordance with applicable provisions of Article 15.

§ 8.3.3 This Section 8.3 does not preclude recovery of damages for delay by either party under other provisions of
the Contract Documents.

ARTICLE9 PAYMENTS AND COMPLETION

§ 9.1 CONTRACT SUM
The Contract Sum is stated in the Agreement and, including authorized adjustments, is the total amount payable by

the Owner to the Contractor for performance of the Work under the Contract Documents.

§9.2 SCHEDULE OF VALUES
Where the Contract is based on a stipulated sum or Guaranteed Maximum Price, the Contractor shall submit to the

Architect, before the first Application for Payment, a schedule of values allocating the entire Contract Sum to the
various portions of the Work and prepared in such form and supported by such data to substantiate its accuracy as
the Architect may require. This schedule, unless objected to by the Architect, shall be used as a basis for reviewing
the Contractor’s Applications for Payment.

§ 9.3 APPLICATIONS FOR PAYMENT

§9.3.1 At least ten days before the date established for each progress payment, the Contractor shall submit to the
Architect an itemized Application for Payment prepared in accordance with the schedule of values, if required under
Section 9.2, for completed portions of the Work. Such application shall be notarized, if required, and supported by
such data substantiating the Contractor’s right to payment as the Owner or Architect may require, such as copies of
requisitions from Subcontractors and material suppliers, and shall reflect retainage if provided for in the Contract

Documents.

AIA Document A201™ - 2007. Copyright = 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The

American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA° Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International
Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA* Document, or any portion of 1t, may result in severe civil and crimanal

penaltias, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 16:12:36 on
06/06/2014 under Order No.6144147103 1 which expires on 04/28/2015, and is not for resale.
User Notes: (11961232459)

24



§9.3.1.1 As provided in Section 7.3.9, such applications may include requests for payment on account of changes in
the Work that have been properly authorized by Construction Change Directives, or by interim determinations of the

Architect, but not yet included in Change Orders.

§ 9.3.1.2 Applications for Payment shall not include requests for payment for portions of the Work for which the
Contractor does not intend to pay a Subcontractor or material supplier, unless such Work has been performed by

others whom the Contractor intends to pay.

§ 9.3.2 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, payments shall be made on account of materials and
equipment delivered and suitably stored at the site for subsequent incorporation in the Work. If approved in advance
by the Owner, payment may similarly be made for materials and equipment suitably stored off the site at a location
agreed upon in writing. Payment for materials and equipment stored on or off the site shall be conditioned upon
compliance by the Contractor with procedures satisfactory to the Owner to establish the Owner’s title to such
materials and equipment or otherwise protect the Owner’s interest, and shall include the costs of applicable
insurance, storage and transportation to the site for such materials and equipment stored off the site.

§9.3.3 The Contractor warrants that title to all Work covered by an Application for Payment will pass to the Owner
no later than the time of payment. The Contractor further warrants that upon submittal of an Application for
Payment all Work for which Certificates for Payment have been previously issued and payments received from the
Owner shall, to the best of the Contractor’s knowledge, information and belief, be free and clear of liens, claims,
security interests or encumbrances in favor of the Contractor, Subcontractors, material suppliers, or other persons or
entities making a claim by reason of having provided labor, materials and equipment relating to-the Work.

§ 9.4 CERTIFICATES FOR PAYMENT
§ 9.4.1 The Architect will, within seven days after receipt of the Contractor’s Application for Payment, either issue to

the Owner a Certificate for Payment, with a copy to the Contractor, for such amount as the Architect determines is
properly due, or notify the Contractor and Owner in writing of the Architect’s reasons for withholding certification
in whole or in part as provided in Section 9.5.1.

§ 9.4.2 The issuance of a Certificate for Payment will constitute a representation by the Architect to the Owner,

based on the Architect’s evaluation of the Work and the data comprising the Application for Payment, that, to the
best of the Architect’s knowledge, information and belief, the Work has progressed to the point indicated and that
the quality of the Work is in accordance with the Contract Documents. The foregoing representations are subject to
an evaluation of the Work for conformance with the Contract Documents upon Substantial Completion, to results of
subsequent tests and inspections, to correction of minor deviations from the Contract Documents prior to completion
and to specific qualifications expressed by the Architect. The issuance of a Certificate for Payment will further
constitute a representation that the Contractor is entitled to payment in the amount certified. However, the issuance
of a Certificate for Payment will not be a representation that the Architect has (1) made exhaustive or continuous on-
site inspections to check the quality or quantity of the Work, (2) reviewed construction means, methods, techniques,
sequences or procedures, (3) reviewed copies of requisitions received from Subcontractors and material suppliers
and other data requested by the Owner to substantiate the Contractor’s right to payment, or (4) made examination to
ascertain how or for what purpose the Contractor has used money previously paid on account of the Contract Sum.

§ 9.5 DECISIONS TO WITHHOLD CERTIFICATION
§ 9.5.1 The Architect may withhold a Certificate for Payment in whole or in part, to the extent reasonably necessary

to protect the Owner, if in the Architect’s opinion the representations to the Owner required by Section 9.4.2 cannot
be made. If the Architect is unable to certify payment in the amount of the Application, the Architect will notify the
Contractor and Owner as provided in Section 9.4.1. If the Contractor and Architect cannot agtee on a revised
amount, the Architect will promptly issue a Certificate for Payment for the amount for which the Architect is able to
make such representations to the Owner. The Architect may also withhold a Certificate for Payment or, because of
subsequently discovered evidence, may nullify the whole or a part of a Certificate for Payment previously issued, to
such extent as may be necessary in the Architect’s opinion to protect the Owner from loss for which the Contractor
is responsible, including loss resulting from acts and omissions described in Section 3.3.2, because of

1 defective Work not remedied;

.2 third party claims filed or reasonable evidence indicating probable filing of such claims unless

security acceptable to the Owner is provided by the Contractor;

ATA Document A201% — 2007. Copyright & 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The
American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA° Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International

Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal
penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum 2xtent possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 16:12:36 oa
06/06/2014 under Order §0.6144147103_1 which expires on 04/28/2015, and is not for resale.

User Notes: (1196123245)

25



.3 failure of the Contractor to make payments properly to Subcontractors or for labor, materials or
equipment;

4 reasonable evidence that the Work cannot be completed for the unpaid balance of the Contract Sum;

.5 damage to the Owner or a separate contractor;

.6 reasonable evidence that the Work will not be completed within the Contract Time, and that the
unpaid balance would not be adequate to cover actual or liquidated damages.for the anticipated delay;

or
.1 repeated failure to carry out the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents.

§ 9.5.2 When the above reasons for withholding certification are removed, certification will'be made for amounts
previously withheld.

§9.5.3 [f the Architect withholds certification for payment under Section 9.5.1.3, the Owner may, at its sole option,
issue joint checks to the Contractor and to any Subcontractor or material or equipment suppliers to whom the
Contractor failed to make payment for Work properly performed or material or equipment suitably delivered. If the
Owner makes payments by joint check, the Owner shall notify the Architect and the Architect will reflect such

payment on the next Certificate for Payment.

§ 9.6 PROGRESS PAYMENTS
§ 9.6.1 After the Architect has issued a Certificate for Payment, the Owner shall make payment in the manner and

within the time provided in the Contract Documents, and shall so notify the Architect.

§ 9.6.2 The Contractor shall pay each Subcontractor no later than seven days after receipt of payment from the
Owner the amount to which the Subcontractor is entitled, reflecting percentages actually retained from payments to
the Contractor on account of the Subcontractor’s portion of the Work. The Contractor shall, by appropriate
agreement with each Subcontractor, require each Subcontractor to make payments to Sub-subcontractors in a simitar

manner.

§ 9.6.3 The Architect will, on request, furnish to a Subcontractor, if practicable, information regarding percentages of
completion or amounts applied for by the Contractor and action taken thereon by the Architect and Owner on
account of portions of the Work done by such Subcontractor.

§ 9.6.4 The Owner has the right to request written evidence from the Contractor that the Contractor has properly paid
Subcontractors and material and equipment suppliers amounts paid by the Owner to the Contractor for subcontracted
Work. [f the Contractor fails to furnish such evidence within seven days, the Owner shall have the right to contact
Subcontractors to ascertain whether they have been properly paid. Neither the Owner nor Architect shall have an
obligation to pay or to see to the payment of money to a Subcontractor, except as may otherwise be required by law.

§ 9.6.5 Contractor payments to material and equipment suppliers shall be treated in a manner similar to that provided
in Sections 9.6.2, 9.6.3 and 9.6.4.

§9.6.6 A Certificate for Payment, a progress payment, or partial or entire use or occupancy of the Project by the
Owner shall not constitute acceptance of Work not in accordance with the Contract Documents.

§ 9.6.7 Unless the Contractor provides the Owner with a payment bond in the full penal sum of the Contract Sum,
payments received by the Contractor for Work properly performed by Subcontractors and suppiiers shall be held b
pey Y propeiny p (o

the Contractor for those Subcontractors or suppliers who performed Work or fumished materials, or both, under
contract with the Contractor for which payment was made by the Owner. Nothing contained herein shall require
money to be placed in a separate account and not commingled with money of the Contractor, shall create any
fiduciary liability or tort liability on the part of the Contractor for breach of trust or shall entitle any person or entity
to an award of punitive damages against the Contractor for breach of the requirements of this provision.

§ 9.7 FAILURE OF PAYMENT
[f the Architect does not issue a Certificate for Payment, through no fault of the Contractor, within seven days after

receipt of the Contractor’s Application for Payment, or if the Owner does not pay the Contractor within seven days
after the date established in the Contract Documents the amount certified by the Architect or awarded by binding
dispute resolution, then the Contractor may, upon seven additional days’ written notice to the Owner and Architect,

ATA Document A201%™ — 2007. Copyright & 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The
American Instiltute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S§. Copyright Law and International
Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this ATA? Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal
penalties, and will be prosescuted to the maximum extent possibla under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 16:12:36 on
06/06/2014 under Order No.6144147103_1 which expires on 04/28/2015, aad is not for resale.

User Notes: (1196123245)

26



stop the Work until payment of the amount owing has been received. The Contract Time shall be extended
appropriately and the Contract Sum shall be increased by the amount of the Contractor’s reasonable costs of shut-
down, delay and start-up, plus interest as provided for in the Contract Documents.

§ 9.8 SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION
§ 9.8.1 Substantial Completion is the stage in the progress of the Work when the Work or designated portion thereof

is sufficiently complete in accordance with the Contract Documents so that the Owner can occupy or utilize the
Work for its intended use.

§ 9.8.2 When the Contractor considers that the Work, or a portion thereof which the Owner agrees to accept
separately, is substantially complete, the Contractor shall prepare and submit to the Architect a comprehensive list of
items to be completed or corrected prior to final payment. Failure to include an item on such list does not alter the
responsibility of the Contractor to complete all Work in accordance with the Contract Documents.

§ 9.8.3 Upon receipt of the Contractor’s list, the Architect will make an inspection to determine whether the Work or
designated portion thereof is substantially complete. If the Architect’s inspection discloses any item, whether or not
included on the Contractor’s list, which is not sufficiently complete in accordance with the Contract Documents so
that the Owner can occupy or utilize the Work or designated portion thereof for its intended use, the Contractor
shall, before issuance of the Certificate of Substantial Completion, complete or cotrect such item upon notification
by the Architect. In such case, the Contractor shall then submit a request for another inspection. by the Architect to

determine Substantial Completion.

§ 9.8.4 When the Work or designated portion thereof is substantially complete, the Architect will prepare a
Certificate of Substantial Completion that shall establish the date of Substantial Completion, shall establish
responsibilities of the Owner and Contractor for security, maintenance, heat, utilities, damage to the Work and
insurance, and shall fix the time within which the Contractor shall finish all items on the list accompanying the
Certificate. Warranties requited by the Contract Documents shall commence on the date of Substantial Completion
of the Work or designated portion thereof unless otherwise provided in the Certificate of Substantial Completion.

§ 9.8.5 The Certificate of Substantial Completion shall be submitted to the Owner and Contractor for their written
acceptance of responsibilities assigned to them in such Certificate. Upon such acceptance and consent of surety, if
any, the Owner shall make payment of retainage applying to such Work or designated portion thereof. Such payment
shall be adjusted for Work that is incomplete or not in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents.

§9.9 PARTIAL OCCUPANCY OR USE
§9.9.1 The Owner may occupy or use any completed or partially completed portion of the Work at any stage when
such portion is designated by separate agreement with the Contractor, provided such occupancy or use is censented
to by the insurer as required under Section 11.3.1.5 and authorized by public authorities having jurisdiction over the
Project. Such partial occupancy or use may commence whether or not the portion is substantially complete, provided
the Owner and Contractor have accepted in writing the responsibilities assigned to each of them for payments,
retainage, if any, security, maintenance, heat, utilities, damage to the Work and insurance, and have agreed in
writing concerning the period for correction of the Work and commencement of warranties required by the Contract
Documents. When the Contractor considers a portion substantially complete, the Contractor shall prepare and
submit a list to the Architect as provided under Section 9.8.2. Consent of the Contractor to partial occupancy or use
shall not be unreasonably withheld. The stage of the progress of the Work shall be determined by written agreement
hv decicion ot the Archiiect
3 VW

COIL T UV il LO CCOISI0N O VIAC ALCIIIRLL.

P o~ ] o i ..
between the Uwner ang Contractor or, if no agreement 1s reached

§ 9.9.2 Immediately prior to such partial occupancy or use, the Owner, Contractor and Architect shall jointly inspect
the area to be occupied or portion of the Work to be used in order to determine and record the condition of the

Work.

§9.9.3 Unless otherwise agreed upon, partial occupancy or use of a portion or portions of the Work shall not
constitute acceptance of Work not complying with the requirements of the Contract Documents.

§9.10 FINAL COMPLETION AND FINAL PAYMENT
§9.10.1 Upon receipt of the Contractor’s written notice that the Work is ready for final inspection and aceeptance

and upon receipt of a final Application for Payment, the Architect will promptly make such inspection and, when the

AIA Document A201% - 2007. Copyright & 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The
American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This ATA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International
Treatias. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this ATA? Document, or any portion of it, may result in severa civil and criminal
penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extant possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 16:12:36 on
06/06/2014 under Order N0.6144147103_1 which expires on 04/28/2015, and is not for resale.

User Notes: {1196123245)

27



Architect finds the Work acceptable under the Contract Documents and the Contract fully performed, the Architect
will promptly issue a final Certificate for Payment stating that to the best of the Architect’s knowledge, information
and belief, and on the basis of the Architect’s on-site visits and inspections, the Work has been completed in
accordance with terms and conditions of the Contract Documents and that the entire balance found to be due the
Contractor and noted in the final Certificate is due and payable. The Architect’s final Certificate for Payment will
constitute a further representation that conditions listed in Section 9.10.2 as precedent to the Contractor’s being

entitled to final payment have been fulfilled.

§ 9.10.2 Neither final payment nor any remaining retained percentage shall become due until the Contractor submits
to the Architect (1) an affidavit that payrolls, bills for materials and equipment, and other indebtedness connected
with the Work for which the Owner or the Owner’s property might be responsible or encumbered (less amounts
withheld by Owner) have been paid or otherwise satisfied, (2) a certificate evidencing that insurance required by the
Contract Documents to remain in force after final payment is currently in effect and will not be canceled or allowed
to expire until at least 30 days’ prior written notice has been given to the Owner, (3) a written statement that the
Contractor knows of no substantial reason that the insurance will not be renewable to cover the period required by
the Contract Documents, (4) consent of surety, if any, to final payment and (5), if requited by the Owner, other data
establishing payment or satisfaction of obligations, such as receipts, releases and waivers of liens, claims, security
interests or encumbrances arising out of the Contract, to the extent and in such form as may: be designated by the
Owner. [f a Subcontractor refuses to furnish a release or waiver required by the Owner, the Contractor may furnish a
bond satisfactory to the Owner to indemnify the Owner against such lien. If such lien remains unsatistied after
payments are made, the Contractor shall refund to the Owner all money that the Owner may be:compelled to pay in
discharging such lien, including all costs and reasonable attorneys’ fees.

§9.10.3 If, after Substantial Completion of the Work, final completion thereof is materially delayed through no fault
of the Contractor or by issuance of Change Orders affecting final completion, and the Architect so confirms, the
Owner shall, upon application by the Contractor and certification by the Architect, and without terminating the
Contract, make payment of the balance due for that portion of the Work fully completed and accepted. If the
remaining balance for Work not fully completed or corrected is less than retainage stipulated in the Contract
Documents, and if bonds have been furnished, the written consent of surety to payment of the balance due for that
portion of the Work fully completed and accepted shall be submitted by the Contractor to the Architect prior to
certification of such payment. Such payment shall be made under terms and conditions governing final payment,

except that it shall not constitute a waiver of claims.

§9.10.4 The making of final payment shall constitute a waiver of Claims by the Owner except those arising from
A liens, Claims, security interests or encumbrances arising out of the Contract and unsettled;
.2 failure of the Work to comply with the requirements of the Contract Documents; or
3 terms of special warranties required by the Contract Documents.

§9.10.5 Acceptance of final payment by the Contractor, a Subcontractor or material supplier shall constitute a waiver
of claims by that payee except those previously made in writing and identified by that payee as unsettled at the time

of final Application for Payment.

ARTICLE 10 PROTECTION OF PERSONS AND PROPERTY
§10.1 SAFETY PRECAUTIONS AND PROGRAMS
The Contractor shall be responsible for initiating, maintaining and supervising all safety precautions and programs

in connection with the performance of the Contract.

§10.2 SAFETY OF PERSONS AND PROPERTY
§ 10.2.1 The Contractor shall take reasonable precautions for safety of, and shall provide reasonable protection to
prevent damage, injury or loss to

1 employees on the Work and other persons who may be affected thereby;

2 the Work and materials and equipment to be incorporated therein, whether in storage on or off the
site, under care, custody or control of the Contractor or the Contractor’s Subcontractors or Sub-
subcontractors; and

3 other property at the site or adjacent thereto, such as trees, shrubs, lawns, walks, pavements,
roadways, structures and utilities not designated for removal, relocation or replacement in the course

of construction.

AIA Document A201™ - 2007. Copyright ¥ 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The
American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This ATA” Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International
Treatias, Unauthorized reproduction or distributicn of this ATA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal
penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible undar the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 16:12:36 on
06/06/2014 under Order No.6144147103 1 which expires on 04/28/2015, and is not for resale.

User Notes: - (1196123245)

28



§ 10.2.2 The Contractor shall comply with and give notices required by applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes,
rules and regulations, and lawful orders of public authorities bearing on safety of persons or property or their

protection from damage, injury or loss.

§ 10.2.3 The Contractor shall erect and maintain, as required by existing conditions and performance of the Contract,
reasonable safeguards for safety and protection, including posting danger signs and other warnings against hazards,
promulgating safety regulations and notifying owners and users of adjacent sites and utilities.

§ 10.2.4 When use or storage of explosives or other hazardous materials or equipment or unusual methods are
necessary for execution of the Work, the Contractor shall exercise utmost care and carry on such activities under

supervision of properly qualified personnel.

§ 10.2.5 The Contractor shall promptly remedy damage and loss (other than damage or loss insured under property
insurance required by the Contract Documents) to property referred to in Sections 10.2.1.2 and 10.2.1.3 caused in
whole or in part by the Contractor, a Subcontractor, a Sub-subcontractor, or anyone directly or indirectly employed
by any of them, or by anyone for whose acts they may be liable and for which the Contractor is responsible under
Sections 10.2.1.2 and 10.2.1.3, except damage or loss attributable to acts or omissions of the Owner or Architect or
anyone directly or indirectly employed by either of them, or by anyone for whose acts either of them may be liable,
and not attributable to the fault or negligence of the Contractor. The foregoing obligations of the Contractor are in
addition to the Contractor’s obligations under Section 3.18.

§ 10.2.6 The Contractor shall designate a responsible member of the Contractor’s organization at the site whose duty
shall be the prevention of accidents. This person shall be the Contractor’s superintendent unless otherwise
designated by the Contractor in writing to the Owner and Architect.

§10.2.7 The Contractor shall not permit any part of the construction or site to be loaded so as to cause damage or
create an unsafe condition.

§ 10.2.8 INJURY OR DAMAGE TO PERSON OR PROPERTY

If either party suffers injury or damage to person or property because of an act or omission of the other party, or of
others for whose acts such party is legally responsible, written notice of such injury or damage, whether or not
insured, shall be given to the other party within a reasonable time not exceeding 21 days after discovery. The notice

shall provide sufficient detail to enable the other party to investigate the matter.

§ 10.3 HAZARDOUS MATERIALS
§ 10.3.1 The Contractor is responsible for compliance with any requirements included in the Contract Documents

regarding hazardous materials. [f the Contractor encounters a hazardous material or substance not addressed in the
Contract Documents and if reasonable precautions will be inadequate to prevent foreseeable bodily injury or death
to persons resulting from a material or substance, including but not limited to asbestos or polychlorinated bipheny!
(PCB), encountered on the site by the Contractor, the Contractor shall, upon recognizing the condition, immediately
stop Work in the affected area and report the condition to the Owner and Architect in writing.

§ 10.3.2 Upon receipt of the Contractor’s written notice, the Owner shall obtain the services of a licensed laboratory
to verify the presence or absence of the material or substance reported by the Contractor and, in the event such
material or substance is found to be present, to cause it to be rendered harmiess. Unless otherwise required by the
Contract Documents, the Owner shall furnish in writing to the Contractor and Architect the names and qualifications
of persons or entities who are to perform tests verifying the presence or absence of such material or substance or
who are to perform the task of removal or safe containment of such material or substance. The Contractor and the
Architect will promptly reply to the Owner in writing stating whether or not either has reasonable objection to the
persons or entities proposed by the Owner. If either the Contractor or Architect has an objection to a person or entity
proposed by the Owner, the Owner shall propose another to whom the Contractor and the Architect have no
reasonable objection. When the material or substance has been rendered harmless, Work in the affected area shall
resume upon written agreement of the Owner and Contractor. By Change Order, the Contract Time shall be
extended appropriately and the Contract Sum shall be increased in the amount of the Contractor’s reasonable

additional costs of shut-down, delay and start-up.

1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1967, 1997 and 2007 by The

AIA Document A201% - 2007. Copyright 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951,
Copyright Law and International

American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This ATA® Document is protected by 7.5,
Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this ATA® Document, or any portien of it, may result in severe civil and criminal
penalties, and will be prosecnted to the maximum extent possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 16:12:36 on
06/06/2014 under Order No,6144147103_1 which expires on 04/28/2015, and is aot for resale,

User Notas: (1196123245)

29



§ 10.3.3 To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Owner shall indemnify and hold harmless the Contractor,
Subcontractors, Architect, Architect’s consultants and agents and employees of any of them from and against
claims, damages, losses and expenses, including but not limited to attorneys’ fees, arising out of or resulting from
performance of the Work in the affected area if in fact the material or substance presents the risk of bodily injury or
death as described in Section 10.3.1 and has not been rendered harmless, provided that such claim, damage, loss or
expense is attributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease or death, or to injury to or destruction of tangible property
(other than the Work itself), except to the extent that such damage, loss or expense is due to the fault or negligence

of the party seeking indemnity. \

§ 10.3.4 The Owner shall not be responsible under this Section 10.3 for materials or substances the Contractor brings
to the site unless such materials or substances are required by the Contract Documents. The Owner-shall be
responsible for materials or substances required by the Contract Documents, except to the extent of the Contractor’s
fault or negligence in the use and handling of such materials or substances.

§ 10.3.5 The Contractor shall indemnify the Owner for the cost and expense the Owner incurs (1) for remediation of
a material or substance the Contractor brings to the site and negligently handles, or (2) where the Contractor fails to
perform its obligations under Section 10.3.1, except to the extent that the cost and expense are due to the Owner’s

fault or negligence.

§ 10.3.6 If, without negligence on the part of the Contractor, the Contractor is held liable by a government agency for
the cost of remediation of a hazardous material or substance solely by reason of performing Work as required by the
Contract Documents, the Owner shall indemnify the Contractor for all cost and expense thereby incurred.

§ 10.4 EMERGENCIES
In an emergency affecting safety of persons or property, the Contractor shall act, at the Contractor’s discretion, to

prevent threatened damage, injury or loss. Additional compensation or extension of time claimed by the Contractor
on account of an emergency shall be determined as provided in Article 15 and Article 7.

ARTICLE 11 INSURANCE AND BONDS

§ 11.1 CONTRACTOR'S LIABILITY INSURANCE

§ 11.1.1 The Contractor shall purchase from and maintain in a company or companies lawfully authorized to do
business in the jurisdiction in which the Project is located such insurance as will protect the Contractor from claims
set forth below which may arise out of or result from the Contractor’s operations and completed opetrations under
the Contract and for which the Contractor may be legally liable, whether such operations be by the Contractor or by
a Subcontractor or by anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them, or by anyone for whose acts any of

them may be liable:
1 Claims under workers’ compensation, disability benefit and other similar employee benefit acts that
are applicable to the Work to be performed;
2 Claims for damages because of bodily injury, occupational sickness or disease, or death of the
Contractor’s employeces;
3 Claims for damages because of bodily injury, sickness or disease, or death of any person other than
the Contractor’s employees;
4 Claims for damages insured by usual personal injury liability coverage;
5 Claims for damages, other than to the Work itself, because of injury to or destruction of tangible
property, including loss of use resulting therefrom;
6  Claims for damages because of bodily injury, death of a person or property damage arising out of
ownership, maintenance or use of a motor vehicle;
Claims for bodily injury or property damage arising out of completed operations; and
8 Claims involving contractual liability insurance applicable to the Contractor’s obligations under

Section 3.18.

~

§ 11.1.2 The insurance required by Section 11.1.1 shall be written for not less than limits of liability specified in the
Contract Documents or required by law, whichever coverage is greater. Coverages, whether written on an
occurrence or claims-made basis, shall be maintained without interruption from the date of commencement of the
Work until the date of final payment and termination of any coverage required to be maintained after final payment,
and, with respect to the Contractor’s completed operations coverage, until the expiration of the period for correction

AIA Document A201™ - 2007. Copyright & 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The
American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International 30
Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this ATA® Document, or any portiom of it, may result in severe civil and criminal
penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. This draft was produced by RIA software at 16:12:36 on
06/06/2014 under Order No.6144147103 1 which expires on 04/28/2015, and is not for resale.

User Notes: = {1196123245)



of Work or for such other period for maintenance of completed operations coverage as specified in the Contract
Documents.

§ 11.1.3 Certificates of insurance acceptable to the Owner shall be filed with the Owner prior to commencement of
the Work and thereafter upon renewal or replacement of each required policy of insurance. These certificates and the
insurance policies required by this Section 11.1 shall contain a provision that coverages afforded under the policies
will not be canceled or allowed to expire until at least 30 days’ prior written notice has been given to the Owner. An
additional certificate evidencing continuation of liability coverage, including coverage for ¢ompleted operations,
shall be submitted with the final Application for Payment as required by Section 9.10.2 and thereafter upon renewal
or replacement of such coverage until the expiration of the time required by Section 11.1.2. Information concerning
reduction of coverage on account of revised limits or claims paid under the General Aggregate, or both, shall be

furnished by the Contractor with reasonable promptness.

§ 11.1.4 The Contractor shall cause the commercial liability coverage required by the Contract Documents to include
(1) the Owner, the Architect and the Architect’s consultants as additional insureds for claims cdused in whole or in
part by the Contractor’s negligent acts or omissions during the Contractot’s operations; and (2):the Owner as an
additional insured for claims caused in whole or in part by the Contractor’s negligent acts or omissions during the

Contractor’s completed operations.

§ 11.2 OWNER'S LIABILITY INSURANCE
The Owner shall be responsible for purchasing and maintaining the Owner’s usual liability insurance.

§ 11.3 PROPERTY INSURANCE
§ 11.3.1 Unless otherwise provided, the Owner shall purchase and maintain, in a company ot companies lawfully

authorized to do business in the jurisdiction in which the Project is located, property insurance written on a builder’s
risk “all-risk” or equivalent policy form in the amount of the initial Contract Sum, plus value of subsequent Contract
Modifications and cost of materials supplied or installed by others, comprising total value for the entire Project at
the site on a replacement cost basis without optional deductibles. Such property insurance shall be maintained,
unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents or otherwise agreed in writing by all persons and entities who
are beneficiaries of such insurance, until final payment has been made as provided in Section 9.10 or until no person
or entity other than the Owner has an insurable interest in the property required by this Section 11.3 to be covered,
whichever is later. This insurance shall include interests of the Owner, the Contractor, Subcontractors and Sub-

subcontractors in the Project.

§ 11.3.1.1 Property insurance shall be on an “all-risk” or equivalent policy form and shall include, without limitation,
insurance against the perils of fire (with extended coverage) and physical loss or damage including, without
duplication of coverage, theft, vandalism, malicious mischief, collapse, earthquake, flood, windstorm, falsework,
testing and startup, temporary buildings and debris removal including demolition occasioned by enforcement of any
applicable legal requirements, and shall cover reasonable compensation for Architect’s and Contractor’s services

and expenses required as a result of such insured loss.

§ 11.3.1.2 [f the Owner does not intend to purchase such property insurance required by the Contract and with all of
the coverages in the amount described above, the Owner shall so inform the Contractor in writing prior to
commencement of the Work. The Contractor may then effect insurance that will protect the interests of the
Contractor, Subcontractors and Sub-subcontractors in the Work, and by appropriate Change Order the cost thereof
shall be charged to the Owner. if the Contractor is damaged by the failure or neglect of the Owner to purchase or
maintain insurance as described above, without so notifying the Contractor in writing, then the Owner shall bear all
reasonable costs properly attributable thereto.

§ 11.3.1.3 If the property insurance requires deductibles, the Owner shall pay costs not covered because of such
deductibles.

§ 11.3.1.4 This property insurance shall cover portions of the Work stored off the site, and also portions of the Work
in transit.

§ 11.3.1.5 Partial occupancy or use in accordance with Section 9.9 shall not commence until the insurance company
or companies providing property insurance have consented to such partial occupancy or use by endorsement or

AIA Document A201™ — 2007. Copyright < 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The
American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This ATA® Document 1s protected by U.S, Copyright Law and International

Treaties. Unauthorized reproduection or distribution of this ATA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal
penalties, and #ill be prasecuted to the maximum sxtent possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 16:12:36 on
06/06/2914 under Order No.6144147103_1 which expires on 04/28/2015, and is not for resale.

User Notes: (1196123245

31



otherwise. The Owner and the Contractor shall take reasonable steps to obtain consent of the insurance company or
companies and shall, without mutual written consent, take no action with respect to partial occupancy or use that

would cause cancellation, lapse or reduction of insurance.

§ 11.3.2 BOILER AND MACHINERY INSURANCE
The Owner shall purchase and maintain boiler and machinery insurance required by the Contract Documents or by

law, which shall specifically cover such insured objects during installation and until final a¢ceptance by the Owner;
this insurance shall include interests of the Owner, Contractor, Subcontractors and Sub-subcontractors in the Work,

and the Owner and Contractor shall be named insureds.

§ 11.3.3 LOSS OF USE INSURANCE {
The Owner, at the Owner’s option, may purchase and maintain such insurance as will insure the Owner against loss

of use of the Owner’s property due to fire or other hazards, however caused. The Owner waives all rights of action
against the Contractor for loss of use of the Owner’s property, including consequential losses due to fire or other

hazards however caused.

§ 11.3.4 If the Contractor requests in writing that insurance for risks other than those described herein or other
special causes of loss be included in the property insurance policy, the Owner shall, if possible, include such
insurance, and the cost thereof shall be charged to the Contractor by appropriate Change Order. :

§ 11.3.5 If during the Project construction period the Owner insures properties, real or personal or both, at.or adjacent
to the site by property insurance under policies separate from those insuring the Project, or if after final payment
property insurance is to be provided on the completed Project through a policy or policies ather than those insuring
the Project during the construction period, the Owner shall waive all rights in accordance with the terms of Section
11.3.7 for damages caused by fire or other causes of loss covered by this separate property insurance. All separate
policies shall provide this waiver of subrogation by endorsement or otherwise.

§ 11.3.6 Before an exposure to loss may occur, the Owner shall file with the Contractor a copy of each policy that
includes insurance coverages required by this Section 11.3. Each policy shall contain all generally applicable
conditions, definitions, exclusions and endorsements related to this Project. Each policy shall contain a provision
that the policy will not be canceled or allowed to expire, and that its limits will not be reduced, until at least 30 days’
prior written notice has been given to the Contractor.

§ 11.3.7 WAIVERS OF SUBROGATION

The Owner and Contractor waive all rights against (1) each other and any of their subcontractors, sub-
subcontractors, agents and employees, each of the other, and (2) the Architect, Architect’s consultants, separate
contractors described in Article 6, if any, and any of their subcontractors, sub-subcontractors, agents and employees,
for damages caused by fire or other causes of loss to the extent covered by property insurance obtained pursuant to
this Section 11.3 or other property insurance applicable to the Work, except such rights as they have to proceeds of
such insurance held by the Owner as fiduciary. The Owner or Contractor, as appropriate, shall require of the
Architect, Architect’s consultants, separate contractors described in Article 6, if any, and the subcontractors, sub-
subcontractors, agents and employees of any of them, by appropriate agreements, written where legally required for
validity, similar waivers each in favor of other parties enumerated herein. The policies shall provide such waivers of
subrogation by endorsement or otherwise. A waiver of subrogation shall be effective as to a person or entity even
though that person or entity would otherwise have a duty of indemnification, contractual or otherwise, did not pay
the insurance premium directly or indirectly, and whether or not the person or entity had an insurable interest in the

property damaged.

§ 11.3.8 A loss insured under the Owner’s property insurance shall be adjusted by the Owner as fidueiary and made
payable to the Owner as fiduciary for the insureds, as their interests may appear, subject to requirements of any
applicable mortgagee clause and of Section 11.3.10. The Contractor shall pay Subcontractors their just shares of
insurance proceeds received by the Contractor, and by appropriate agreements, written where legally required for
validity, shall require Subcontractors to make payments to their Sub-subcontractors in similar manner.

§ 11.3.9 If required in writing by a party in interest, the Owner as fiduciary shall, upon occurrence of an insured loss,
give bond for proper performance of the Owner’s duties. The cost of required bonds shall be charged against
proceeds received as fiduciary. The Owner shall deposit in a separate account proceeds so received, which the

AIA Document A201% - 2007. Copyright & 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, L1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The
American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This ATA® Document 15 protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International
Treatias. Unauthorized reproduction or diatribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal
penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possibla under the law. This draft was produced by ATIA software at 16:12:36 on
06/06/2014 under Order No.6144147103_1 which expires on 04/28/2015, and is not for resale.

User Notes: {1196123245)

32



Owner shall distribute in accordance with such agreement as the parties in interest may reach, or as determined in
accordance with the method of binding dispute resolution selected in the Agreement between the Owner and
Contractor. If after such loss no other special agreement is made and unless the Owner terminates the Contract for
convenience, replacement of damaged property shall be performed by the Contractor after notification of a Change

in the Work in accordance with Article 7.

§ 11.3.10 The Owner as fiduciary shall have power to adjust and settle a loss with insurers unless one of the parties in
interest shall object in writing within five days after occurrence of loss to the Owner’s exercise of this power; if such
objection is made, the dispute shall be resolved in the manner selected by the Owner and Contractor as the method
of binding dispute resolution in the Agreement. If the Owner and Contractor have selected arbitration as the method
of binding dispute resolution, the Owner as fiduciary shall make settlement with insurers or, in the case of a dispute
over distribution of insurance proceeds, in accordance with the directions of the arbitrators.

§ 11.4 PERFORMANCE BOND AND PAYMENT BOND
§ 11.4.1 The Owner shall have the right to require the Contractor to furnish bonds covering faithful performance of

the Contract and payment of obligations arising thereunder as stipulated in bidding requirements or spec1ﬁcally
required in the Contract Documents on the date of execution of the Contract. i

§ 11.4.2 Upon the request of any person or entity appearing to be a potential beneficiary of bonds covering payment
of obligations arising under the Contract, the Contractor shall promptly furnish a copy of the bonds or shall
authorize a copy to be furnished.

ARTICLE 12 UNCOVERING AND CORRECTION OF WORK

§ 12.1 UNCOVERING OF WORK
§ 12.1.1 If a portion of the Work is covered contrary to the Architect’s request or to requirements specifically

expressed in the Contract Documents, it must, if requested in writing by the Architect, be uncovered for the
Architect’s examination and be replaced at the Contractor’s expense without change in the Contract Time.

§ 12.1.2 If a portion of the Work has been covered that the Architect has not specifically requested to examine prior
to its being covered, the Architect may request to see such Work and it shall be uncovered by the Contractor. If such
Work is in accordance with the Contract Documents, costs of uncovetring and replacement shall, by appropriate
Change Order, be at the Owner’s expense. If such Work is not in accordance with the Contract Documents, such
costs and the cost of correction shall be at the Contractor’s expense unless the condition was caused by the Owner or
a separate contractor in which event the Owner shall be responsible for payment of such costs.

§ 12.2 CORRECTION OF WORK
§ 12.2.1 BEFORE OR AFTER SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION
The Contractor shall promptly correct Work rejected by the Architect or failing to conform to the requirements of

the Contract Documents, whether discovered before or after Substantial Completion and whether or not fabricated,
installed or completed. Costs of correcting such rejected Work, including additional testing and inspections, the cost
of uncovering and replacement, and compensation for the Architect’s services and expenses made necessary

thereby, shall be at the Contractor’s expense.

§12.2.2 AFTER SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION

§ 12.2.2.1 In addition to the Contractor’s obligations under Section 3.5, if, within one year after the date of
Substantial Completion of the Work or designated portion thereof or after the date for commencemet of wairantics
established under Section 9.9.1, or by terms of an applicable special warranty required by the Contract Documents,
any of the Work is found to be not in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents, the Contractor
shall correct it promptly after receipt of written notice from the Owner to do so unless the Owner has previously
given the Contractor a written acceptance of such condition. The Owner shall give such notice promptly after
discovery of the condition. During the one-year period for correction of Work, if the Owner fails to notify the
Contractor and give the Contractor an opportunity to make the correction, the Owner waives the rights to require
correction by the Contractor and to make a claim for breach of warranty. If the Contractor fails to correct
nonconforming Work within a reasonable time during that period after receipt of notice from the Owner or

Architect, the Owner may correct it in accordance with Section 2.4.

AIA Document A201™ — 2007. Copyright & 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The
American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: Thas AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International
Treatiss. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severa civil and criminal
penaltias, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law., This draft was praduced by AIA software at 16:12:36 on
06/06/2014 under Order No.5144147103_1 which expires on 04/28/2015, and is aot For resale.

User Notes: (1196123245)

33



§ 12.2.2.2 The one-year period for correction of Work shall be extended with respect to portions of Work first
performed after Substantial Completion by the period of time between Substantial Completion and the actual

completion of that portion of the Work.

§ 12.2.2.3 The one-year period for correction of Work shall not be extended by corrective Work performed by the
Contractor pursuant to this Section 12.2.

§ 12.2.3 The Contractor shall remove from the site portions of the Work that are not in accordance with the
requirements of the Contract Documents and are neither corrected by the Contractor nor accepted by the Owner.

§ 12.2.4 The Contractor shall bear the cost of cotrecting destroyed or damaged construction; whether completed or
partially completed, of the Owner or separate contractors caused by the Contractor’s correctlon or removal of Work
that is not in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents.

§ 12.2.5 Nothing contained in this Section 12.2 shall be construed to establish a period of limitation with respect to
other obligations the Contractor has under the Contract Documents. Establishment of the one-year period for
correction of Work as described in Section 12.2.2 relates only to the specific obligation of the Contractor to correct
the Work, and has no relationship to the time within which the obligation to comply with the Contract Documents
may be sought to be enforced, nor to the time within which proceedings may be commenced to-establish the
Contractor’s liability with respect to the Contractor’s obligations other than specifically to correct the Work. .

§ 12.3 ACCEPTANCE OF NONCONFORMING WORK
[f the Owner prefers to accept Work that is not in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents, the

Owner may do so instead of requiring its removal and cotrection, in which case the Contract Sum will be reduced as
appropriate and equitable. Such adjustment shall be effected whether or not final payment has been made.

ARTICLE 13 MISCELLANEQUS PROVISIONS

§13.1 GOVERNING LAW
The Contract shall be governed by the law of the place where the Project is located except that, if the parties have

selected arbitration as the method of binding dispute resolution, the Federal Arbitration Act shall govern Section
15.4.

§ 13.2 SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS

§ 13.2.1 The Owner and Contractor respectively bind themselves, their partnets, successors, assigns and legal
representatives to covenants, agreements and obligations contained in the Contract Documents. Except as provided
in Section 13.2.2, neither party to the Contract shall assign the Contract as a whole without written consent of the
other. If either party attempts to make such an assignment without such consent, that party shall nevertheless remain

legally responsible for all obligations under the Contract.

§ 13.2.2 The Owner may, without consent of the Contractor, assign the Contract to a lender providing construction
financing for the Project, if the lender assumes the Owner’s rights and obligations under the Contract Documents.
The Contractor shall execute all consents reasonably required to facilitate such assignment.

§ 13.3 WRITTEN NOTICE
Written notice shall be deemed to have been duly served if delivered in person to the individual, to a member of the

firm or entity, or to an officer of the corporation for which it was intended; or if deiivered at, or sent by registered or
certified mail or by courier service providing proof of delivery to, the last business address known to the party
giving notice.

§ 13.4 RIGHTS AND REMEDIES
§ 13.4.1 Duties and obligations imposed by the Contract Documents and rights and remedies available thereunder

shall be in addition to and not a limitation of duties, obligations, rights and remedies otherwise imposed or available
by law.

§ 13.4.2 No action or failure to act by the Owner, Architect or Contractor shall constitute a waiver of a right or duty
afforded them under the Contract, nor shall such action or failure to act constitute approval of or acquiescence in a

breach there under, except as may be specifically agreed in writing.

ATA Document A201™ -~ 2007. Copyright 2 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The
American Iastitute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This ATA? Document is protected by U.S. Copyraght Law and International 34
Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this ATA® Document, or any portion of if, may result in sevare cavil and criminal
penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 16:12:36 on
06/06/2014 under Order No.6144147103_1 which expires on 04/28/2015, and is not for resale.

User Notes: (1196123245)



§ 13.5 TESTS AND INSPECTIONS
§ 13.5.1 Tests, inspections and approvals of portions of the Work shall be made as required by the Contract

Documents and by applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, rules and regulations or lawful orders of public
authorities. Unless otherwise provided, the Contractor shall make arrangements for such tests, inspections and
approvals with an independent testing laboratory or entity acceptable to the Owner, or with the appropriate public
authority, and shall bear all related costs of tests, inspections and approvals. The Contractor shall give the Architect
timely notice of when and where tests and inspections are to be made so that the Architect may be present for such
procedures. The Owner shall bear costs of (1) tests, inspections or approvals that do not become requirements until
after bids are received or negotiations concluded, and (2) tests, inspections or approvals where building codes or
applicable laws or regulations prohibit the Owner from delegating their cost to the Contractor.

§ 13.5.2 [f the Architect, Owner or public authorities having jurisdiction determine that portions of the Work require
additional testing, inspection or approval not included under Section 13.5.1, the Architect will, upon written
authorization from the Owner, instruct the Contractor to make arrangements for such additional testing, inspection
or approval by an entity acceptable to the Owner, and the Contractor shall give timely notice to:the Architect of
when and where tests and inspections are to be made so that the Architect may be present for such procedures. Such
costs, except as provided in Section 13.5.3, shall be at the Owner’s expense.

§ 13.5.3 If such procedures for testing, inspection or approval under Sections 13.5.1 and 13.5.2 reveal failure of the
portions of the Work to comply with requirements established by the Contract Documents, all costs made necessary
by such failure including those of repeated procedures and compensation for the Architect’s services and expenses

shall be at the Contractor’s expense.

§ 13.5.4 Required certificates of testing, inspection or approval shall, unless otherwise required by the Contract
Documents, be secured by the Contractor and promptly delivered to the Architect.

§ 13.5.5 If the Architect is to observe tests, inspections or approvals required by the Contract Documents, the
Architect will do so promptly and, where practicable, at the normal place of testing.

§ 13.5.6 Tests or inspections conducted pursuant to the Contract Documents shall be made promptly to avoid
unreasonable delay in the Work.

§ 13.6 INTEREST
Payments due and unpaid under the Contract Documents shall bear interest from the date payment is due at such rate

as the parties may agree upon in writing or, in the absence thereof, at the legal rate prevailing from time to time at
the place where the Project is located.

§ 13.7 TIME LIMITS ON CLAIMS
The Owner and Contractor shall commence all claims and causes of action, whether in contract, tort, breach of

warranty or otherwise, against the other arising out of or related to the Contract in accordance with the requirements
of the final dispute resolution method selected in the Agreement within the time period specified by applicable law,
but in any case not more than 10 years after the date of Substantial Completion of the Work. The Owner and
Contractor waive all claims and causes of action not commenced in accordance with this Section 13.7.

ARTICLE 14 TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION OF THE CONTRACT

§ 14.1 TERMINATION BY THE CONTRACTOR

§ 14.1.1 The Contractor may terminate the Contract if the Work is stopped for a period of 30 consecutive days
through no act or fault of the Contractor or a Subcontractor, Sub-subcontractor or their agents or employees or any
other persons or entities performing portions of the Work under direct or indirect contract with the Contractor, for

any of the following reasons:
21 Issuance of an order of a court or other public authority having jurisdiction that requires all Work to

be stopped;
.2 Anact of government, such as a declaration of national emergency that requires all Work to be

stopped,

AIA Document A201™ - 2007. Copyright = 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The
ABmerican Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNINGC: This ATA” Document is protectad by U.S. Copyright Law and International
Treaties, Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this ATA®° Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal
penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 16:12:36 oa
06/06/2014 under Order No.6144147103 1 which expires on 04/28/201%, and is not for resale.

User Notes: (1196123245}

35



.3 Because the Architect has not issued a Certificate for Payment and has not notified the Contractor of
the reason for withholding certification as provided in Section 9.4.1, or because the Owner has not
made payment on a Certificate for Payment within the time stated in the Contract Documents; or

4 The Owner has failed to furnish to the Contractor promptly, upon the Contractor’s request, reasonable
evidence as required by Section 2.2.1.

§ 14.1.2 The Contractor may terminate the Contract if, through no act or fault of the Contractor or a Subcontractor,
Sub-subcontractor or their agents or employees or any other persons or entities performing portions of the Work
under direct or indirect contract with the Contractor, repeated suspensions, delays or interruptions of the entire Work
by the Owner as described in Section 14.3 constitute in the aggregate more than 100 percent of the total number of
days scheduled for completion, or 120 days in any 365-day period, whichever is less.

§ 14.1.3 If one of the reasons described in Section 14.1.1 or 14.1.2 exists, the Contractor may, upon seven days’
written notice to the Owner and Architect, terminate the Contract and recover from the Owner payment for Work
executed, including reasonable overhead and profit, costs incurred by reason of such termination, and damages.

§ 14.1.4 If the Work is stopped for a period of 60 consecutive days through no act or fault of the Contractor or a
Subcontractor or their agents or employees or any other persons performing portions of the' Work under contract
with the Contractor because the Owner has repeatedly failed to fulfill the Owner’s obligations under the Contract
Documents with respect to matters important to the progress of the Work, the Contractor may, upon seven additional
days’ written notice to the Owner and the Architect, terminate the Contract and recover from the Owner as provided

in Section 14.1.3.

§ 14.2 TERMINATION BY THE OWNER FOR CAUSE
§ 14.2.1 The Owner may terminate the Contract if the Contractor
1 repeatedly refuses or fails to supply enough properly skilled workers or proper materials;
.2 fails to make payment to Subcontractors for materials or labor in accordance with the respeetive
agreements between the Contractor and the Subcontractors;
.3 repeatedly disregards applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, rules and regulations, or lawful

orders of a public authority; or
4 otherwise is guilty of substantial breach of a provision of the Contract Documents.

§ 14.2.2 When any of the above reasons exist, the Owner, upon certification by the Initial Decision Maker that
sufficient cause exists to justify such action, may without prejudice to any other rights or remedies of the Owner and
after giving the Contractor and the Contractor’s surety, if any, seven days’ written notice, terminate employment of

the Contractor and may, subject to any prior rights of the surety:
A Exclude the Contractor from the site and take possession of all materials, equipment, tools, and

construction equipment and machinery thereon owned by the Contractor;

.2 Accept assignment of subcontracts pursuant to Section 5.4; and
.3 Finish the Work by whatever reasonable method the Owner may deem expedient. Upon written
request of the Contractor, the Owner shall furnish to the Contractor a detailed accounting of the costs

incurred by the Owner in finishing the Work.

§ 14.2.3 When the Owner terminates the Contract for one of the reasons stated in Section 14.2.1, the Contractor shall
not be entitled to receive further payment until the Work is finished.

§ 14.2.4 If the unpaid balance of the Contract Sum exceeds costs of finishing the Work, including compensation for
the Architect’s services and expenses made necessary thereby, and other damages incurred by the Owner and not
expressly waived, such excess shall be paid to the Contractor. If such costs and damages exceed the unpaid balance,
the Contractor shall pay the difference to the Owner. The amount to be paid to the Contractor or Owner, as the case
may be, shall be certified by the Initial Decision Maker, upon application, and this obligation for payment shall
survive termination of the Contract.

§ 14.3 SUSPENSION BY THE OWNER FOR CONVENIENCE
§ 14.3.1 The Owner may, without cause, order the Contractor in writing to suspend, delay or interrupt the Work in

whole or in part for such period of time as the Owner may determine.

1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The

AIA Document A201™ - 2007. Copyright % 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958,
Copyright Law and International 36

American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S.
Treaties, Unauthorized reproduction or distzibution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal
penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 16:12:36 on
06/06/2014 under Order No.6144147103_1 which expires on 04/28/2015, and is not for resale.

User Notes: (1196123245)



§ 14.3.2 The Contract Sum and Contract Time shall be adjusted for increases in the cost and time caused by
suspension, delay or interruption as described in Section 14.3.1. Adjustment of the Contract Sum shall include

profit. No adjustment shall be made to the extent
.1 that performance is, was or would have been so suspended, delayed or interrupted by another cause

for which the Contractor is responsible; or
.2 that an equitable adjustment is made or denied under another provision of the Contract.

§ 14.4 TERMINATION BY THE OWNER FOR CONVENIENCE
§ 14.4.1 The Owner may, at any time, terminate the Contract for the Owner’s convenience and without cause.

§ 14.4.2 Upon receipt of written notice from the Owner of such termination for the Owner’s: convenience, the

Contractor shall
.1 cease operations as directed by the Owner in the notice;
.2 take actions necessary, or that the Owner may direct, for the protection and preservation of the Work;

and
3 except for Work directed to be performed prior to the effective date of termination stated in the
notice, terminate all existing subcontracts and purchase orders and enter into no further subcontracts

and purchase orders.

§ 14.4.3 In case of such termination for the Ownet’s convenience, the Contractor shall be entitled to receive payment
for Work executed, and costs incurred by reason of such termination, along with reasonable overhead and profit on

the Work not executed.

ARTICLE 15 CLAIMS AND DISPUTES
§15.1 CLAIMS

§ 15.1.1 DEFINITION
A Claim is a demand or assertion by one of the parties seeking, as a matter of right, payment of money, or other

relief with respect to the terms of the Contract. The term “Claim” also includes other disputes and nratters in
question between the Owner and Contractor arising out of or relating to the Contract. The responsibility to

substantiate Claims shall rest with the party making the Claim.

§ 15.1.2 NOTICE OF CLAIMS
Claims by either the Owner or Contractor must be initiated by written notice to the other party and to the Initial

Decision Maker with a copy sent to the Architect, if the Architect is not serving as the Initial Decision Maker.
Claims by either party must be initiated within 21 days after occurrence of the event giving rise to such Claim or
within 21 days after the claimant first recognizes the condition giving rise to the Claim, whichever is later.

§ 15.1.3 CONTINUING CONTRACT PERFORMANCE

Pending final resolution of a Claim, except as otherwise agreed in writing or as provided in Section 9.7 and Article
14, the Contractor shall proceed diligently with performance of the Contract and the Owner shall continue to make
payments in accordance with the Contract Documents. The Architect will prepare Change Orders and issue
Certificates for Payment in accordance with the decisions of the Initial Decision Maker.

§15.1.4 CLAIMS FOR ADDITIONAL COST
[f the Contractor wishes to make a Claim for an increase in the Contract Sum, written notice as provided herein shall
be given before proceeding to execute the Work. Prior notice is not required for Claims relating (0 an emergency

endangering life or property arising under Section 10.4.

§ 15.1.5 CLAIMS FOR ADDITIONAL TIME
§ 15.1.5.1 [ the Contractor wishes to make a Claim for an increase in the Contract Time, written notice as provided

herein shall be given. The Contractor’s Claim shall include an estimate of cost and of probable effect of delay on
progress of the Work. [n the case of a continuing delay, only one Claim is necessary.

§ 15.1.5.2 If adverse weather conditions are the basis for a Claim for additional time, such Claim shall be
documented by data substantiating that weather conditions were abnormal for the period of time, could not have
been reasonably anticipated and had an adverse effect on the scheduled construction.

AIA Document A201™ - 2007. Copyright & 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The
American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This aTA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and Internaticnal
Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal
penalties, and will be prosecutad to the maximum extent possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 16:12:36 on
06/06/2014 under Order No0.6144147103 1 which expires on 04/28/2015, and is oot for resale.

User Notes: (1196123245)

37



§ 15.1.6 CLAIMS FOR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES
The Contractor and Owner waive Claims against each other for consequential damages arising out of or relating to

this Contract. This mutual waiver includes
A damages incurred by the Owner for rental expenses, for losses of use, income, profit, financing,
business and reputation, and for loss of management or employee productivity or of the services of
such persons; and
.2 damages incurred by the Contractor for principal office expenses including the compensation of
personnel stationed there, for losses of financing, business and reputation, and for loss of profit
except anticipated profit arising directly from the Work. o

This mutual waiver is applicable, without limitation, to all consequential damages due to either party’s termination
in accordance with Article 14. Nothing contained in this Section 15.1.6 shall be deemed to preclude an award of
liquidated damages, when applicable, in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents.

§ 15.2 INITIAL DECISION
§ 15.2.1 Claims, excluding those arising under Sections 10.3, 10.4, 11.3.9, and 11.3.10, shall be referred to the Initial

Decision Maker for initial decision. The Architect will serve as the Initial Decision Maker, unless otherwise
indicated in the Agreement. Except for those Claims excluded by this Section 15.2.1, an initial decision shall be
required as a condition precedent to mediation of any Claim arising prior to the date final payment is due, unless 30
days have passed after the Claim has been referred to the Initial Decision Maker with no decision having been
rendered. Unless the Initial Decision Maker and all affected parties agree, the [nitial Decision Maker will not decide
disputes between the Contractor and persons or entities other than the Owner.

§ 15.2.2 The Initial Decision Maker will review Claims and within ten days of the receipt of a Claim take one or
more of the following actions: (1) request additional supporting data from the claimant or a response with supporting
data from the other party, (2) reject the Claim in whole or in part, (3) approve the Claim, (4) suggest a compromise,
or (5) advise the parties that the Initial Decision Maker is unable to resolve the Claim if the Initial Decision Maker
lacks sufficient information to evaluate the merits of the Claim or if the [nitial Decision Maker coneludes that, in the
Initial Decision Maker’s sole discretion, it would be inappropriate for the Initial Decision Maker to resolve the

Claim.

§ 15.2.3 [n evaluating Claims, the Initial Decision Maker may, but shall not be obligated to, consult with or seck
information from either party or from persons with special knowledge or expertise who may assist the [nitial
Decision Maker in rendering a decision. The Initial Decision Maker may request the Owner to authorize retention of

such persons at the Owner’s expense.

§ 15.2.4 If the Initial Decision Maker requests a party to provide a response to a Claim or to furnish additional
supporting data, such party shall respond, within ten days after receipt of such request, and shall either (1) provide a
response on the requested supporting data, (2) advise the Initial Decision Maker when the response or supporting
data will be furnished or (3) advise the Initial Decision Maker that no supporting data will be furnished. Upon
receipt of the response or supporting data, if any, the I[nitial Decision Maker will either reject or approve the Claim

in whole or in part.

§ 15.2.5 The Initial Decision Maker will render an initial decision approving or rejecting the Claim, or indicating that
the Initial Decision Maker is unable to resolve the Claim. This initial decision shall (1) be in writing; (2) state the
reasons therefor; and (3) notify the parties and the Architect, if the Archiiect is not serving as the initiai Decision
Maker, of any change in the Contract Sum or Contract Time or both. The initial decision shall be final and binding
on the parties but subject to mediation and, if the parties fail to resolve their dispute through mediation, to binding

dispute resolution,

§ 15.2.6 Either party may file for mediation of an initial decision at any time, subject to the terms of Section 15.2.6.1.

§ 15.2.6.1 Either party may, within 30 days from the date of an initial decision, demand in writing that the other party
file for mediation within 60 days of the initial decision. If such a demand is made and the party receiving the
demand fails to file for mediation within the time required, then both parties waive their rights to mediate or pursue
binding dispute resolution proceedings with respect to the initial decision.

ATA Document A201™ - 2007. Copyright » 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The
American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International
Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this aT1a® Document., or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal
penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software abt 16:12:36 on
06/06/2014 under Order No.6144147103_1 which expires on 04/28/2015, and 1s not for resale.

User Notes: {1196123245)

38



§ 15.2.7 In the event of a Claim against the Contractor, the Owner may, but is not obligated to, notify the surety, if
any, of the nature and amount of the Claim. If the Claim relates to a possibility of a Contractor’s default, the Owner
may, but is not obligated to, notify the surety and request the surety’s assistance in resolving the controversy.

§ 15.2.8 [f a Claim relates to or is the subject of a mechanic’s lien, the party asserting such Claim may proceed in
accordance with applicable law to comply with the lien notice or filing deadlines.

§ 15.3 MEDIATION
§ 15.3.1 Claims, dlsputes or other matters in controversy arising out of or related to the Contract except those

waived as provided for in Sections 9.10.4, 9.10.5, and 15.1.6 shall be subject to mediation as a condition precedent
to binding dispute resolution.

§ 15.3.2 The parties shall endeavor to resolve their Claims by mediation which, unless the parties mutually agree
otherwise, shall be administered by the American Arbitration Association in accordance with its Construction
Industry Mediation Procedures in effect on the date of the Agreement. A request for mediatioti shall be made in
writing, delivered to the other party to the Contract, and filed with the person or entity administering the mediation.
The request may be made concurrently with the filing of binding dispute resolution proceedings but, in such event,
mediation shall proceed in advance of binding dispute resolution proceedings, which shall be stayed pending
mediation for a period of 60 days from the date of filing, unless stayed for a longer period by agreement of the
parties or court order. If an arbitration is stayed pursuant to this Section 15.3.2, the parties may nonetheless proceed
to the selection of the arbitrator(s) and agree upon a schedule for later proceedings. :

§ 15.3.3 The parties shall share the mediator’s fee and any filing fees equally. The mediation shall be held in the
place where the Project is located, unless another location is mutually agreed upon. Agreements reached in
mediation shall be enforceable as settlement agreements in any court having jurisdiction thereof.

§ 15.4 ARBITRATION
§ 15.4.1 [f the parties have selected arbitration as the method for binding dispute resolution in the Agreement, any

Claim subject to, but not resolved by, mediation shall be subject to arbitration which, unless the parties mutually
agree otherwise, shall be administered by the American Arbitration Association in accordance with its Construction
Industry Arbitration Rules in effect on the date of the Agreement. A demand for arbitration shall be made in writing,
delivered to the other party to the Contract, and filed with the person or entity administering the arbitration. The
party filing a notice of demand for arbitration must assert in the demand all Claims then known to that party on

which arbitration is permitted to be demanded.

§ 15.4.1.1 A demand for arbitration shall be made no earlier than concurrently with the filing of a request for
mediation, but in no event shall it be made after the date when the institution of legal or equitable proceedings based
on the Claim would be barred by the applicable statute of limitations. For statute of limitations purposes, receipt of a
written demand for arbitration by the person or entity administering the arbitration shall constitute the institution of

legal or equitable proceedings based on the Claim.

§ 15.4.2 The award rendered by the arbitrator or arbitrators shall be final, and judgment may be entered upon it in
accordance with applicable law in any court having jurisdiction thereof.

§ 15.4.3 The foregoing agreement to arbitrate and other agreements to arbitrate with an additional person or entity
duly consented to by parties to the Agreement shail be specificaliy enforceable under appiicable law in any court
having jurisdiction thereof.

§ 15.4.4 CONSOLIDATION OR JOINDER
§ 15.4.4.1 Either party, at its sole discretion, may consolidate an arbitration conducted under this Agreement with any

other arbitration to which it is a party provided that (1) the arbitration agreement governing the other arbitration
permits consolidation, (2) the arbitrations to be consolidated substantially involve common questions of law or fact,
and (3) the arbitrations employ materially similar procedural rules and methods for selecting arbitrator(s).

§ 15.4.4.2 Either party, at its sole discretion, may include by joinder persons or entities substantially involved in a
common question of law or fact whose presence is required if complete relief is to be accorded in arbitration,
provided that the party sought to be joined consents in writing to such joinder. Consent to arbitration involving an

1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1967, 1997 and 2007 by The

ATA Document A201™ - 2007. Copyright : 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, ].951
Copyright Law and International 39

American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S.
Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this ATA®? Documant, or any portion of it, way result in severe civil and criminal
penaltias, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 16:12:36 on

06/06/2014 under Order No.6144147103_1 which expires on 04/28/2015, and 1s not for resale.
User Notes: (1196123245)



additional person or entity shall not constitute consent to arbitration of any claim, dispute or other matter in question
not described in the written consent.

§ 15.4.4.3 The Owner and Contractor grant to any petson or entity made a party to an arbitration conducted under
this Section 15.4, whether by joinder or consolidation, the same rights of joinder and consolidation as the Owner and
Contractor under this Agreement. T

ATA Document A201™ - 2007. Copyright o 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The
Bmerican Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This aIA® Document is protected by U.S5. Copyright Law and International 40
Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this ATA° Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal
penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 16:12:36 on

06/06/2014 under Order No.6144147103_1 which expires on 04/28/2015, and is not for resale.
User Notes: (1196123245)



STOREY COUNTY COURTHOUSE ROOF REPLACEMENT

SECTION 5
SCOPE OF WORK

Contractor must provide to Owner the Work generally described below.

Contractor Resources and Control. Contractor must furnish all supervision, personnel, labor, equipment,
material, sales tax, and transportation (unless otherwise specified) required to safely perform the Work and is
solely responsible for controlling the means, method, technique, sequence, procedure, and safety of any portion of

the Work referenced below.

Prevailing Wages. Bidder is responsible for complying with all applicable local, State and Federal wage laws,
whether or not specifically cited in this bid document..

Per NRS Sections 338.020 through 338.090, certain projects defined as “public works” require the payment of the
prevailing wage as determined by the Labor Commissioner. Generally speaking, projects/contracts for
construction of a public work valued at less than $100,000 are exempt from the prevailing wage requirement
(NRS 338.080). Bidder shall be fully aware of the prevailing wage requirements of the State of Nevada as
detailed in NRS Chapter 338 and price their bid response accordingly. Further information concerning Prevailing

Wage rates can be found at:

http://www.laborcommissioner.com/pwpw.html

Federal “Davis Bacon” wages may be applicable if the funding for the project includes Federal funds. These
requirements are detailed in the “Special Conditions — Federal Requirements” section that will be included in this

bid document when such conditions apply.

The Contractor agrees to furnish all necessary and incidental labor, supervision, materials, equipment, tools and
other related services required to successfully complete Roof Replacement Project at the Storey County
Courthouse, located at 26 B Street, Virginia City, NV. The Contractor will be responsible for providing
temporary power, potable water source, and restroom facilities.

The Contractor is to comply with all applicable Local, State and National building codes.

Roof Replacement Base Bid

The existing metal roof on the Storey County Courthouse ieaks at peneiraiions, transitions, terminations, ridge
and hip caps, vents, flashing, etc. Bidders should conduct necessary field investigation and verification of all
existing conditions to ensure a weather-tight roof at the completion of roof replacement including providing a
minimum Five Year, No Dollar Limit Manufacturer’s Warranty covering labor and materials. The anticipated

Scope of Work includes, but is not necessarily limited to the following:

Removal of existing flag pole.

® Removal of existing wood access stairs and cat-walk.

¢ Removal of existing and underlying roofing materials to original solid plank sheathing at all 4 major
pitches.

e Repair to sheathing as necessary.

e Repair or re-pointing of brick masonry chimneys and parapet walls as necessary.

e Installation of “Grace” Ice & Water shield membrane or approved equivalent over entire roof surface.



o [nstallation of new highest quality membrane or approved alternative at all low slope valleys, crickets,

and transitions.
o Installation of new “Copper Penny” colored 24 gauge standing seam metal roofing at all major pitches

including new flashings at all penetrations.
e Installation of new “Copper Penny” colored 24 gauge metal cap and wall flashings at all parapet walls,

front eyebrow, and chimneys.
e Repair or re-construction with color match of the original sheet metal architectural crown centerpiece at

the front parapet wall.
e Minimum 5-year warranty required.

Roof Replacement Alternate Bid No. 1
1. Provide and install six (6), ninety-seven foot (97°) runs of LM Curbs S-5! ColorGard Snow Retention

System with VersaBrackets on twelve inch (12”) centers. Color to match existing. Rated for 70 psf snow
load.

Roof Replacement Alternate Bid No. 2
1. Add new color matching 24 gauge metal gutters and downspouts.

Roof Replacement Alternate Bid No. 3
1. Add fabrication and installation of metal access stairs and cat walk with guard / handrails (Design by

owner).
Required Submittals:

Colored metal roofing sample.

Metal roofing material manufacturer’s warranty information.

Clip and*fastener specifications as recommended by manufacturer for high wind zones.

[ce & Water shield membrane specifications and manufacturer’s warranty.

Manufacturer’s specifications and warranty of roofing membrane material for valley, cricket, and

transition areas.
e Specifications of any proposed alternative materials.






Water Shed Systems

Estimate

7373 Center Dr.
Carson City, NV 89701 Number: E101
775-230-4148
NV Lic # 48720 Date: August 14, 2014
Bill To: - Ship To:
Storey COURTHOUSE
STOREY COUNTY
26 S B street
Virginia City, Nv 89440
Date Order Taken By Job Location Terms of Payment Project
8-14-2014 Mike Baxter Virginia City Nv progressive sourthouse roo
Date Material Quantity/Hours | Amount
'8-14- 2014 |Standing seam metal 1 o Y

panel
Water shield

Tear off existing
Ridge cap
Z-Closure

All fasteners/Screws,
Ect.

We are prese
bid limit incre
next 14 busin

se from the Nevada Cont
ss days. As well as the CP.

Eting this proposal to inclu:{

the scope of work provided
ctors Board is in the process
's statement.

Total

;

5,500.00
5,900.00

Due to time constraints, The
nd will be in effect within the

Aeq,020







THIE INSCO INSURANCE SERVICES, INC.

Inscglco Underwriting Manager for:
GROUD Developers Surety and Indemnity Company
Indemnity Company of California
17771 Cowan, Suite 100 Irvine, California 92614 (949) 263-3300

www.InscoDica.com

BID BOND

BOND NO. 8798858

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS,

That we Watershed Systems, Michael Baxter

as Principal, and Indemnity Company of California a corporatjon

Nevada as Surety, are held and firmly

authorized to transact a general surety business in the State of

bound unto Stor o 26 South "B" St., Virginia City, NV 89440
(hereinafter called the Obligee)

in the full and just sum of 5% of Bid Amount™™*

Dollars, ($ 5% of Bid Amount ) for the payment whereof in lawful money of the United States, we bind ourselves, our

heirs, administrators, executors, successors and assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents.

WHEREAS, the said PRINCIPAL has submitted the accompanying bid for
Storey County Roof Repairs, Storey County Courthouse, 26 South "B" St., Virginia City, NV 89440

NOW, THEREFORE, if the Obligee shail accept the bid of the Principal and the Principal shall enter into a
Contract with the Obligee in accordance with the terms of such bid, or in the event of the failure of the Principal to enter
such Contract, if the Principal shail pay to the Obligee the difference not to exceed the penalty hereof between the
amount specified in said bid and such larger amount for which the Obligee may in good faith contract with another party
to perform the Work covered by said bid, then this obligation shall be null and void, otherwise to remain in full force and

effect.

Signed and Sealed this 17th day of July . 2Q1§EAR

Indefdnity Company of California

=7 )
Ym0 T

Michael Baxter Linda Fisher

]

ID-1198 (Bid Bond) (REV. 7/13)







POWER OF ATTORNEY FOR
DEVELOPERS SURETY AND INDEMNITY COMPANY
INDEMNITY COMPANY OF CALIFORNIA
PO Box 19725, IRVINE, CA 92623 (349) 263-3300

KNOW ALL BY THESE PRESENTS that sxcept as expressly limited, DEVELOPERS SURETY AND INDEMNITY COMPANY and INDEMNITY COMPANY OF CALIFORNIA, do each

hereby make, constitute and appoint:
***Ryan Garaventa, Theresa L. Ross, Glen Gonfiantini, Chris Gonfiantini, Sylvia Forsythe, Linda Fisher, Morre J. Hughes, jointly or

i

severally

as their true and lawful Attomey(s)-in-Fact, to make, execute, deliver and acknowledge, for and on behalf of said corporations, as sureties, bonds, undertakings and contracts of surety-

ship giving and granting unto said Attomey(s)-in-Fact full power and authority to do and to perform every act necessary, requisite or proper to be dong in connection therewith as each of
said corparations could do, but reserving to each of said corporations full power of substitution and revocation, and all of the acts of said Altorney(s)-in-Fact, pursuant to these presents,

are hereby ratified and confirmed.
This Power of Attorney is granted and is signed by facsimile under and by autharity of the following resolutions adopted by the respective Boards of Directors of DEVELOPERS SURETY
AND INDEMNITY COMPANY and INDEMNITY COMPANY OF CALIFORNIA, effective as of January 1st, 2008.

RESOLVED, that a combination of any two of the Chairman of the Board, the President, Executive Vice-President, Senior Vice-President or any Vice President of the

corporations be, and that each of them hereby is, authorized to execute this Power of Attarney, qualifying the attorney(s) named in the Pgwer of Attorney to execute, on behalf of thg
carporations, bonds, undertakings and contracts of suretyship; and that the Secretary or any Assistant Secretary of either of the corporations be, and each of them hereby is, authorized

to attest the execution of any such Power of Attorney;

RESOLVED, FURTHER, that the signatures of such officers may be affixed to any such Power of Attomey or to any certificate refating thereto by facsimile, and any such _
Power of Attorney or certificate bearing such facsimile signalures shall be valid and binding upon the corporations when so affixed and in the future with respect to any bond, undertaking

or contract of suretyship to which it is attached.

IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, DEVELOPERS SURETY AND INDEMNITY COMPANY and INDEMNITY COMPANY OF CALIFORNIA have severally caused these presents to be signed by
their respective officers and attested by their respective Secretary or Assistant Secretary this November 21, 2013.

2 ’\Dd//‘/“// Mﬂz&f’f

Daniel Young, Senior Vice-President  / V/

Mark J. Lansdon, Vice-President

State of Califomia
County of Orange

Antonio Alvarado, Notary Public

On November 21, 2013 before me,

Date Here Insert Name and Title of the Officer

Daniel Young and Mark J. Lansdon
Name(s) of Signer(s)

persanally appeared

who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to
the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he/shefthey executed the same in his/her/their authorized
capacity(ies), and that by hisher/their signature(s) on the instrument the person(s}, or the entity upon behalf of

which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument.

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing paragraph is
true and correct.

WITNESS my hand and official seal.

Place Notary Seal Above Signature -
Antonio Alvarado, Notary Public
CERTIFICATE

The undersigned, as Secretary or Assistant Secretary of DEVELOPERS SURETY AND INDEMNITY COMPANY or INDEMNITY.COMPANY OF CALIFORNIA, does hereby
certify that the foregoing Power of Attomey remains in full force and has not been revoked and, furthermore, that the provisions of the resolutions of the respective Boards of Directors of

said corporations set forth in the Power of Attomey are in force as of the date of this Certificate.

This Certificate is executed in the City of Irvine, California, this 1.7 thiay of JULY 2014,

o Caoni. & fooniforu

Cassié J. Berrisfo#sistaﬂ Secratary U

ID-1380(Rev.11/113)




STATEOF /Vwac/q

county oF __CErsen Gy

]

on_7/ f7//£ before me, DL—:‘M/SL-Z HNORT namN

(here insert name and title of the officer)

Shehaes o Dexter. -

personally appeared

¢

personally known to me (or proved to me on the basis of satistactory evidence) to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are
subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged fo me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their authorized
capacity(les), and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument the person(s), or the entity upon behalf of which the

person(s) acted, executed the instrument.

WITNESS my hand and official seal.

_ /
" y /-J
/
Signature m 0/7Lm a

(SEAL)

-

10-13-14
0335912 ?

This area for Official Notarial Seal




00°0$ 00'0% 00'0$ 00'881°26$ 00°086'86% alg 1viol
[1]3
6
8
A
9
S
plq sajeuss)e ou 00'08€'81L$ Sl AlBM 18] PUB SIIE)S SS300Y |BIRN € Sleuis)y 14
piq ssjeuss)e ou 00°006'c$ Sl SinodSuMOQ pUe SIBINS Z djeuwsany £
pIq SSJBUIS)E OU 00°089'/% S11L WIAISAS UONUBIEY MOUS | Sleua)y [4
00981263 00°020'69% s1l pig aseq 1
300dd W10L 30idd TV.LOL 30Rid Tvi0oL 30Rid Tv.10L JORId V.10l SLINM 8 ALLLNYND NOLLJINOS3A| WLl
ON S3A ANSWILVLS NOLLYDIHITYND S.HOLOVHELINOD]
MOIHO S3A aNOo8 aig
ON S3A NOILNJ3X3 ANV LNIWIDATTMONNOY
ON S3A V130 ¥OLOVHINODENS
ON S3A WYOd TVSOdO¥d aig
ON S3A quInN Jo aBpamownoy :WNAN3aav|
ON SOA
Bulyooy auolsploo SWRISAS pausIolep)
S v £] N._ } ‘30018 40 IWYN||
0vF68 AN ‘AND ewiban 0FP68 AN ‘A0 eubia
984§ g yinos 9z ‘NOILYD01 19315 g yinog 9z NOLLY D01
0F¥68 AN ‘AIID BIUIBIA ‘wrd g0z 3NLL V00T
wawsoeiday Jooy 9/l X09°0'd
asnoyunos Auno) Aa101g SWVYN LO3roud Auno Asi01g YIANMO pL-Bny-p| Alva aig

NOLLVINGV1 aig 193roud



